THE ONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION FOR ERIE COUNTY

ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (ECIDA)
BUFFALO & ERIE COUNTY REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT CORP (RDC)
BUFFALO & ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMENT CORP (ILDC)

Joint Finance & Audit Committee Meeting
March 21, 2024 @ 10:00 a.m.

ECIDA Offices

95 Perry Street, 4 Floor
Buffalo, New York 14203

1. Approval of Minutes — February 22, 2024 (Action) (Pages 2-3)
2. Draft 2023 ECIDA Audited Financial Statements & Management Letter (Action) (Pages 4-30)
3. Draft 2023 RDC Audited Financial Statements (Action) (Pages 31-56)
4. Draft 2023 ILDC Audited Financial Statements (Action) (Pages 57-83)
5.2023 PAAA Annual Report (Action) (Action) (Pages 84-151)
6. 2023 Investment Reports (Action) (Pages 152-156)
7. Re-Adoption of ECIDA/RDC/ILDC Policies (Action Items)
a) Investment and Deposit Policy (Re-adoption) (Action) (Pages 157-164)
b) Finance & Audit Committee Charter (Re-adoption) (Action) (Pages 165-169)
c) Corporate Credit Card Policy (Re-adoption) (Action) (Pages 170-172)
8. 2023 Finance & Audit Committee Self-Evaluation (Action) (Pages 173-177)
9. 2023 Management’s Assessment of Internal Controls (Informational) (Pages 178-179)
10. Corporate Credit Card Usage Report (Informational) (Page 180)

11. New Business (Informational) (Pages 181-185)

12. Adjournment

95 Perry Street, Suite 403 « Buffalo, New York 14203 « ph. 716.856.6525 » fx. 716.856.6754 « www.ecidany.com



MINUTES OF A JOINT MEETING OF THE
FINANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEES OF THE
ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (ECIDA or AGENCY)
THE BUFFALO & ERIE COUNTY REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT
CORPORATION (RDC) AND THE BUFFALO & ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL
LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (ILDC)

DATE AND PLACE: February 22, 2024, at the Erie County Industrial Development Agency,
95 Perry Street, Suite 403, Buffalo, New York 14203

PRESENT: Penny Beckwith, Allison DeHonney, Mr. Glenn R. Nellis Paul Vukelic
and William Witzleben
ABSENT: Denise McCowan and Michael Szukala

OTHERS PRESENT: John Cappellino, President & CEO; Atiqa Abidi, Assistant Treasurer;
Brian Krygier, Director of Information Technology; Grant Lesswing,
Director of Business Development; Carrie Hocieniec, Operations
Assistant; Pat Smith, Bookkeeper and Robert G. Murray, Esq., General
Counsel/Harris Beach PLLC

GUESTS: Nicholas Fiume on behalf of D’ Youville College

There being a quorum present at 10:06 a.m., the Meeting of the Members of the Joint
Finance & Audit Committee of the Erie County Industrial Development Agency, Buffalo and Erie
County Regional Development Corporation and the Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land
Development Corporation was called to order by Mr. Cappellino, who presided over the meeting
in the absence of Chair Szukala.

MINUTES

The January 9, 2024 minutes of the joint meeting of the Finance and Audit Committee
were presented. Upon motion made by Mr. Witzleben and seconded by Ms. Beckwith, and after
a vote was called for by Mr. Cappellino, the January 9, 2024 minutes of the Finance and Audit
Committee were unanimously approved.

D’YOUVILLE COLLEGE -ILDC BOND

Ms. Abidi described the contemplated project. Mr. Fiume from D’Youville further
described the creation of the new D’ Youville University Medical School and the uses of the ILDC
taxable bond proceeds.

Mr. Nellis moved and Mr. Witzleben seconded to approve of the proposed project. Mr.
Cappellino called for the vote and the following resolution was unanimously approved:

Error! Unknown document property name.



D’YOUVILLE COLLEGE - ILDC BOND (CON'T)

RESOLUTION OF THE MEMBERS OF THE BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY
INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (THE “ILDC”)
FINANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE RECOMMENDING THAT THE ILDC
FINANCE CERTAIN COSTS RELATING TO, AND APPROVING THE
UNDERTAKING OF A CERTAIN PROJECT DESCRIBED BELOW AT THE
REQUEST OF D’YOUVILLE UNIVERSITY AND THE GRANTING OF
CERTAIN FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE IN- CONNECTION THEREWITH,
INCLUDING THE ISSUANCE OF THE ILDC’S TAXABLE BONDS IN AN
AGGREGATE AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $48,000,000 FOR THE
PURPOSES OF UNDERTAKING THE PROJECT AND FUNDING THE COSTS
OF SUCH ISSUANCE

2023 AUDIT ENGAGEMENT LETTER

Ms. Abidi reviewed the Lumsden McCormick LLP ECIDA, ILDC and RDC audit
engagement letter.

There being no further business to discuss, Mr. Cappellino adjourned the meeting at
10:40 am.

Dated: February 22, 2024

Elizabeth A. O’Keefe, Secretary



DRAFT

COMMUNICATION WITH THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE

March 21, 2024

Members of the Finance & Audit Committees and Boards of Directors
Erie County Industrial Development Agency and related entities

We have audited the separate financial statements of Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA), Buffalo
and Erie County Regional Development Corporation (RDC), and Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land
Development Corporation (ILDC), business-type activities (collectively, the Organizations) for the year ended
December 31, 2023. Professional standards require that we advise you the folowing matters related to our audits.

Our Responsibility in Relation to the Financial Statement Audit

As communicated in our engagement letter dated January 19, 2024, our responsibility, as described by
professional standards, is to form and express an opinion about whether each entity’s financial statements that
have been prepared by management with your oversight are presented fairly, in all material respects, in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Qur audits of each
entity’s financial statements do not relieve you or management of their respective responsibilities.

Our responsibility, as prescribed by professional standards, is to plan and perform our audits to obtain reasonable,
rather than absolute, assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit of financial statements includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for
designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of each entity’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, as part of our
audits, we considered the internal control of each entity solely for the purpose of determining our audit
procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such internal control.

We are also responsible to communicate significant matters related to the audits that are, in our professional
judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process. However, we are not
required to design procedures for the purpose of identifying other matters to communicate to you.

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit

We conducted our audits consistent with the planned scope and timing we previously communicated to you in the
engagement letter.

Compliance with All Ethics Requirements Regarding Independence

The engagement team, others in our firm, as appropriate, and our firm have complied with all relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence.

Significant Risks Identified

Our audit planning and risk assessment identified management override of controls and improper revenue
recognition as significant audit risks, both of which are presumptive risks in financial statement audits. Our audit
procedures were designed to address these risks and no matters of concern were identified as a result of our
procedures.



DRAFT

Qualitative Aspects of the Organizations’ Significant Accounting Practices
Significant Accounting Policies

Management has the responsibility to select and use appropriate accounting policies. A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by the Organizations are included in Note 1 to each entity’s financial statements.
There have been no initial selections of accounting policies and no changes in significant accounting policies or
their application during 2023. No matters have come to our attention that would require us, under professional
standards, to inform you about (1) the methods used to account for significant unusual transactions and (2) the
effect of significant accounting policies in controversial or emerging areas for which there is a lack of authoritative
guidance or consensus.

Significant Accounting Estimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on
management’s current judgments. Those judgments are normally based on knowledge and experience about past
and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive
because of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting
them may differ markedly from management’s current judgments. The most sensitive accounting estimates
affecting each entity’s financial statements are:

Establishing allowances for uncollectible ioans
Depreciable lives and methods

Valuation of other assets

Valuation of leases receivable and payable

Management’s estimates of the above are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and
current events and assumptions about future events. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to
develop the estimates above and determined that they are reasonable in relation to each entity’s financial
statements taken as a whole.

Financial Statement Disclosures

Certain financial statement disclosures involve significant judgment and are particularly sensitive because of their
significance to financial statement users. We evaluated all disclosures in relation to each entity’s financial
statements as a whole and determined that they are reasonable.

Significant Difficulties Encountered During the Audit
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management relating to the performance of the audits.
Uncorrected and Corrected Misstatements

For purposes of this communication, professional standards also require us to accumulate all known and likely
misstatements identified during the audit, other than those that we believe are trivial, and communicate them to
the appropriate level of management. Further, professional standards require us to also communicate the effect of
uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods on the relevant classes of transactions, account balances or
disclosures, and the financial statements as a whole. We discovered no such misstatements during our audit.

In addition, professional standards require us to communicate to you all material, corrected misstatements that
were brought to the attention of management as a result of our audit procedures. No audit adjustments were
made for the year ended December 31, 2023.



DRAFT

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a matter, whether
or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, which could be
significant to each entity’s financial statements or the auditors’ report. No such disagreements arose during the
course of the audits.

Circumstances that Affect the Form and Content of the Auditors’ Report

For purposes of this letter, professional standards require that we communicate any circumstances that affect the
form and content of our auditors’ reports. There were no modifications to the audit opinions.

Representations Requested from Management

We have requested certain written representations from management, which are included in the management
representation letter dated consistent with the financial statement audit report date.

Management’s Consultations with Other Accountants

in some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters.
Management informed us that, and to our knowledge, there were no consultations with other accountants
regarding auditing and accounting matter.

Other Significant Matters, Findings, or Issues

In the normal course of our professional association with the Organizations, we generally discuss a variety of
matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, significant events or
transactions that occurred during the year, business conditions affecting the Organizations, and business plans and
strategies that may affect the risks of material misstatement. None of the matters discussed resuited in a condition
to our appointment as the Organizations’ auditors.

Other Matters

We applied certain limited procedures to Management’s Discussion and Analysis that supplements the basic
financial statements for each entity. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods
of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the financial statements.
We did not audit the RS! and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI.

With respect to each of the supplementary information accompanying the financial statements of each entity, we
made certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the schedules
to determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, the methods of preparing them has not changed from the prior period, and the schedules are
appropriate and complete in relation to our audits of the Organizations’ financial statements. We compared and
reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves.

This information is intended solely for the use of the Finance & Audit Committees, Board of Directors, and
management of the Organizations. It is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these
specified parties.



DRAFT

MANAGEMENT LETTER

March 21, 2024

The Finance & Audit Committees, Boards of Directors, and Management
Erie County Industrial Development Agency and related entities

In planning and performing our audits of the financial statements of Erie County Industrial Development Agency
(ECIDA), Buffalo and Erie County Regional Development Corporation, and Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land
Development Corporation (collectively, the Organizations), business-type activities, as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2023, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, we
considered the Organizations’ internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the
separate financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Organizations’ internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph and was not
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses. In addition, because of
inherent limitations in internal control, including the possibility of management override of controls,
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected by such controls. Given these limitations,
during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Finance & Audit
Committees, Boards of Directors, and others within the Organizations. It is not intended to be, and should not be,
used by anyone other than these specified parties.



DRAFT

ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2023



DRAFT

ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

Table of Contents

December 31, 2023

Independent Auditors’ Report

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Financial Statements
Balance Sheets
Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
Statements of Cash Flows
Notes to Financial Statements

Supplementary Information
Combining Schedule of Balance Sheets
Combining Schedule of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an
Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance with Section 2925(3}){f) of the New York State Public Authorities Law



DRAFT

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Board of Directors
Erie County Industrial Development Agency

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA), a business-type
activity, as of and for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise ECIDA’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of ECIDA as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the changes in its financial position and cash flows for the years
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP).

Basis For Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
{GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of ECIDA, and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audits. We believe the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with GAAP, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about ECIDA’s ability to continue as a going concern for
one year beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise
substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

-10-



DRAFT

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:
e  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of ECIDA’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

o  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about ECIDA’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of
time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that
we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

GAAP requires that management’s discussion and analysis be presented to supplement the financial statements.
Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We
have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with GAAS,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express
an opinion or provide any assurance.

-11-



DRAFT

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively
comprise ECIDA’s basic financial statements. The accompanying supplementary information as listed in the table of
contents is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with GAAS. In our opinion, the accompanying supplementary information is fairly stated
in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 21, 2024 on our
consideration of ECIDA’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of ECIDA’s internal control over financial reporting or
on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering ECIDA’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

March 21, 2024

-12-



DRAFT

ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

Management’s Discussion and Analysis {unaudited)

December 31, 2023

Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA) is a public benefit corporation that provides tax incentives, financing
programs, international trade assistance, land development, and other economic development services to the City of Buffalo (the
City) and Erie County, New York (the County). In accomplishing its mission, ECIDA does not receive any operational funding from
Federal, State, County, or local sources. Instead, ECIDA relies primarily upon administrative fees charged to those businesses that

utilize its products and services.

As a public benefit corporation, ECIDA is required to comply with accounting standards issued by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB). Under GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements - Management’s Discussion and Analysis - for
State and Local Governments, ECIDA is required to present management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) to assist readers in
understanding ECIDA’s financial performance.

In compliance with GASB Statement No. 34, we present the attached overview and analysis of the financial activities of ECIDA as
of and for the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022, and 2021. We encourage readers to consider the information presented
here in conjunction with ECIDA’s audited financial statements.

Basic Overview of the Financial Statements
Included in this report are the following financial statements:

1} Balance Sheets - The balance sheets show the reader what ECIDA owns (assets and deferred outflows of resources) and
what ECIDA owes (liabilities and deferred inflows of resources). ECIDA’s assets and deferred outflows of resources less
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources (net position) can be one way to measure ECIDA’s financial position. Over
time, increases or decreases in ECIDA’s net position are an indicator of whether its financial health is improving or

deteriorating.

2) Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position - This statement reports ECIDA’s operating and
nonoperating revenues by major source along with operating and nonoperating expenses. The difference between total
revenues and expenses can be one way to measure ECIDA’s operating results for the year.

3) Statements of Cash Flows - This statement reports ECIDA’s cash flows from operating, capital and related financing, and
investing activities.

Financial Highlights

e ECIDA’s net position decreased by 2% from $20,638,000 in 2022 to $20,140,000 in 2023.

e ECIDA experienced a decrease in net position of $498,000 in 2023 compared to $228,000 in 2022.

e Administrative fees, a key source of revenue for ECIDA, increased 6% from $1,656,000 in 2022 to $1,750,000 in 2023,
e  Operating expenses increased 4% from $2,946,000 in 2022 to $3,077,000 in 2023.

-13-



DRAFT

Condensed Comparative Financial Statements

Balance Sheets at December 31:

in thousands 2023 2022 $ Change % Change 2021
Assets
Cash S 13,704 $ 18,401 S (4,697) (26%) S 18,638
Receivables and other assets 11,234 2,467 8,767 355% 3,121
Capital assets, net 1,507 1,166 341 29% 1,422
Restricted cash 9,777 9,524 253 3% 8,870
Total assets 36,222 31,558 4,664 15% 32,051
Liabilities
Other liabilities S 5741 S 958 § 4,783 499% $ 1,614
Funds held on behalf of others 9,516 9,318 198 2% 8,718
Total liabilities 15,257 10,276 4,981 48% 10,332
Deferred inflows of resources — leases 825 644 181 28% 853
Net position
Net investment in capital assets 985 1,040 (55) (5%) 1,134
Restricted 11,116 11,332 {216) (2%) 11,435
Unrestricted 8,039 8,266 (227) {3%) 8,297
Total net position 20,140 20,638 (498) (2%) 20,866
Total liabilities, deferred inflows,
and net position S 36,222 § 31,558 S 4,664 15% § 32,051

Receivables and other assets include grants receivable, affiliate receivables, leases receivable, prepaid expenses, and venture
capital investments. The increase of $8,767,000 is the result of significant increases in grants receivable and affiliate receivables.
ECIDA was awarded three new grants totaling $4,420,000 in 2023, Affiliate receivables increased from $644,000 to $4,869,000
due to funds borrowed by the Buffalo & Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation {ILDC) for development costs that
will be reimbursed through grant agreements. The decrease from 2021 to 2022 was the result of cash received from grant
agreements, building leases, and affiliates.

Restricted cash consists primarily of funds held on behalf of others including the Erie County Regional Redevelopment Fund,
Buffalo Brownfields Redevelopment Fund, and PILOT Increment Financing (PIF) funds. The $253,000 or 3% increase from 2022 is
primarily due to PILOT and PIF receipts of $1,836,000 and interest of $223,000 exceeding required disbursements to municipalities
of $662,000 and eligible project funds of $1,199,000. Restricted cash also includes $261,000 for the Railway Trust Fund, which
increased $54,000 from 2022. The $654,000, or 7%, increase in 2022 over 2021 was due to receipts in excess of required
disbursements to municipalities.

The $4,783,000 increase in other liabilities is due to increases in unearned revenue of $4,121,000, lease payable of $395,000, and
accounts payable of $268,000. Unearned revenue is offset by grants receivable and is recognized as special project revenue as
eligible activities are performed. ECIDA’s office space lease expired during 2023 and a new lease is in effect through July 2027.
The lease payable is the present value of lease payments through the end of the lease. The decrease from 2021 to 2022 was due
to decreases in accounts payable, unearned revenue, and leases payable.

ECIDA has capitalized the present value of future lease receipts as a lease receivable and deferred inflow of resources. The lease
receivable is reduced as cash is received and the deferred inflow of resources is recognized as rental income over the term of the
lease contract. The $181,000 or 28% increase in deferred inflows of resources related to leases is due to a new lease agreement
signed in 2023 to extend Buffalo Urban Development Corporation’s sublease for a portion of ECIDA’s office lease through July
2027.

-14-



DRAFT

Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position for the years ended December 31:

in thousands 2023 2022 S Change % Change 2021
Operating revenues:
Administrative fees s 1,750 $ 1,656 $ 94 6% S 2,419
Affiliate management fees 287 466 {179} (38%) 419
Rental and other 475 438 37 8% 405
Total operating revenues 2,512 2,560 (48) (2%) 3,243
Operating expenses:
Salaries and benefits 2,035 1,999 36 2% 1,905
General and administrative 794 687 107 16% 564
Depreciation, amortization, and other 248 260 (12} (5%} 265
Total operating expenses 3,077 2,946 131 4% 2,734
Special project grants:
Revenues 518 966 {(448) (46%) 5,484
Expenses (855) (896) 41 (5%) (6,228)
Total special project grants (337) 70 (407) (581%) (744)
Operating loss {902) (316) (586) 185% (235)
Nonoperating revenue (expense), net 404 88 316 359% 40
Change in net position (498) (228) {270) 118% (195)
Net position — beginning 20,638 20,866 (228) (1%) 21,098
Restatement — GASB 87 - - - N/A (37)
Net position — ending S 20,140 S 20,638 S (498) (2%) S 20,866

Revenue Analysis

Administrative fees are primarily collected from the issuance of various forms of tax abatements and tax-exempt financing. Fees
for tax abatement are based on the amount of project investment. ECIDA relies on these fees to cover its operating costs; however,
the amount of fees collected in any given year is largely dependent upon the local economic climate and the timing between
project approval and project commencement. Administrative fees increased $94,000 or 6% in 2023 primarily due to an increase
in the value of induced projects. Administrative fees were collected related to 22 different projects in 2023, down from 25 in 2022.
In 2021, administrative fees were collected related to 31 projects.

Affiliate management fees represent salaries and overhead costs charged to ECIDA affiliates for services that ECIDA’s employees
provide to these organizations. ECIDA’s affiliates include Buffalo & Erie County Regional Development Corporation (RDC), a lending
corporation, and ILDC, a land development corporation. Affiliate management fees decreased $179,000 in 2023 due to a decrease
in chargeable hours.

Rental and other income is primarily comprised of rental income for building leases and rental income from the Port Terminal
Facility.

Expense Analysis

Salaries and benefits increased $36,000, or 2%, in 2023 due to employee raises and a new employee hired in December 2023. In
2022, salaries and benefits increased $94,000 from 2021 due to employee raises and performance incentives.

-15-



DRAFT

General and administrative expenses increased $107,000 from $687,000 in 2022 to $794,000 in 2023 primarily due to refunds of
$176,000 for previously recognized administrative fee revenue. The final project budget or incentive package was below initial
estimates and the fee due to ECIDA was reduced accordingly. In 2022, general and administrative expenses increased $123,000
primarily due to an $89,000 refund for previously recognized administrative fee revenue.

Net special project grants decreased from net income of $70,000 in 2022 to a net loss of $337,000 in 2023. In 2023, grant expenses
exceeded grant revenues due to carrying costs related to ILDC properties of $210,000 and other grants from the Agency’s Urban
Development Action Grant (UDAG) fund. In 2022, grant revenues mostly equaled grant expenses as ECIDA passed through Erie
County funds of $385,000 to ILDC and $198,000 of CARES Act funds to RDC.

Net nonoperating revenue increased $316,000in 2023 due to higher interest income earned on ECIDA’s deposit accounts. Interest
income of 5412,000 was offset by $8,000 of interest expense related to ECIDA’s office lease. In 2022, net nonoperating revenue
increased $48,000.

Budget Analysis

ECIDA prepares an annual budget which was presented and approved by the Board of Directors on Qctober 26, 2022. The
following table presents an analysis of ECIDA’s performance compared to the approved 2023 budget.

Variance
in thousands Actual Budget S %
Operating revenues:
Administrative fees $ 1,750 S 1,800 S (50} (3%)
Affiliate management fees 287 500 (213) {43%)
Rental and other 475 504 {(29) (6%)
Total operating revenues 2,512 2,804 (292) {10%)
Operating expenses:
Salaries and benefits 2,035 2,096 (61) (3%)
General and administrative 794 734 60 8%
Depreciation, amortization, and other 248 129 119 92%
Total operating expenses 3,077 2,959 118 4%
Operating loss before special project grants {565) (155) {410) 265%
Special project grants:
Revenues 518 982 (464) (47%)
Expenses (855) (1,770) 915 {52%6)
Total special project grants (337) (788) 451 (57%)
Nonoperating revenue, net 404 6 398 6,633%
Change in net position S (498) S (937) $ 439 (47%)

Budget to Actual Analysis

Overall, ECIDA’s decrease in net position for 2023 was below the budgeted decrease by $439,000. Administrative fees were 3%
less than the budgeted amount due mainly to timing of tax incentive project closings. Total operating expenses were $118,000
over budget mostly due to administrative fee refunds discussed previously. Net special project grants had a positive variance of
$451,000. Nonoperating revenue includes interest income on cash deposits and was $398,000 greater than expected.

-16-



DRAFT

Economic Factors Impacting ECIDA

ECIDA relies extensively upon administrative fees to generate the majority of its annual revenue. As a result of current uncertain
economic conditions and potential legislative/board actions, ECIDA’s ability to generate the administrative fees necessary to
support operations may be limited in the future.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of ECIDA’s finances. Questions concerning any of the financial

information provided in this report should be addressed to the CFO of ECIDA at {716) 856-6525. General information relating to
ECIDA can be found at its website, www.ecidany.com.

-17-



DRAFT

ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

Balance Sheets

December 31, 2023 2022
Assets
Current assets:
Cash $ 13,704,390 $ 18,400,853
Receivables
Affiliates 4,819,703 471,011
Grants 4,869,218 644,183
Leases 215,555 200,724
Other 134,930 111,376
Prepaid expenses 78,600 89,319
23,822,396 19,917,466
Noncurrent assets:
Leases receivable 609,283 443,203
Capital assets, net (Note 4) 1,506,504 1,166,361
Other assets 506,886 506,886
Restricted cash 9,777,101 9,524,124
12,399,774 11,640,574

$ 36,222,170 $ 31,558,040

Liabilities and Net Position

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable S 304,991 S 37,003
Lease payable 136,321 126,166
Accrued expenses 150,339 151,856
Unearned revenue 4,764,541 643,647
5,356,192 958,672
Noncurrent liabilities:
Lease payable 385,321 -
Funds held on behalf of others 9,516,218 9,317,525
9,901,539 9,317,525
Deferred inflows of resources:
Deferred inflows of resources related to leases 824,838 643,927
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 984,862 1,040,195
Restricted 11,116,183 11,331,382
Unrestricted 8,038,556 8,266,339
20,139,601 20,637,916

$ 36,222,170 $ 31,558,040

See accompanying notes.

-18-



DRAFT

ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

For the years ended December 31, 2023 2022
Operating revenues:
Administrative fees $ 1,749,882 $ 1,656,279
Affiliate management fees 286,799 465,692
Rental income 316,002 308,450
Other 159,191 129,643
Total operating revenues 2,511,874 2,560,064
Operating expenses:
Salaries and benefits 2,035,058 1,999,345
General and administrative 794,392 687,125
Depreciation and amortization 204,228 258,776
Other 43,207 1,354
Total operating expenses 3,076,885 2,946,600
Operating loss before special project grants (565,011) {386,536)
Special project grants:
Revenues 517,991 965,710
Expenses (855,228) (895,280)
(337,237) 70,430
Operating loss (902,248) {316,106)
Nonoperating revenues:
Interest income 412,432 102,271
Interest expense (8,499) (14,419)
403,933 87,852
Change in net position (498,315) (228,254)
Net position - beginning 20,637,916 20,866,170
Net position - ending $ 20,139,601 S 20,637,916

See accompanying notes.

-19-

10



DRAFT

ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended December 31, 2023 2022
Operating activities:
Cash from fees and rental income S 2,065,884 S 1,964,729
Cash from special project grants 413,850 955,653
Cash received from (paid to) other sources (3,926,256) 880,247
Payments to employees, suppliers, and other {2,595,467) (3,011,366)
Payments for special project grants (855,228) (895,280)
Net operating activities (4,897,217) (106,017)

Capital and related financing activities:

Purchases of capital assets (11,643) (2,959)
Principal payments on leases (137,252) {162,214)
Interest payments on leases (8,499) (14,419)
Interest received on leases 43,976 42,673
Net capital and related financing activities (113,418) (136,919)
Investing activities:
Change in restricted cash, net {54,284) (54,183)
Interest received 368,456 59,598
Net investing activities 314,172 5,415
Net change in cash {4,696,463) (237,521)
Cash - beginning 18,400,853 18,638,374
Cash - ending S 13,704,390 S 18,400,853

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash flows
from operating activities:
Operating loss $ (902,248) S (316,106)
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash flows
from operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 204,228 258,776
Changes in other assets and liabilities:
Receivables (8,597,281) 504,202
Prepaid expenses 10,719 (59,772)
Accounts payable 267,988 (265,015)
Accrued expenses (1,517) 1,245
Unearned revenue 4,120,894 (229,347)
Net operating activities $ (4,897,217) $ (106,017)
See accompanying notes. 11

-20-



DRAFT

ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

Notes to Financial Statements

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:
Nature of Organization

Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA} was
created in 1970 by an act of the Legislature of the State of
New York {the State) for the purpose of encouraging
financially sound companies to establish themselves and
prosper in Erie County (the County).

ECIDA has related party relationships with Buffalo and Erie
County Industrial Land Development Corporation (ILDC) and
Buffalo and Erie County Regional Development Corporation
(RDC). All three entities are managed by the same personnel
and RDC currently shares a common board with ECIDA. These
entities share the same mission, which is to provide the
resources that encourage investment, innovation, workforce
development, and international trade resulting in a successful
business climate focused on growth, economic stability, job
creation, and job retention for businesses and individuals
which improves the quality of life for the residents of the
region.

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements of ECIDA have been prepared in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to
governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards
Board is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.

Financial Reporting Entity

In evaluating how to define ECIDA for financial reporting
purposes, management has considered all potential
component units. The decision to include a potential
component unit in ECIDA’s reporting entity is based on
accounting standards which consider legal standing, fiscal
dependency, and financial accountability. Based on the
application of these criteria, there are no additional entities
included in ECIDA’s financial statements.

-21-

Measurement Focus

ECIDA reports as a special-purpose government engaged in
business-type activities. Business-type activities are those that
are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external
parties for goods or services. ECIDA's financial statements are
reported using the economic resources measurement focus and
the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when
earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred.

ECIDA's policy for defining operating activities in the
statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net
position are those that generally result from exchange
transactions such as payments received for services and
payments made to purchase those goods or services. Certain
other transactions are reported as nonoperating activities and
include interest income, interest expense, and grants resulting
from nonexchange transactions. Grants are recognized as
receivable and unearned revenue at the time awarded and as
revenue when all eligibility requirements imposed by the
provider have been satisfied. ECIDA receives special project
grants from various Federal, State, and County sources.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial
statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Cash

Cash management is governed by State laws and as
established by ECIDA’s written policies. Cash resources must
be deposited in FDIC-insured commercial banks or trust
companies located within the State. Policies permit
management to use demand accounts and certificates of
deposit for daily operating funds. Investments are limited to
obligations of the United States Treasury and its Agencies,
repurchase agreements, and obligations of the State or its
localities.

12



DRAFT

Collateral is required for demand and time deposits and
certificates of deposit not covered by Federal Deposit
Insurance. Obligations that may be pledged as collateral
include obligations of the United States and its agencies and
obligations of the State and its municipalities and school
districts.

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank
failure, ECIDA’s deposits may not be returned to it. At
December 31, 2023 and 2022, ECIDA’s bank deposits were
fully collateralized by FDIC coverage and securities held by the
pledging institution’s agent in ECIDA’s name.

Loans Receivable

Loans receivable are stated at the principal amount
outstanding, net of an allowance for uncollectible loans. The
allowance method is used to compute the provision for
uncollectible loans.

Determination of the balance of the allowance for
uncollectible loans is based on an analysis of the loan
portfolio and reflects an amount that, in management's
judgment, is adequate to provide for potential loan losses.
Loans are written off when, in management’s judgment, no
legal recourse is available to collect the amount owed.

ECIDA previously provided a loan to a manufacturing company
that would be forgiven as the company met certain criteria. At
December 31, 2023 and 2022, the entire loan is reserved with
$100,000 instaliments forgiven annually through 2026 as the
borrower satisfies the loan requirements.

Capital Assets

Capital assets are recorded at cost. Depreciation is provided
over estimated useful lives using the straight-line method.
Maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred; significant
improvements are capitalized.

Capitalization thresholds to determine which asset purchases
are added to capital accounts and the estimated useful lives
of capital assets are:

Estimated
Capitalization Useful Life in
Policy Years
Buildings and improvements $ 1,000 5-40
Furniture and equipment $ 1,000 3-10

-22-

Rentol Property:

In 1989, ECIDA developed a public warehouse and trans-
shipment facility (the Port Terminal Facility) at the Gateway
Metroport facility in the City of Lackawanna. The Port
Terminal Facility provides enclosed storage facilities and
materials handling services for the trans-shipment of goods by
water, rail, and truck. The facility is owned by ECIDA and is
operated by Gateway Trade Center, Inc. Port Terminal Facility
rental property assets are fully depreciated. ECIDA receives a
percentage of annual Excess Cash Flow, as defined, from the
operations at the Port Terminal Facility.

ECIDA also owns its former office space at 143 Genesee
Street. This property is recorded at cost and leased to a third
party (Note 7).

Other Assets

Other assets include venture capital investments made by
ECIDA in order to spur local economic growth. Venture capital
investments are recorded at the lesser of cost or fair market
value as determined by management’s estimates based on
available financial information.

Net Position
Net position consists of the following components:

o Net investment in capital assets — consists of capital assets,
net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by outstanding
balances of any related debt obligations attributable to the
acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

e Restricted — consists of restricted assets reduced by
related liabilities. Restrictions are imposed by the U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development’s Urban
Development Action Grant (UDAG) program.

e Unrestricted — the net amount of assets, deferred outflows
of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources
that are not included in the determination of net
investment in capital assets or the restricted component of
net position and therefore are available for general use by
ECIDA.

13



DRAFT

Tax Incentive Transactions

ECIDA maintains an economic development incentive
program to provide sales, property, and/or mortgage
recording tax benefits for qualified construction, renovation,
or expansion projects or other economic development
activities within Erie County. Under this program, ECIDA may
take title to or a leasehold interest in the real and/or personal
property involved in the project for the term of the incentive
period. ECIDA simultaneously leases the property under a
lease agreement to the company undertaking the project
(lessee). ECIDA receives administrative fees from the lessee
for providing these tax incentives which are recognized
according to the terms of the fee agreement.

ECIDA is an issuer of tax-exempt bond financing for qualified
manufacturers and low-income housing projects which meet
the definition of conduit debt obligations. These bonds are
obligations of the borrower and secured by the assets they
finance. ECIDA receives bond issuance fees from the borrower
for providing this service which is recognized according to the
terms of the fee agreement. ECIDA also has a shared services
agreement with ILDC under which administrative and staffing
services are provided to ILDC in connection with its bond
issuances to nonprofit organizations in exchange for the
related bond issuance fees received by ILDC. At December 31,
2023 and 2022, previously issued bonds have an aggregate
outstanding balance of $574,130,953 and $540,645,622, none
of which is recognized as a liability of ECIDA.

ECIDA received $10,000 and $105,000 in administrative fees
from ILDC in 2023 and 2022.

2. Special Project Grants:

Bethlehem Shoreline Enhancement — ECIDA received a grant
from New York State Department of State in the amount of
$122,825 in June 2020 to support the construction and
administration of Shoreline Trail enhancements on the former
Bethlehem Steel property.

Bethlehem Water and Sewer Design — ECIDA received a grant
from Erie County in the amount of $700,000 in July 2020 to
support the design, engineering, and construction
administration of water and sewer utility extensions and
upgrades on the former Bethlehem Steel property.

Bethlehem Railroad Relocation — ECIDA received a grant from
Erie County in the amount of $600,000 in June 2023 to
support the relocation of rail infrastructure at the former
Bethlehem Steel Property.

-23-

Buffalo Southern Railroad — ECIDA received a $1,703,553
grant from New York State Department of Transportation
{NYSDOT) in January 2023 and a $250,000 grant from Erie
County in July 2023 to support the restoration of five bridges
and seven miles of track on the Buffalo Southern Railroad.

DL&W Lancaster Industrial Track Improvement — ECIDA
received a $1,616,470 grant from NYSDOT in April 2023 and a
$250,000 grant from Erie County in September 2023 to
support the restoration of the DL&W Lancaster Industrial
Track.

The following is a summary of grants receivable at December
31:

2023 2022
Bethlehem Shoreline Enhancement S 92,119 § 92,119
Bethlehem Water and Sewer Design 356,936 545,566

Buffalo Southern Railroad - 2017
PFRAP Rail Improvement 140 140

Sumitomo Dunlop Rail - PFRAP - 6,358

Bethlehem Railroad Relocation 600,000 -

Buffalo Southern Railroad 1,953,553 -
DL&W Lancaster Industrial Track

Improvement 1,866,470 -

S 4,869,218 $ 644,183

The following is a summary of unearned revenue at December
31:

2023 2022

Bethlehem Shoreline Enhancement  $ 77,652 $ 108,152

Bethlehem Water and Sewer Design 267,335 535,495

Bethlehem Railroad Relocation 600,000 -

Buffalo Southern Railroad 1,953,084 -
DL&W Lancaster Industrial Track

Improvement 1,866,470 -

S 4,764,541 $ 643,647

3. Funds Held on Behalif of Others:

ECIDA holds cash for various development activities. ECIDA

disburses these funds when given the appropriate
authorization. The funds include:
2023 2022

Erie County Regional

Redevelopment Fund $ 1,624,407 $ 1,820,634
Buffalo Brownfields

Redevelopment Fund 236,191 452,106
Jemal’'s Seneca Fund 794,606 427,340
Seneca Street Corridor Fund 3,086,042 2,387,879
Main Street Improvement Fund 3,774,972 4,229,566

S 9,516,218 $ 9,317,525

Restricted cash also includes $260,883 and $206,599 as of
December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, for the Railway
Trust Fund for activities related to two Erie County shortline
railroads.

14



4. Capital Assets:

DRAFT

Balance Retirements/ Balance
January 1, 2023 Increases Reclassifications December 31, 2023
Land S 167,400 S - S - S 167,400
Depreciable capital assets:
Land improvements 1,109,345 - - 1,109,345
Buildings 2,747,485 - - 2,747,489
Furniture and equipment 470,145 11,643 - 481,788
Total depreciable assets 4,326,979 11,643 - 4,338,622
Less accumulated depreciation:
Land improvements {934,700) {30,033) - {964,733)
Buildings {(2,062,507) (36,043) - {2,098,550)
Furniture and equipment (441,423) (15,433) - (456,856)
Total accumulated depreciation {3,438,630) {81,509) - (3,520,139}
Total depreciable assets, net 888,349 (69,866) - 818,483
Right-to-use lease assets:
Building 737,415 532,728 (737,415) 532,728
Accumulated amortization (626,803) {122,719) 737,415 (12,107)
Total right-to-use assets, net 110,612 410,009 - 520,621
$ 1,166,361 S 340,143 S - S 1,506,504
Balance Retirements/ Balance
January 1, 2022 Increases Reclassifications December 31, 2022
Land ) 167,400 S - S - S 167,400
Depreciable capital assets:
Land improvements 1,106,386 2,959 - 1,109,345
Buildings 2,747,489 - - 2,747,489
Furniture and equipment 470,145 - - 470,145
Total depreciable assets 4,324,020 2,959 - 4,326,979
Less accumulated depreciation:
Land improvements (879,876) (54,824) - (934,700)
Buildings (2,026,464) (36,043) - (2,062,507)
Furniture and equipment {420,997) {20,426) - (441,423)
Total accumulated depreciation (3,327,337) {111,293) - (3,438,630)
Total depreciable assets, net 996,683 (108,334) - 888,349
Right-to-use lease assets:
Building 737,415 - - 737,415
Accumulated amortization {479,320) (147,483) - (626,803)
Total right-to-use assets, net 258,095 (147,483) - 110,612
S 1,422,178 S (255,817) S - S 1,166,361

-24-

15



DRAFT

S. Related Party Transactions:

ECIDA historically allocated a portion of personnel and rental
costs to its affiliates, RDC and ILDC. In 2023, ECIDA chose to
discontinue allocation of personnel and overhead costs to
ILDC unless a corresponding revenue source is identified.
ECIDA earned $286,799 and $465,692 in affiliate management
fees for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022.
Management fees and receivables by affiliate are as follows:

Management Fees Receivables
2023 2022 2023 2022
RDC S 286,799 S 288,468 $ 300,328 S 291,289
ILDC - 177,224 4,519,375 179,722
S 286,799 S 465692 $ 4,819,703 $ 471,011

In 2023, ECIDA provided ILDC with $4,477,770 to temporarily
finance various projects. These funds are expected to be
repaid when ILDC receives reimbursement from grant
sources.

In 2023 and 2022, Erie County provided $129,000 and
$385,000, respectively, to ECIDA as a subrecipient of
Community Development Block Grant funds. These funds
were then transferred to ILDC for its Erie County BDF loan
program. These amounts are included in special project grant
revenues and expenses in the accompanying statements of
revenues, expenses, and changes in net position.

6. Leases:

ECIDA, as lessee, entered into a non-cancelable lease for
office space through July 31, 2027 and recognized a right-to-
use lease asset at the present value of $532,728 using a
discount rate of 5%. The lease requires annual minimum
payments of $159,307 and utility charges that are determined
on an annual basis. Principal and interest due in 2024 total
$136,321 and $22,986, respectively.

ECIDA entered into a sublease agreement with Buffalo Urban
Development Corporation for a portion of their office space
through July 31, 2027. ECIDA recognized $24,291 and $23,153
in gross rental income, including interest at 5.0%, in 2023 and
2022. Annual receipts are expected to total $21,046, plus
utilities, through 2027.

ECIDA, as lessor, has entered into a non-cancelable lease for
its former office through July 31, 2027. ECIDA recognized
$231,700 and $220,386 in gross rental income, including
interest at 5.0%, in 2022 and 2021. Annual receipts are
expected to total $230,856, plus utilities, through 2027.

-25-

7. Pension:

ECIDA maintains a defined contribution simplified employee
pension (SEP) plan covering all of its employees. Employees
are eligible to participate six months after employment, with
employer contributions vesting immediately. During 2023
and 2022, ECIDA made discretionary contributions of 12% of
eligible employees’ salaries. ECIDA’s expense for contributing
to the plan for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022
amounted to $177,368 and $162,663 respectively. Employees
are also permitted to participate in the New York State
Deferred Compensation Plan but ECIDA does not make
contributions to this plan.

8. Risk Management:

ECIDA purchases commercial insurance for various risks of
loss due to torts, theft, damage, injuries to employees, and
natural disasters in addition to insurance purchased to
indemnify directors and officers. Settled claims resulting from
these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage
in any of the past three years.

9. Commitments and Contingencies:
Grants

ECIDA receives financial assistance from federal, state, and
local agencies irr the form of grants and fiduciary agreements.
Managing these funds generally requires compliance with the
terms and conditions specified in the agreements and may be
subject to audit by the grantor agencies. Disallowed claims
resulting from such audits could become a liability of ECIDA.
Based on prior experience, management expects any such
amounts to be immaterial.

Litigation
ECIDA is subject to claims and lawsuits that arise in the
ordinary course of business. In the opinion of management,

these claims and lawsuits will not have a material adverse
effect upon the financial position of ECIDA.

16



DRAFT

ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

Supplementary information
Combining Schedule of Balance Sheets

December 31, 2023
General UDAG
Account Account Total
Assets
Current assets:
Cash S 7,472,224 S 6,232,166 S 13,704,390
Receivables
Affiliates 341,933 4,477,770 4,819,703
Grants 4,869,218 - 4,869,218
Leases 215,555 - 215,555
Other 134,930 - 134,930
Prepaid expenses 78,600 - 78,600
13,112,460 10,709,936 23,822,396
Noncurrent assets:
Leases receivable 609,283 - 609,283
Capital assets, net 1,506,504 - 1,506,504
Other assets 100,639 406,247 506,886
Restricted cash 9,777,101 - 9,777,101
11,993,527 406,247 12,399,774

Liabilities and Net Position
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Lease payable
Accrued expenses
Unearned revenue

Noncurrent liabilities:
Lease payable
Funds held on behalf of others

Deferred inflows of resources:
Deferred inflows of resources related to leases

Net position:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

$ 25,105,987

S 11,116,183

$ 36,222,170

s 304,991 $ -8 304,991
136,321 - 136,321
150,339 - 150,339

4,764,541 - 4,764,541
5,356,192 - 5,356,192
385,321 - 385,321
9,516,218 - 9,516,218
9,901,539 - 9,901,539
824,838 - 824,838
984,862 - 984,862

- 11,116,183 11,116,183
8,038,556 - 8,038,556
9,023,418 11,116,183 20,139,601

S 25,105,987

S 11,116,183

$ 36,222,170

-26-

17



DRAFT

ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

Supplementary Information

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

For the year ended December 31, 2023

General UDAG
Account Account Total
Operating revenues:
Administrative fees S 1,749,882 S - $§ 1,749,882
Affiliate management fees and rental income 286,799 - 286,799
Rental income 316,002 - 316,002
Other 159,191 - 159,191
Total operating revenues 2,511,874 - 2,511,874
Operating expenses:
Salaries and benefits 2,035,058 - 2,035,058
General and administrative 765,417 28,975 794,392
Depreciation and amortization 204,228 - 204,228
Other 43,207 - 43,207
Total operating expenses 3,047,910 28,975 3,076,885
Operating loss before special project grants {536,036) (28,975) {565,011)
Special project grants:
Revenues 517,991 - 517,991
Expenses (469,897) (385,331) (855,228}
48,094 (385,331) {337,237)
Operating loss (487,942) (414,306) (902,248)
Nonoperating revenues:
Interest income 213,325 199,107 412,432
Interest expense (8,499) - (8,499)
, 204,826 199,107 403,933
Change in net position (283,116) (215,199) (498,315)
Net position - beginning 9,306,534 11,331,382 20,637,916
Net position - ending $ 9,023,418 § 11,116,183 S 20,139,601

18

-27-



DRAFT

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Board of Directors
Erie County Industrial Development Agency

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Erie County Industrial Development Agency
(ECIDA), a business-type activity, as of and for the year December 31, 2023, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise ECIDA’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon
dated March 21, 2024.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered ECIDA’s internal control over
financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of ECIDA’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion
on the effectiveness of ECIDA's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may
exist that have not been identified.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether ECIDA’s financial statements are free from material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance
or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

19

-28-



DRAFT

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of ECIDA’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering ECIDA’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable
for any other purpose.

March 21, 2024

20

-29-



DRAFT

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS” REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 2925(3)(f) OF THE NEW YORK

STATE PUBLIC AUTHORITIES LAW

The Board of Directors
Erie County Industrial Development Agency

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, the
financial statements of Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA), a business-type activity, as of and for
the year ended December 31, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, and we have issued our
report thereon dated March 21, 2024.

In connection with our audit, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that ECIDA failed to comply
with §2925(3)(f) of the New York State Public Authorities Law regarding investment guidelines during the year
ended December 31, 2023. However, our audit was not directed primarily toward obtaining knowledge of such
noncompliance. Accordingly, had we performed additional procedures, other matters may have come to our
attention regarding ECIDA’s noncompliance with the above rules and regulations.

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope and results of our testing. This communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

March 21, 2024

21

-30-



DRAFT

BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY REGIONAL
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

SINGLE AUDIT REPORTING PACKAGE

DECEMBER 31, 2023

-31-



DRAFT

BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Table of Contents

December 31, 2023

Independent Auditors’ Report
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Financial Statements
Balance Sheets
Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
Statements of Cash Flows
Notes to Financial Statements

Supplementary Information
Combining Schedule of Balance Sheets
Combining Schedule of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and related notes

Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an
Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Indepéndent Auditors’ Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance
Required by the Uniform Guidance

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance with Section 2925(3)(f) of the New York State Public Authorities Law

-32-



DRAFT

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Board of Directors
Buffalo and Erie County Regional
Development Corporation

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Buffalo and Erie County Regional Development Corporation {(RDC), a
business-type activity, as of and for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise RDC’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of RDC as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the changes in its financial position and cash flows for the years
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
{GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of RDC, and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audits. We believe the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with GAAP, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about RDC’s ability to continue as a going concern for one
year beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial
doubt shortly thereafter.

-33-



DRAFT

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resuiting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:
e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

e  QObtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of RDC's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregaté, that
raise substantial doubt about RDC’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that
we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary information

GAAP requires that management’s discussion and analysis be presented to supplement the financial statements.
Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We
have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with GAAS,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express
an opinion or provide any assurance.

-34-



DRAFT

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that comprise RDC’s
basic financial statements. The accompanying supplementary information as listed in the table of contents,
including the schedule of expenditures of federal awards required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with GAAS. In our opinion, the accompanying supplementary information is fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 21, 2024 on our
consideration of RDC's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That reportis
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering RDC's
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

March 21, 2024

-35-



DRAFT

BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Management's Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)

December 31, 2023

Buffalo and Erie County Regional Development Corporation (RDC) was incorporated for the purpose of encouraging the expansion
of existing companies in target areas of Erie County (the County) by establishing a revolving loan fund (RLF). The U.S. Department
of Commerce Economic Development Administration (EDA) is the oversight body of one of RDC’s RLFs. A Loan Administration Plan
{LAP) that outlines RDC’s lending processes and goals is approved by EDA every five years. The EDA released its federal interest in
RDC’s Legacy (original) RLF during 2021. In 2020, under the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act, EDA
awarded $5 million to Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA) to capitalize a new RLF, which ECIDA sub-granted to
RDC to administer.

As a special-purpose government engaged in business-type activities, RDC is required to comply with accounting standards issued
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). Under GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements — and
Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments, RDC is required to present management’s discussion
and analysis {MD&A) to assist readers in understanding RDC's financial performance.

in compliance with GASB Statement No. 34, we present the attached overview and analysis of the financial activities of RDC as of
and for the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022, and 2021. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here
in conjunction with RDC’s audited financial statements.

Basic Overview of the Financial Statements
Included in this report are the following financial statements:

1) Balance Sheets — The balance sheets show the reader what RDC owns (assets and deferred outflows of resources) and
what RDC owes (liabilities and deferred inflows of resources). RDC's assets and deferred outflows of resources less
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources (net position) can be one way to measure RDC’s financial position. Over time,
increases or decreases in RDC’s net position are an indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating.

2) Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position — These statements report RDC's operating and
nonoperating revenues by major sources along with operating and nonoperating expenses. The difference between total
revenues and expenses can be one way to measure RDC's operating results for the year.

3) Statements of Cash Flows — These statements report RDC's cash flows from operating, capital and related financing, and
investing activities.

Financial Highlights

RDC’s net position increased from $22,175,000 in 2022 to $22,681,000 in 2023.
RDC experienced an increase in net position of $506,000 in 2023 compared to an increase of $422,000 in 2022.
Operating revenues increased 21% from $555,000 in 2022 to $673,000 in 2023.
Operating expenses increased 33% from $243,000 in 2022 to $324,000 in 2023.

-36-



DRAFT

Condensed Comparative Financial Statements:

Balance Sheets at December 31:

in thousands 2023 2022 $ Change % Change 2021
Assets
Cash $ 4,287 § 5461 5 (1,174) (21%) $ 7,790
Accounts and grants receivable - - - N/A 10
Loans receivable, net 18,709 17,104 1,605 9% 14,250
Total assets S 22,996 S 22,565 S 431 2% S 22,050
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ P 2 8 - - S -
Due to affiliate 300 291 9 3% 297
Unearned revenue 13 97 (84) (87%) N
Total liabilities 315 390 (75) (19%) 297
Net position
Restricted 4,603 4,555 48 1% 4,526
Unrestricted 18,078 17,620 458 3% 17,227
Total net position 22,681 22,175 506 2% 21,753
Total liabilities and net position $ 2299 S 22,565 S 431 2% S 22,050

RDC’s cash balance decreased 21% or $1,174,000 primarily due to loan disbursements in 2023. The cash decrease from $7,790,000
in 2021 to $5,461,000in 2022 was also a result of loan disbursements. Year over year decreases in cash correspond with year over
year increases in loans receivable.

Loans receivable relate to the RLFs operated by RDC, net of an allowance. Loans receivable increased $1,605,000 or 9% from 2022
to 2023, due to $4,450,000 of new loans closed during 2023, net of $2,845,000 of principal repayments. The increase in loans
receivable from $14,250,000 in 2021 to $17,104,000 in 2022 was due to loans disbursed in 2022.

Due to affiliate reflects the amount due to ECIDA under a shared services agreement for personnel and overhead at the end of
the year. The $9,000 increase in due to affiliate from 2022 to 2023 is mainly due to an increase to the hourly rates of ECIDA
employees. The decrease in amounts due to affiliate from $297,000 in 2021 to $291,000 in 2022 reflected a decrease in hours
spent on RDC activities by ECIDA employees.

Unearned revenue refiects a portion of the CARES Act sub-grant funds received that were not spent as of the end of the year. The
$84,000 or 87% decrease from 2022 to 2023 is due to grant revenue recognized in 2023.

-37-



DRAFT

Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position for the years ended December 31:

in thousands 2023 2022 $ Change % Change 2021
Operating revenues:
Interest from loans S 652 § 53 S 116 2% $ 447
Loan commitment fees 21 19 2 11% -
Total operating revenues 673 555 118 21% 447
Operating expenses:
General and administrative S 351§ 331 § 20 6% $ 405
Loan loss expense, net of recoveries (27) (88) 61 (69%) 418
Total operating expenses 324 243 81 33% 823
Operating income (loss) 349 312 37 12% (376)
Nonoperating revenues
Interest income 73 13 60 462% 3
Grant contributions 84 97 (13) {13%) 5,111
Total nonoperating revenues 157 110 47 43% 5,114
Change in net position S 506 S 422 S 84 20% $ 4,738

Revenue Analysis

Interest from loans is collected from borrowers in accordance with the terms of each promissory note. RDC loans bear interest at
rates ranging from 1.0% to 5.5%, in accordance with the Loan Administration Plan provisions in effect at the time the loan is
approved. Interest from loans increased $116,000, or 22%, from 2022 to 2023 because of the increase in loans receivable and
higher interest rates associated with more recent loans. Interest increased from $447,000 in 2021 to $536,000 in 2022 due to the
increase in loans receivable.

Loan commitment fees are generally charged on loans greater than $100,000. Commitment fees vary from year to year depending
on individual loan amounts. in 2023, there were four loans that incurred commitment fees of $21,000. In 2022 there were six
loans that incurred commitment fees of $19,000. In 2021, commitment fees were waived as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic.

Expense Analysis

In 2023, general and administrative expenses increased $20,000 from $331,000 to $351,000. The increase is mainly attributable
to increases in legal and marketing costs. In 2023, RDC incurred higher legal costs associated with specific loans and performed
targeted marketing of the loan funds. General and administrative expenses decreased $74,000 from 2021 to 2022 primarily due
to a spike in costs associated with the initial administration and disbursement of loans under the CARES Act RLF.

Loan loss expense, net of recoveries consists of the amount of loan loss expense in a year, net of any recoveries for loans previously
written off. In 2023, the net expense is due to reductions in the allowance of $26,000. Two loans totaling $104,900 were written
off in 2023 that were previously included in the allowance for uncollectible loans. In 2022 loan loss expense was $4,000, net of
reductions to the allowance of $92,000 due to loan recoveries. No loans were written off in 2022. Two loans that were part of the
reserve in 2021 were paid off in 2022, and the reserve on a third loan was removed due to a satisfactory payment history.

Grant contributions relate directly to amounts granted from ECIDA under the CARES Act RLF established in 2022. In 2023, $84,000
of administrative costs were incurred, compared to $97,000 in 2022.

-38-



DRAFT

Budget to Actual Analysis for the year ended December 31, 2023:

RDC prepares an annual budget which was presented and approved by the Board of Directors on October 26, 2022. The following
table presents an analysis of RDC’s performance compared to the approved 2023 budget.

in thousands Actual Budget S Variance % Variance
Operating revenues:
Interest from loans ) 652 S 630 $ 22 3%
Loan commitment fees 21 15 6 100%
Total operating revenues 673 645 28 4%
Operating expenses:
General and administrative $ 351 § 398 $ (47) (12%)
Loan loss expense, net of recoveries (27) 445 (472) {106%)
Total operating expenses 324 843 (519) (62%)
Operating income (loss) 349 (198) 547 (276%)

Nonoperating revenues

Interest income 73 1 72 7.200%
Grant contributions 84 - 84 100%
Total nonoperating revenues 157 1 156 15,600%
Change in net position S 506 S (197) S 703 {357%)

Overall, RDC exceeded its budgeted decrease in net position for 2023 by $703,000. Total operating revenue was $28,000, or 4%,
above budget due to higher than anticipated interest income from loans in 2023. Total expenses were $519,000, or 62%, below
budget. This was due mainly to the lower than expected reserve for loan losses.

Economic Factors Impacting RDC

RDC relies upon loan interest income to generate revenue for continued operations. As a result of economic conditions and
borrowers’ ability to repay, RDC’s ability to generate the income necessary to support operations may be limited in the future.

Requests for Information
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of RDC’s finances. Questions concerning any of the financial

information provided in this report should be addressed to the CFO of RDC at (716) 856-6525. General information relating to
RDC can be found on ECIDA’s website, www.ecidany.com.

-39-



DRAFT

BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Balance Sheets

December 31, 2023 2022
Assets
Current assets:
Cash S 4,287,457 S 5,460,730
Loans receivable {(Note 2) 3,856,264 3,056,101
8,143,721 8,516,831
Noncurrent assets:
Loans receivable, net (Note 2) 14,852,212 14,047,965

$ 22,995,933 S 22,564,796

Liabilities and Net Position
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable S 2,041 S 1,516
Due to affiliate (Note 3) 300,328 291,289
Unearned revenue 12,509 97,105
314,878 389,910
Net position:

Restricted 4,603,316 4,555,315
Unrestricted 18,077,739 17,619,571
22,681,055 22,174,886

$ 22,995,933 S 22,564,796

See accompanying notes.

-40-



DRAFT

BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

For the years ended December 31, 2023 2022

Operating revenues:

Interest from loans S 652,208 S 536,412
Loan commitment fees 21,250 18,625
Total operating revenues 673,458 555,037

Operating expenses:

General and administrative 351,680 331,379
Provision for uncollectible toans {recoveries), net {27,196) (88,495)
Total operating expenses 324,484 242,884
Operating income 348,974 312,153

Nonoperating revenues:

Interest income 72,599 12,974
Grant contributions 84,596 96,545
Total nonoperating revenues 157,195 109,519
Change in net position 506,169 421,672
Net position - beginning 22,174,886 21,753,214
Net position - ending $ 22,681,055 S 22,174,886

See accompanying notes. 9

-41-



BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

DRAFT

Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended December 31, 2023 2022
Operating activities:
Payments collected on loans receivable » $ 2,871,575 $ 2,047,009
Loan interest and fees 673,458 555,037
Loans awarded (4,450,000} (4,814,910)
Payments to vendors and affiliates (342,116) (330,762)
Bad debt recoveries 1,211 2,478
Net operating activities (1,245,872) (2,541,148)
Capital and related financing activities:
Grant contributions - 198,489
Investing activities:
Interest income 72,599 12,974
Change in cash (1,173,273) (2,329,685)
Cash - beginning 5,460,730 7,790,415
Cash - ending $ 4,287,457 5 5,460,730
Reconciliation of operating income
to net cash flows from operating activities:
Operating income $ 348,974 S 312,153
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
to net cash flows from operating activities
Provision for uncollectible loans (25,985) (86,017)
Changes in other assets and liabilities:
Accounts and grants receivable - 5,329
Loans receivable (1,578,425) (2,767,901)
Accounts payable 525 1,383
Due to affiliate 9,039 {6,095)
$ (1,245,872) §  (2,541,148)
10

See accompanying notes.

-42-



DRAFT

BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Notes to Financial Statements

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:
Nature of Organization

Buffalo and Erie County Regional Development Corporation
{RDC) was incorporated for the purpose of encouraging the
expansion of existing companies in target areas of the County
of Erie (the County) by establishing an Industrial Revolving
Loan Fund from which RDC makes loans to individual
companies. RDC manages two revolving loan programs
maintained under agreements or established loan
administration plans approved by the grantor governing the
management of the revolving loan program.

RDC has related party relationships with Erie County Industrial
Development Agency (ECIDA) and Buffalo and Erie County
Industrial Land Development Corporation (ILDC). All three
entities are managed by the same personnel and RDC
currently shares a common board with ECIDA. These entities
share the same mission, which is to provide the resources that
encourage investment, innovation, workforce development,
and international trade resulting in a successful business
climate focused on growth, economic stability, job creation,
and retention for businesses and individuals which improves
the quality of life for the residents of the region.

is not

In accordance with accounting standards, RDC

considered a component unit of another entity.
Basis of Presentation

The financial statements of RDC have been prepared in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to
governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards
Board is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.

-43-

Measurement Focus

RDC reports as a special-purpose government engaged in
business-type activities. Business-type activities are those that
are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external
parties for goods or services. RDC’s financial statements are
reported using the economic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded
when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue
as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider
have been satisfied.

RDC’s policy for defining operating activities in the statements
of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position are those
that generally result from exchange transactions such as
payments received for services, including interest earned on
revolving loan funds, and payments made to purchase those
goods or services. Certain other transactions are reported as
nonoperating activities and include RDC's interest income
from deposits and grants resulting from nonexchange
transactions. Grants are recognized as revenue when all
eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been
satisfied.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial
statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Cash

Cash management is governed by New York State (the State)
laws and as established by RDC’s written policies. Cash
resources must be deposited in FDIC-insured commercial
banks or trust companies located within the State.
Management is authorized to use demand accounts and
certificates of deposit. Permissible investments include
obligations of the United States Treasury and its Agencies,
repurchase agreements, and obligations of the State or its
localities.

11



DRAFT

Collateral is required for demand and time deposits and
certificates of deposit not covered by Federal Deposit
Insurance. Obligations that may be pledged as collateral
include obligations of the United States and its agencies and
obligations of the State and its municipalities and school
districts.

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank
failure, RDC’s deposits may not be returned to it. At
December 31, 2023, RDC's bank deposits were fully
collateralized by FDIC coverage and securities held by the
pledging bank’s agent in RDC’s name.

Loans Receivable

Loans receivable are stated at the principal amount
outstanding, net of an allowance for uncollectible loans. The
allowance method is used to compute the provision for
uncollectible loans.

Determination of the balance of the allowance for
uncollectible loans is based on an analysis of the loan
portfolio and reflects an amount that, in management’s
judgment, is adequate to provide for potential loan losses.
Loans are written off when, in management’s judgment, no
legal recourse is available to collect the amount owed.

Interest on loans receivable is accrued as required by the
terms of the agreement; management considers that
collection is probable based on the current economic
condition of the borrower. Interest accrual stops when
management adjusts a loan reserve to 50% or more of the
loan’s outstanding balance.

Net Position
Net position consists of two components:

e Restricted — consists of restricted assets reduced by
related liabilities. Restrictions are imposed by external
organizations such as federal or state laws.

e Unrestricted — the net amount of assets, deferred outflows
of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources
that are not included in the restricted component of net
position and therefore are available for general use.

Income Taxes

Although the financial statements are required to be reported
as a governmental entity, RDC is a 501(c)(3) not-for-profit
organization for income tax purposes and is exempt from
income taxes under §501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code.

-44-

2. Loans Receivable:

The legacy revolving loan program was originally established
through multiple grants received between 1979 and 1983
from the U.S. Economic Development Administration (EDA)
amounting to $7,000,000. Matching funds totaling $5,250,500
were also received from various sources. The EDA released its
federal interest in the legacy revolving loan fund (RLF} as of
September 30, 2021 through the Reinvigorating Lending for
the Future Act, due to the RLF operating satisfactorily for at
least seven years beyond the disbursement of grant funds.

During 2020, RDC was awarded an EDA grant (passed through
ECIDA) totaling $5,415,694 as part of the Coronavirus Aid,
Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act to establish the
CARES Act RLF to assist the region in response to the COVID-
19 pandemic. Loan terms include one year interest-free, one
year of interest-only payments, and then principal payments
begin in the third year. Unearned revenue totaled $12,509
and $97,105 as of December 31, 2023 and 2022.

Loans awarded to local businesses bear interest at rates
ranging from 1% to 5.5% with varying repayment terms. The
following is a summary of loans receivable:

2023 2022
Current status $ 19,102,476 S 17,628,952
Less allowance 394,000 524,886
18,708,476 17,104,066
Less current portion 3,856,264 3,056,101

$ 14,852,212 S 14,047,965

Following is a summary of the activity in the allowance for
uncollectible loans:

2023 2022
Balance, beginning of year S 524,886 S 610,903
Additions charged to operations - 4,415
Reduction in allowance {130,886) (90,432)
S 394,000 $ 524,886

Scheduled maturities for the next five years and thereafter
are as follows:

Principal Interest

2024 S 3856264 S 592,422
2025 3,367,825 484,254
2026 3,206,195 375,579
2027 3,016,884 268,314
2028 1,983,897 185,181
Thereafter 3,671,411 235,421

$ 19,102,476 $ 2,141,171

12



DRAFT

3. Related Party Transactions:

ECIDA allocates a portion of its personnel and overhead costs
to RDC based on a cost allocation plan. Costs allocated by
ECIDA amounted to $286,799 and $288,468 for the years
ended December 31, 2023 and 2022. Amounts owed to ECIDA
at December 31, 2023 and 2022 totaled $300,328 and
$291,289, respectively.

4. Contingencies:
Grants

RDC receives financial assistance from government agencies
in the form of grants. The expenditure of grant funds
generally requires compliance with the terms and conditions
specified in the agreements and is subject to audit by the
grantor agencies. Any disallowed claims resuiting from such
audits could become a liability of RDC. Based on prior
experience, management expects such amounts, if any, to be
immaterial.

S. Commitments:

Outstanding loan commitments approved but not yet paid
totaled $630,000 at December 31, 2023,

-45-



DRAFT

BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Supplementary Information

Combining Schedule of Balance Sheets

December 31, 2023
Legacy CARES Act
Account Account Total
Assets
Current assets:
Cash S 3,258,101 $ 1,029,356 $ 4,287,457
Loans receivable 2,978,005 878,259 3,856,264
6,236,106 1,907,615 8,143,721
Noncurrent assets:
Loans receivable, net 12,083,026 2,769,186 14,852,212
S 18,319,132 S 4,676,801 S 22,995,933
Liabilities and Net Position
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable S 1,506 $ 535 $ 2,041
Due to affiliate 239,887 60,441 300,328
Unearned revenue - 12,509 12,509
241,393 73,485 314,878
Net position:
Restricted 4,603,316 4,603,316
Unrestricted 18,077,739 - 18,077,739
18,077,739 4,603,316 22,681,055
$ 18,319,132 § 4,676,801 S 22,995,933

-46-

14



DRAFT

BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Supplementary Information

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

For the year ended December 31, 2023

Operating revenues:
Interest from loans
Loan commitment fees
Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
General and administrative
Provision for uncollectible loans (recoveries), net
Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)
Nonoperating revenues:
Interest income
Grant contributions
Total nonoperating revenues
Change in net position

Net position - beginning

Net position - ending

Legacy CARES Act
Account Account Total

S 607,701 $ 44,507 $ 652,208
21,250 - 21,250
628,951 44,507 673,458
267,084 84,596 351,680
(26,417) (779) (27,196)
240,667 83,817 324,484
388,284 (39,310) 348,974
69,884 2,715 72,599

- 84,596 84,596

69,884 87,311 157,195
458,168 48,001 506,169
17,619,571 4,555,315 22,174,886

$ 18,077,739 $ 4,603,316 S 22,681,055

-47-

15



DRAFT

BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Supplementary Information
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

For the year ended December 31, 2023

Assistance
Listing Grant Federal
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title Number Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Commerce:
Passed through Erie County Industrial
Development Agency
COVID-19 - Economic Adjustment Assistance 11.307 01-79-15022 $§ 5,235,397
See accompanying notes. 16

-48-



DRAFT

BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:
Basis of Presentation

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal
Awards (SEFA) presents the activity of all federal award
programs administered by Buffalo and Erie County Regional
Development Corporation {RDC), an entity as defined in Note
1 to RDC's basic financial statements. Federal awards received
directly from federal agencies, as well as federal awards
passed through from other governmental agencies, are
included on the SEFA.

Expenditures are calculated as required by the Uniform
Guidance or the applicable program and do not constitute
actual program disbursements. All expenditures reported on
the SEFA represent revolving loan programs.

The Economic Adjustment Assistance — CARES Act program,
administered by the EDA, specifically requires the amount on
the SEFA to be calculated as follows:

Cash $ 1,029,356
Balance of loans outstanding 4,021,445
Administrative expenses 84,596
Loan write-offs 100,000

5,235,397
Total EDA Share 100%

$ 5,235,397

-49-

Basis of Accounting

RDC uses the accrual basis of accounting for each federal
program, consistent with the financial statements.

The amounts reported as federal expenditures generally were
obtained from the appropriate federal financial reports for the
applicable programs and periods. The amounts reported in
these federal financial reports are prepared from records
maintained for each program, which are periodically
reconciled with RDC's financial reporting system.

Indirect Costs

RDC has not elected to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost
rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

17



DRAFT

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Board of Directors
Buffalo and Erie County Regional
Development Corporation

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of Buffalo and Erie County Regional Development
Corporation (RDC), a business-type activity, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2023, and the related notes
to the financial statements, which collectively comprise RDC’s basic financial statements, and have issued our
report thereon dated March 21, 2024.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered RDC’s internal contro! over
financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of RDC'’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness of RDC’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a contro! does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify al! deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that
we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that
have not been identified.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether RDC’s financial statements are free from material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance
or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

18

-50-



DRAFT

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of RDC’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering RDC’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for

any other purpose.

March 21, 2024

19

-51-



DRAFT

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

The Board of Directors
Buffalo and Erie County Regional
Development Corporation

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the compliance of Buffalo and Erie County Regional Development Corporation (RDC), a business-
type activity, with the types of compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance
Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of RDC’s major federal programs for the year
ended December 31, 2023. RDC’s major federa! programs are identified in the summary of auditors’ results section
of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, RDC complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to above that
could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended December 31,
2023.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America (GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing Standards); and the audit
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those
standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of
Compliance section of our report. We are required to be independent of RDC and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of RDC’s compliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,

implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws,
statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to RDC's federal programs.

20

-52-



DRAFT

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on RDC’s
compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing
Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not
detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a substantial
likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the
report on compliance about RDC’s compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we:

e  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis,
evidence regarding RDC’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

e  Obtain an understanding of RDC’s internal contro! over compliance relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of RDC's internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control
over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a
timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in
internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control
over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

21

-53-



DRAFT

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of

internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

March 21, 2024

22

-54-



DRAFT

BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

For the year ended December 31, 2023

Section I. Summary of Auditors’ Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditors’ report issued:

Internal contro! over financial reporting:
e Material weakness(es) identified?

o Significant deficiency{ies) identified?

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

e Material weakness(es) identified?

e Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)?

Identification of major programs:

Assistance
Listing
Name of Federal Program of Cluster Number Amount
COVID-19 - Economic Adjustment Assistance 11.307 $ 5,235,397

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs:
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

Section Il. Financial Statement Findings
No matters were reported.

Section lil. Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

No matters were reported.

-55.

Unmodified

No
None reported

No

No
None reported

Unmodified

No

$750,000

Yes

23



DRAFT

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 2925(3)(f) OF THE NEW YORK

STATE PUBLIC AUTHORITIES LAW

The Board of Directors
Buffalo and Erie County Regional
Development Corporation

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, the
financial statements of Buffalo and Erie County Regional Development Corporation (RDC), a business-type activity,
as of and for the year ended December 31, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, and we have
issued our report thereon dated March 21, 2024.

In connection with our audit, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that RDC failed to comply
with §2925(3)(f) of the New York State Public Authorities Law regarding investment guidelines during the year
ended December 31, 2023. However, our audit was not directed primarily toward obtaining knowledge of such
noncompliance. Accordingly, had we performed additional procedures, other matters may have come to our
attention regarding RDC’s noncompliance with the above rules and regulations.

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope and results of our testing. This communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

March 21, 2024

24

-56-



DRAFT

BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL
LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of County of Erie, New York)
SINGLE AUDIT REPORTING PACKAGE

DECEMBER 31, 2023

-57-



DRAFT

BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
{A Component Unit of County of Erie, New York)

Table of Contents

December 31, 2023

Independent Auditors’ Report
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Financial Statements
Balance Sheets
Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
Statements of Cash Flows
Notes to Financial Statements

Supplementary Information
Combining Schedule of Balance Sheets
Combining Schedule of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and related notes

Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an
Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance
Required by the Uniform Guidance

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance with Section 2925(3)(f) of the New York State Public Authorities Law

-58-



DRAFT

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Board of Directors
Buffalo and Erie County Industrial
Land Development Corporation

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation
(ILDC), a business-type activity and a component unit of the County of Erie, New York, as of and for the years
ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
ILDC's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of ILDC as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the changes in its financial position and cash flows for the years
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
(GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of ILDC, and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audits. We believe the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with GAAP and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about ILDC’s ability to continue as a going concern for
one year beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise
substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

-59.



DRAFT

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:
e  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

® Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal contro! relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of ILDC’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about ILDC’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that
we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

GAAP requires that management’s discussion and analysis be presented to supplement the financial statements.
Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We
have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with GAAS,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express
an opinion or provide any assurance.

-60-



DRAFT

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that comprise ILDC’s
basic financial statements. The accompanying supplementary information as listed in the table of contents,
including the schedule of expenditures of federal awards required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with GAAS. In our opinion, the accompanying supplementary information is fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 21, 2024 on our
consideration of ILDC’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of ILDC's internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering ILDC’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

March 21, 2024

-61-



DRAFT

BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of County of Erie, New York)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)

December 31, 2023

Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation (ILDC) was incorporated for the purpose of participating in the
acquisition and development of industrial sites and to provide financial assistance for the acquisition or renovation of fixed assets
by industrial companies locating or expanding in the County of Erie, New York {the County). ILDC is considered a component unit
of the County. ILDC also manages a microenterprise revolving loan program on behalf of the County.

As a special-purpose government engaged in business-type activities, ILDC is required to comply with accounting standards issued
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). Under GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements — and
Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments, ILDC is required to present management’s discussion
and analysis (MD&A) to assist readers in understanding ILDC’s financial performance.

In compliance with GASB Statement No. 34, we present the attached overview and analysis of the financial activities of ILDC as of
and for the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022, and 2021. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here
in conjunction with ILDC’s audited financial statements.

In 2023 the ILDC continued to move forward in developing Renaissance Commerce Park in Lackawanna, New York, and the former
Angola Airport site in Evans, New York. ILDC constructed a new public road and began work on public water and sewer lines at
Renaissance Commerce Park and continued the Master Planning/GEIS process in Evans. Erie County continued to adjust the
Microenterprise Loan/Grant Program in response to the COVID-19 pandemic and additional funding.

Basic Overview of the Financial Statements
Included in this report are the following financial statements:

1) Balance Sheets — The balance sheets show the reader what ILDC owns (assets and deferred outflows of resources) and
what ILDC owes (liabilities and deferred inflows of resources). ILDC's assets and deferred outflows of resources less its
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources (net position) can be one way to measure ILDC’s financial position. Over time,
increases or decreases in ILDC’s net position are an indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating.

2) Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position — These: statements report ILDC’s operating and
nonoperating revenues by major source along with operating and nonoperating expenses. The difference between total
revenues and expenses can be one way to measure ILDC’s operating results for the year.

3) Statements of Cash Flows — These statements report ILDC’s cash flows from operating, capital and related financing, and
investing activities, if any.

Financial Highlights

e ILDC’s net position increased by 3% from $7,350,000 in 2022 to $7,586,000 in 2023.

e ILDC experienced an increase in net position of $236,000 in 2023 compared to a decrease of $513,000 in 2022.
e  Operating revenues increased 313% from $23,000 in 2022 to $35,000 in 2023.

e Operating expenses decreased 64% from $957,000 in 2022 to $288,000 in 2023.

-62-



DRAFT

Condensed Comparative Financial Statements:

Balance Sheets at December 31:

in thousands 2023 2022 S Change % Change 2021
Assets
Cash S 418 S 1,265 S (847) (67%) S 2,037
Grants receivable 9,191 10,212 (1,021) (10%) 7,653
Loans receivable, net 485 550 (65) {12%) 667
Prepaid expenses - 32 (32) (100%) 1
Capital assets, net 179 - 179 N/A -
Land held for sale 6,875 6,867 8 - 7,233
Total assets S 17,148 $ 18,926 S (1,778) (9%) S 17,591
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 880 § 824 S 56 7% S 23
Due to affiliate 4,519 180 4,339 2,411% 458
Unearned revenue 4,163 10,572 (6,409) (61%) 9,247
Total liabilities 9,562 11,576 (2,014) (17%) 9,728
Net position
Net investment in capital assets 179 - 179 N/A -
Restricted 540 608 (68) {11%) 652
Unrestricted 6,867 6,742 125 2% 7,211
Total net position 7,586 7,350 236 3% 652
Total liabilities and net position S 17,148 $ 18,926 S (1,778) (9%) S 10,380

ILDC’s cash balance decreased 67% or $847,000 in 2023, after a decrease of 38% or $772,000 in 2022. Both decreases were
primarily due to the use of cash for land development activity.

Grants receivable decreased 10% or $1,021,000 due to grant receipts from the U.S. Department of Commerce Economic
Development Administration (EDA) and Erie County during the year. There were no new grants recognized in 2023. In 2022 there
was an increase of 33% or $2,559,000 due mainly to an award of $2,680,000 from the EDA.

Loans receivable relate to the microenterprise revolving loan fund, known as the Erie County Business Development Fund. Net
loans receivable decreased $65,000 from 2022 to 2023. While there were 8 new loans totaling $280,000 in 2023, the decrease is
due to principal payments received combined with a provision for uncollectible loan expense of $189,000. The uncollectible loan
expense is largely due to loans that are partially forgiven as certain requirements are met. There was a $117,000 decrease in net
loans receivable from 2021 to 2022.

Capital assets consist mainly of an entrance sign at Renaissance Commerce Park in Lackawanna, New York. The sign was
constructed and installed in 2023, causing an increase in net capital assets.

Land held for sale consists of 153 acres of land at Renaissance Commerce Park in Lackawanna, New York and 238 acres of land at
the former Angola Airport site in Evans, New York. In connection with its economic development purpose, ILDC is working with
several partners to return these underutilized properties to productive use. The $8,000 increase in land held for sale from 2022
to 2023 reflects additional capitalizable costs incurred. The $366,000 decrease from 2021 to 2022 was due to the sale of 8 acres
at the Lackawanna site.

The $56,000 increase in accounts payable from 2022 to 2023 and the $801,000 increase from 2021 to 2022 is primarily due to
special project construction-related payables outstanding at year end.

The $4,339,000 or 2,411% increase in the total due to affiliate (ECIDA) from 2022 to 2023 is due to $4,478,000 of funds borrowed

from ECIDA related to land development activities and projects. Repayment will be made from grant funds once received. The
$278,000 decrease from 2021 to 2022 was due to the repayment of $255,000 with grant proceeds received in 2022.

-63-



DRAFT

Unearned revenue relates to grants awarded to the ILDC, for which the related revenue has not yet been recognized. The
$6,409,000 decrease from 2022 to 2023 is due to the recognition of revenue related to grants, and no new grants awarded. The
increase from 2021 to 2022 was due to an increase in grants awarded.

Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position for the years ended December 31:

in thousands 2023 2022 S Change % Change 2021
Operating revenue:
Administrative fee revenue S 1 S 191 $ (180) (94%) § 10
Gain (loss) on land held for sale - (181) 181 (100%) (146)
Interest from loans and other 24 13 11 85% 3
Total revenue 35 23 12 52% (133)
Operating expenses:
Transfer to ECIDA 28 282 (254) (90%) 130
General, administrative, and depreciation 71 192 (121) (63%) 231
Loan loss expense, net of recoveries 189 483 (294) (61%) 74
Total operating expenses 288 957 (669) (70%) 435
Operating loss before special project grants {(253) (934) 681 {73%) (568)
Special project grants:
Grant revenue 6,748 2,038 4,710 231% 1,814
Grant expense {6,259) (1,617) (4,642) 287% (426)
Total special project grants 489 421 68 16% 1,388
Change in net position S 236 $ (513) S 749 (146%) 3 820

Revenue Analysis

ILDC is an issuer of tax-exempt bond financing for not-for-profit entities. These bonds are not obligations of ILDC or the County.
ILDC receives bond issuance fees from borrowers for providing this service. ILDC has a shared services agreement with ECIDA
under which administrative and staffing services are provided to ILDC in connection with bond issuances in exchange for the
related bond issuance fees received by ILDC. Administrative fees decreased in 2023 as a result of no bond issuances. In 2022 there
was one bond issuance and ILDC charges for amending documents, which accounted for the increase in fees from 2021.

ILDC sells rehabilitated land as part of its economic development activities. When the sale price of land is greater than the book
cost (including land improvements), a gain is recognized, and when the sale price is less than the book cost, a loss is recognized.
There were no land sales in 2023. In both 2022 and 2021, the sale price of land sold was less than the cost of land to ILDC.

The $11,000 increase in interest from loans and other revenue from 2022 to 2023 is due mainly to an increase in loan interest
from microenterprise fund loans. The increase from 2021 to 2022 was also due to an increase in loan interest.

Expense Analysis

The amount transferred to ECIDA each year under the shared services agreement consists of administrative fees for bond
issuances plus charges from ECIDA for personnel and overhead. Charges for personnel and overhead are derived from ECIDA
employee hours charged for ILDC-related projects. The $254,000 decrease from 2022 to 2023 is due to no ILDC bonds being issued
during the year, combined with a decrease in ECIDA employee hours charged. The increase from 2021 to 2022 related to $105,000
of administrative fees for bond activity and an increase in ECIDA employee hours charged.

In 2023, general, administrative, and depreciation expenses decreased $121,000 from $192,000 to $71,000, due mainly to

decreases in legal and consulting costs and one-time reclassifications of certain expenses in 2023. General, administrative, and
depreciation expenses decreased $39,000 from 2021 to 2022 due to a one-time grant application fee in 2021.

-64-



DRAFT

Most of the loans made under the microenterprise loan program are forgivable loans, which may provide up to 50% of loan
forgiveness if certain criteria are met. The decrease of $294,000 in the provision for uncollectible loans from 2022 to 2023 reflects
the balances of the outstanding loans that could potentially be forgiven under the terms of the program. There were four loans
that were successfully forgiven during 2023. There was an increase in the provision for uncollectible loans of $409,000 from 2021
to 2022.

Grant revenue increased $4,710,000 to $6,748,000 in 2023, from $2,038,000 in 2022, This was primarily due to $5,199,000 of
grant revenue recognized for sewer construction reimbursable costs at Renaissance Commerce Park. The increase from 2021 to
2022 related to grant revenue in 2022 for engineering and road construction costs at Renaissance Commerce Park.

Grant expenses relate directly to the costs involved with certain projects undertaken by the ILDC and can vary from year to year
based on activity. There was a $4,642,000 increase in grant expenses from 2022 to 2023 due to an increase in grant-eligible project
expenses discussed above. A majority of grant expenses are related to the Renaissance Commerce Park project (See Note 3 to the
financial statements for more details). The increase from 2021 to 2022 also related to projects at Renaissance Commerce Park.

Budget Analysis

ILDC prepares an annual budget which was presented and approved by the Board of Directors on October 26, 2022. The following
table presents an analysis of ILDC's performance compared to the approved 2023 budget.

in thousands Actual Budget $ Variance % Variance
Operating revenue:
Administrative fee revenue S 1 S - S 11 N/A
Gain {loss) on land held for sale - 300 (300) (100%)
Interest from loans and other 24 13 11 85%
Total revenue 35 313 (278) (89%)
Operating expenses:
Transfer to ECIDA 28 190 (162) {85%)
General, administrative, and depreciation 71 109 (38) (35%)
Loan loss expense, net of recoveries 189 15 174 1,160%
Total operating expenses 288 314 (26) (8%)
Operating loss before special project grants (253) (1) (252) 25,200%
Special project grants:
Grant revenue . 6,748 3,206 3,542 110%
Grant expense (6,259) (3,229) (3,030) 94%
Total special project grants 489 (23) 512 (2,226%)
Change in net position S 236 S (24) $ 260 (1,083%)

Overall, ILDC exceeded its budgeted increase in net position for 2023 by $260,000. Total revenue was $278,000, or 89%, below
budget due to no sales of property in 2023. Total expenses were $26,000, or 8%, below budget. Most of the variance is due to the
provision for uncollectible loans of $189,000 not being included in the original budget and transfers to ECIDA being lower than
expected. Grant revenue was $3,542,000 higher than budget, while grant expenses were also $3,030,000 higher than budget.

Economic Factors Impacting ILDC

ILDC relies upon land sales to generate revenue for continued operations, as well as grant revenue from Erie County and other
economic development partners to defray the costs associated with land development. As a result of current uncertain economic
conditions, ILDC’s ability to generate the income necessary to support operations may be limited in the future.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of ILDC’s finances. Questions concerning any of the financial

information provided in this report should be addressed to the CFO of ILDC at (716) 856-6525. General information relating to
ILDC can be found on ECIDA’s website, www.ecidany.com.

-65-



DRAFT

BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
{A Component Unit of County of Erie, New York)

Balance Sheets

December 31, 2023 2022
Assets
Current assets:
Cash S 417,701 S 1,265,215
Grants receivable 9,191,179 10,212,072
Loans receivable (Note 2) 123,071 119,854
Prepaid expenses - 31,500
9,731,951 11,628,641
Noncurrent assets:
Loans receivable, net (Note 2) 362,312 429,741
Capital assets 184,285 2,925
Accumulated depreciation (5,192) (2,925}
Land held for sale (Note 4) 6,875,104 6,867,153
7,416,509 7,296,894
$ 17,148,460 S 18,925,535
Liabilities and Net Position
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable S 880,331 $ 824,190
Due to affiliate (Note 5) 4,519,375 179,722
Unearned revenue 4,163,198 10,571,964
9,562,904 11,575,876
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 179,093 -
Restricted 539,928 608,122
Unrestricted 6,866,535 6,741,537
7,585,556 7,349,659
$ 17,148,460 S 18,925,535

See accompanying notes.

-66-



DRAFT

BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of County of Erie, New York)

Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

For the years ended December 31, 2023 2022
Operating revenues:
Administrative fees $ 11,200 S 190,700
Loss on land held for sale - (181,324)
Interest from loans and other 24,061 13,024
Total operating revenues 35,261 22,400
Operating expenses:
Transfer to Erie County Industrial Development Agency 28,194 282,224
General and administrative 69,047 191,170
Provision for uncollectible loans 189,048 482,505
Depreciation 2,267 650
Total operating expenses 288,556 956,549
Operating loss before special project grants (253,295) (934,149)
Special project grants:
Special project grant revenue 6,747,957 2,037,945
Special project grant expense (6,258,765) (1,617,073)
Total special project grants 489,192 420,872
Change in net position 235,897 (513,277)
Net position - beginning 7,349,659 7,862,936
Net position - ending $ 7,585,556 S 7,349,659

See accompanying notes.

-67-



DRAFT

BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

(A Component Unit of County of Erie, New York)

Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended December 31, 2023 2022
Operating activities:
Administrative fees S 11,200 $ 190,700
Receipts from (payments to) Erie County Industrial Development Agency 4,311,459 (560,613)
Principal and interest on loans and other 179,225 82,635
Loans awarded (280,000) (435,000)
Proceeds from sale of land - 207,250
Purchase of land held for sale (7,951) (22,214)
Payments to vendors (850,727) (227,807)
Special project grant receipts 1,360,084 803,979
Special project grant disbursements (5,389,444) (810,492)
Net operating activities (666,154) (771,562)
Capital and related financing:
Purchases of capital assets (181,360) -
Cash - beginning 1,265,215 2,036,777
Cash - ending S 417,701 1,265,215
Reconciliation of change in net position to net cash flows
from operating activities:
Change in net position $ 235,897 (513,277)
Adjustments to reconcile change in net position to net cash
flows from operating activities:
Loss on land held for sale - 181,324
Provision for uncollectible loans (189,048) (482,505)
Depreciation 2,267 650
Changes in other assets and liabilities:
Grants receivable 1,020,893 (2,558,977)
Loans receivable 253,260 599,621
Prepaid expenses 31,500 (31,500)
Land held for sale (7,951) 185,036
Accounts payable 56,141 801,444
Due to affiliate 4,339,653 (278,389)
Unearned revenue (6,408,766) 1,325,011
Net operating activities $ (666,154) $ (771,562)

See accompanying notes.

-68-

10



DRAFT

BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

{A Component Unit of County of Erie, New York)

Notes to Financial Statements

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:
Nature of Organization

Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development
Corporation (ILDC) was incorporated for the purpose of
participating in the acquisition and development of industrial
sites and to provide financial assistance for the acquisition or
renovation of fixed assets by industrial companies locating or
expanding in the County of Erie, New York (the County). ILDC
manages a microenterprise revolving loan program which is
dedicated to improving economic conditions in the County.

ILDC has related party relationships with Erie County
Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA) and Buffalo and Erie
County Regional Development Corporation {RDC). All three
entities are managed by the same personnel. These entities
share the same mission, which is to provide the resources that
encourage investment, innovation, workforce development,
and international trade resulting in a successful business
climate focused on growth, economic stability, job creation,
and job retention for businesses and individuals which
improves the quality of life for the residents of the region.

In accordance with accounting standards, ILDC is considered a
component unit of the County. The County, acting by and
through the County Executive, is the sole member of ILDC and
is financially accountable for it; as a result, ILDC is included in
the financial statements of the County as a discretely
presented component unit.

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements have been prepared in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America (GAAP) as applied to governmental units.
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the
accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental
accounting and financial reporting principles.

-69-

Measurement Focus

ILDC reports as a special-purpose government engaged in
business-type activities. Business-type activities are those that
are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external
parties for goods or services. ILDC’s financial statements are
reported using the economic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded
when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred.

ILDC's policy for defining operating activities in the
statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net
position are those that generally result from exchange
transactions such as payments received for services, including
interest earned on revolving loan funds, and payments made
to purchase those goods or services or special project grants
whose purpose aligns with the primary mission of ILDC.
Grants receivable and unearned revenue are recognized at
the time awarded and are recognized as revenue when all
eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been
satisfied. ILDC receives special project grants from various
Federal, State, and County governments.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial
statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Cash

Cash management is governed by New York State (the State)
laws and as established by ILDC's written policies. Cash
resources must be deposited in FDIC-insured commercial
banks or trust companies located within the State. Policies
permit management to use demand accounts and certificates
of deposit for daily operating funds. Investments are limited
to obligations of the United States Treasury and its Agencies,
repurchase agreements, and obligations of the State or its
localities.

11



DRAFT

Collateral is required for demand and time deposits and
certificates of deposit not covered by Federal Deposit
Insurance. Obligations that may be pledged as collateral
include obligations of the United States and its agencies and
obligations of the State and its municipalities and school
districts.

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank
failure, ILDC's deposits may not be returned to it. At
December 31, 2023, ILDC’s bank deposits were fully
collateralized by FDIC coverage and securities held by the
pledging bank’s agent in ILDC’s name.

Loans Receivable

Loans receivable are stated at the principal amount
outstanding, net of an allowance for uncollectible loans. The
allowance method is used to compute the provision for
uncollectible loans.

Determination of the balance of the allowance for
uncollectible loans is based on an analysis of the loan
portfolio and reflects an amount that, in management’s
judgment, is adequate to provide for potential loan losses.
Loans are written off when, in management’s judgment, no
legal recourse is available to collect the amount owed.

Interest on loans receivable is accrued as required by the
terms of the agreement; management considers that
collection is probable based on the current economic
condition of the borrower. Interest accrual stops when
management adjusts a loan reserve to 50% or more of the
loan’s outstanding balance.

Capital Assets

Capital assets are recorded at cost. Depreciation is provided
over estimated useful lives using the straight-line method.
Maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred; significant
improvements are capitalized.

Capitalization thresholds to determine which asset purchases
are added to capital accounts and the estimated useful lives
of capital assets are:

Estimated
Capitalization Useful Life in
Policy Years
Buildings and improvements S 1,000 5-40
Furniture and equipment $ 1,000 3-10

-70-

Net Position
Net position consists of the following components:

s Net investment in capital assets — consists of capital assets,
net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by outstanding
balances of any related debt obligations attributable to the
acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

e Restricted — consists of restricted assets and deferred
outflows of resources reduced by related liabilities.
Restrictions are imposed by external organizations such as
federal or state laws and include amounts maintained in
the Erie County Business Development Fund (Erie County
BDF) (Note 2).

e Unrestricted — the net amount of assets, deferred outflows
of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources
that are not included in the restricted component of net
position and therefore are available for general use.

Tax-Exempt Bond Transactions

ILDC is an issuer of tax-exempt bond financing for not-for-
profit entities which meet the definition of conduit debt
obligations. These bonds are obligations of the borrower and
secured by the assets they finance. ILDC receives
administrative fees from the borrower for providing bond
issues which are recognized according to the terms of the fee
agreement. ILDC also has a shared services agreement with
ECIDA under which administrative and staffing services are
provided to ILDC in connection with bond issuances in
exchange for the related bond issuance fees received by ILDC.
At December 31, 2023, previously issued bonds have an
aggregate outstanding principal amount payable of
$304,864,803, none of which is recognized as a liability of
ILDC.

ILDC transferred $10,000 and $105,000 in administrative fees
to ECIDA in 2023 and 2022.

Income Taxes

Although the financial statements are required to be reported
as a governmental entity, ILDC is a 501(c)(3) not-for-profit
organization for income tax purposes and is exempt from
income taxes under §501(a)} of the Internal Revenue Code.

2. Loans Receivable:
The microenterprise revolving loan program was originally
funded through a Community Development Block Grant

(CDBG). Loans receivable maintained in the Erie County BDF
are restricted pursuant to the original grant terms.

12



DRAFT

Loans made to local businesses from the Erie County BDF
complement private financing at an interest rate of 2% with
varying repayment terms. In 2022, ILDC began to provide
microenterprise forgivable loans that may provide up to 50%
of loan forgiveness if certain criteria are met by the borrower.

ILDC previously provided a $750,000 forgivable loan to a
borrower. The entire balance of the loan will be forgiven in
installments of $150,000 from 2025 through 2029 as long as
the borrower meets certain job creation and retention
requirements as set forth in the agreement. The balance of
the loan is included in loans receivable and fully recognized in
the allowance for uncollectible loans. The following is a
summary of the loans receivable:

2023 2022
Current status $ 1,914,515 S 1,856,179
Less allowance 1,429,132 1,306,584
485,383 549,595
Less current portion 123,071 119,854
S 362,312 S 429,741

Following is a summary of the activity in the allowance for
uncollectible loans:

2023 2022
Balance, beginning of year $ 1,306,584 S 824,079
Additions charged to operations 189,048 482,505
Reduction in allowances (66,500) -
$ 1,429,132 $ 1,306,584

Scheduled maturities, net of allowances, for the next five
years and thereafter are as follows:

Principal interest

2024 $ 123,071 $ 19,412
2025 130,007 17,826
2026 122,007 14,859
2027 76,258 8,255
2028 29,364 3,599
Thereafter 4,676 487

$ 485383 § 64,438

-71-

3. Special Project Grants:
Special project grants are comprised of the following:

Bethlehem Phase I

In connection with Phase Il of the Renaissance Commerce
Park redevelopment, ILDC authorized the execution of a
$1,755,000 grant from Empire State Development (ESD) as
Phase | of a capital grant under the Buffalo Billion H Initiative.
Proceeds from this grant are used to acquire additional vacant
Brownfield property at Renaissance Commerce Park, purchase
a right-of-way along the eastern edge of the property, and
plan for the Lackawanna-Woodlawn State Park Shoreline trail.

Phase 1l of the capital grant in the amount of $7,695,000
under the Buffalo Billion Il initiative was authorized by ILDC in
2021. Proceeds from this grant are used toward the design
and construction of infrastructure improvements including
additional environmental remediation, construction of new
roads, and installation of utility corridors.

Bethlehem EDA

In 2022, ILDC authorized a $2,680,000 grant from the U.S.
Department of Commerce Economic Development
Administration (EDA). Proceeds from this grant are used for
the construction of water and sewer systems to facilitate
development of land at Renaissance Commerce Park.

Angola Agribusiness Park

ILDC previously received grants from National Grid for
$354,000 and Erie County for $230,000 for the development
of an agribusiness park at the former Angola Airport in
Angola, New York. In 2022, ILDC also received a grant from
£SD for $250,000 for this project.

The following is a summary of grants receivable at December
31:

2023 2022
Bethlehem Phase H $ 6,695000 S 6,695,000
Bethlehem EDA 1,809,107 2,680,000
Angola Agribusiness Park 687,072 687,072
Other - 150,000
$ 9,191,179 S 10,212,072

The following is a summary of unearned revenue at December
3L

2023 2022
Bethlehem Phase II $ 3,692,057 S 7,297,293
Bethlehem EDA 32,267 2,590,483
Angola Agribusiness Park 431,096 526,410
Other 7,778 157,778

$ 4,163,198 $ 10,571,964

13



DRAFT

4. Land Held for Sale

Land heid for sale is recorded at net realizable value based on
assessment of the fair value of each project. The net realizable
value as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 amounted to
$6,875,104 and $6,867,153, respectively.

In February 2017, ILDC entered into a funding agreement with
ECIDA to accept $6,700,000 in the form of a partially
refundable grant from ECIDA’s U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development Urban Development Action Grant
{(UDAG) reflow fund in connection with a Brownfield
reclamation and redevelopment project at Renaissance
Commerce Park in Lackawanna, New York. $5,700,000 of the
grant was earmarked for the purchase of real property, with
the remaining $1,000,000 to be used for carrying costs during
and after property acquisition. Additional funding of up to
$700,000 for property acquisition was granted from ECIDA’s
UDAG reflow fund in September 2017. The initial $1,000,000
for carrying costs was exhausted during 2023 and ECIDA
approved additional funding for necessary carrying costs. As
of December 31, 2023 and 2022, 56,338,416 of the
$6,400,000 total amount granted has been spent on real
property. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, $1,093,297 and
$929,235 for carrying costs was utilized, respectively.

In connection with the Phase | tand purchase, ILDC accepted a
$2,780,000 grant from ESD. Proceeds from this grant were
used to reimburse ECIDA. In addition, ILDC resolved to remit
to ECIDA 50% of the net proceeds received upon the future
sale of portions of land at Renaissance Commerce Park
acquired using ECIDA grant funds, the aggregate of which is
not to exceed $6,700,000. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022,
$3,363,125 in reimbursements have been made to ECIDA.

In December 2018, ILDC entered into a funding agreement
with the ECIDA to accept $1,200,000 in the form of a partially
refundable grant from ECIDA’s UDAG reflow fund in
connection with a redevelopment project at the former
Angola Airport site in Angola, New York. $900,000 of the grant
was designated for the purchase of real property, with the
remaining $300,000 to be used for carrying costs during and
after property acquisition. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022,
$855,084 of the $900,000 granted for the purchase of real
property was utilized. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022,
$164,722 and $118,452 of the $300,000 granted for carrying
costs was utilized.

-72-

5. Related Party Transactions:

ECIDA historically allocated a portion of its personnel and
overhead costs to ILDC which amounted to $177,224 in 2022.
In 2023, ECIDA chose to discontinue allocation of personnel
and overhead costs to ILDC unless a corresponding revenue
source is identified. The amount outstanding to ECIDA at
December 31, 2023 and 2022 related to these costs
amounted to $41,605 and $179,722. In 2023, the ECIDA
Board of Directors authorized ILDC to utilize ECIDA’s UDAG
funding for cash flow purposes while project reimbursements
are processed. At December 31, 2023, ECIDA provided a total
of $4,477,770 for this purpose. Amounts due to ECIDA
totaled $4,519,375 and $179,722 at December 31, 2023 and
2022.

In 2023 and 2022, Erie County provided $129,000 and
$385,000, respectively, to ECIDA as a subrecipient of
Community Development Block Grant funds. These funds
were then transferred to ILDC for its Erie County BDF loan
program and are included in special project grant revenue in
the accompanying statements of revenues, expenses, and
changes in net position.

14



DRAFT

BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

(A Component Unit of County of Erie, New York)

Supplementary Information
Combining Schedule of Balance Sheets

December 31, 2023
Erie County
Operating BDF Program Total
Assets
Current assets:
Cash S 320,649 $§ 97,052 § 417,701
Grants receivable 9,191,179 - 9,191,179
Loans receivable - 123,071 123,071
9,511,828 220,123 9,731,951
Noncurrent assets:
Loans receivable, net - 362,312 362,312
Capital assets 184,285 - 184,285
Accumulated depreciation (5,192) - (5,192)
Land held for sale 6,875,104 - 6,875,104
7,054,197 362,312 7,416,509
$ 16,566,025 $ 582,435 $ 17,148,460
Liabilities and Net Position
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable S 879,429 $ 902 § 880,331
Due to affiliate 4,477,770 41,605 4,519,375
Unearned revenue 4,163,198 - 4,163,198
9,520,397 42,507 9,562,904
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 179,093 - 179,093
Restricted - 539,928 539,928
Unrestricted 6,866,535 - 6,866,535
7,045,628 539,928 7,585,556
$ 16,566,025 S 582,435 $ 17,148,460
15

-73-



DRAFT

BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

(A Component Unit of County of Erie, New York)

Supplementary Information

For the year ended December 31, 2023

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Operating revenues:
Administrative fees
Interest from loans and other
Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Transfer to Erie County Industrial Development Agency
General and administrative
Provision for uncollectible loans
Depreciation
Total operating expenses

Operating loss before special project grants
Special project grants:
Special project grant revenue
Special project grant expense
Total special project grants
Change in net position

Net position - beginning

Net position - ending

Erie County
Operating BDF Program Total

$ 11,200 $ - § 11,200
3,695 20,366 24,061
14,895 20,366 35,261

- 28,194 28,194

68,729 318 69,047

- 189,048 189,048

2,267 - 2,267
70,996 217,560 288,556
(56,101) (197,194) (253,295)
6,618,957 129,000 6,747,957
(6,258,765} - {6,258,765)
360,192 129,000 489,192
304,091 (68,194) 235,897
6,741,537 608,122 7,349,659

$ 7,045,628 S

539,928 $ 7,585,556

-74-

16



DRAFT

BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of County of Erie, New York)

Supplementary Information
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

For the year ended December 31, 2023

Assistance
Listing Grant Federal
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantosr/Program Title Number Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Commerce:
Investments for Public Works and Economic Development Facilities 11.300 01-79-15063  $ 2,559,506
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development:
Passed through Erie County Industrial Development Agency
Community Development Block Grants 14.218 N/A 129,000
S 2,688,506
17

See accompanying notes.

-75-



DRAFT

BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

(A Component Unit of County of Erie, New York)

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:
Basis of Presentation

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal
Awards (SEFA) presents the activity of all federal award
programs administered by Buffalo and Erie County Industrial
Land Development Corporation (ILDC), an entity as defined in
Note 1 to ILDC's basic financial statements. Federal awards
received directly from federal agencies, as well as federal
awards passed through from other governmental agencies,
are included on the SEFA.

-76-

Basis of Accounting

ILDC uses the accrual basis of accounting for each federal
program, consistent with the financial statements.

The amounts reported as federal expenditures generally were
obtained from the appropriate federal financial reports for the
applicable programs and periods. The amounts reported in
these federal financial reports are prepared from records
maintained for each program, which are periodically
reconciled with ILDC's financial reporting system.

Indirect Costs

ILDC has not elected to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost
rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

18



DRAFT

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Board of Directors
Buffalo and Erie County Industrial
Land Development Corporation

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land
Development Corporation (ILDC), a business-type activity and a component unit of the County of Erie, New York, as
of and for the year ended December 31, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise ILDC’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated March 21, 2024.

Report on internal Control over Financial Reporting

in planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered ILDC's internal control over
financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of ILDC's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness of ILDC’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may
exist that have not been identified.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether ILDC’s financial statements are free from material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance
or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

19

-77-



DRAFT

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of ILDC’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering ILDC's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable

for any other purpose.

March 21, 2024

20

-78-



DRAFT

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND ON

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

The Board of Directors
Buffalo and Erie County Industrial
Land Development Corporation

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the compliance of Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation (ILDC), a
business-type activity and a component unit of the County of Erie, New York, with the types of compliance
requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and
material effect on each of ILDC’s major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2023. ILDC’s major
federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, ILDC complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to above that
could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended December 31,
2023.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America (GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing Standards), and the audit
requirements of Titie 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards {(Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those
standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of
Compliance section of our report. We are required to be independent of ILDC and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of ILDC’s compliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,

implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws,
statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to ILDC's federal programs.

21

-79.



DRAFT

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on ILDC’s
compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing
Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not
detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a substantial
likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the
report on compliance about ILDC’s compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we:

e  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis,
evidence regarding ILDC's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

e Obtain an understanding of ILDC's internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal
control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of ILDC’s internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control
over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a
timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in
internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control
over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

22

-80-



DRAFT

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

March 21, 2024

23

-81-



DRAFT

BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
{A Component Unit of County of Erie, New York)

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

For the year ended December 31, 2023

Section l. Summary of Auditors’ Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditors’ report issued:

Internal control over financial reporting:

e Material weakness(es) identified?

e Significant deficiency(ies) identified?
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?
Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

e Material weakness{es) identified?

e Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)?

Identification of major programs:

Assistance
Listing
Name of Federal Program of Cluster Number Amount
Investments for Public Works and Economic
Development Facilities 11.300 S 2,559,506

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs:
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

Section . Financial Statement Findings
No matters were reported.

Section Ili. Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

No matters were reported.

-82-

Unmodified
No
None reported

No

No
None reported

Unmodified

No

$750,000

No

24



DRAFT

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 2925(3)(f) OF THE NEW YORK

STATE PUBLIC AUTHORITIES LAW

The Board of Directors
Buffalo and Erie County Industrial
Land Development Corporation

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, the
financial statements of Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation (ILDC), a business-type
activity and a component unit of the County of Erie, New York, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2023,
and the related notes to the financial statements, and we have issued our report thereon dated March 21, 2024.

in connection with our audit, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that ILDC failed to comply
with §2925(3)(f) of the New York State Public Authorities Law regarding investment guidelines during the year
ended December 31, 2023. However, our audit was not directed primarily toward obtaining knowledge of such
noncompliance. Accordingly, had we performed additional procedures, other matters may have come to our
attention regarding ILDC’s noncompliance with the above rules and regulations.

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope and results of our testing. This communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

March 21, 2024

25

-83-



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
BUFFALO & ERIE COUNTY REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT CORP
BUFFALO & ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMENT CORP

2023 ANNUAL REPORT
(For purposes of Section 2800(2) of the Public Authorities Law)

-84-



Description of the Agency:

The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA) is a public benefit corporation
that provides tax incentives, financing programs, export assistance, land development and
other economic development services to the City of Buffalo and Erie County, New York.

ECIDA has two affiliated not-for-profit organizations as follows:

1) Buffalo and Erie County Regional Development Corporation (RDC). This is a
lending corporation that administers two revolving loan funds (RLFs). The first
was capitalized by an Economic Development Administration (EDA) grant with
matching funds from the City of Buffalo. The EDA released its federal interest in
this original (“Legacy”) RLF in 2021. The second RLF was capitalized by a 2020
EDA grant as part of the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security
(CARES) Act.

2) Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation (ILDC).
The ILDC takes ownership of distressed properties to remediate and return them
to productive use. The ILDC was restructured in 2009 to allow it to issue tax-
exempt interest debt on behalf of Erie County to assist local not-for-profit
organizations finance development projects at a lower cost. On behalf of Erie
County, the ILDC also administers the Erie County Business Development Fund,
a micro-loan program funded from HUD Community Development Block Grant
sources.

These corporations are related since they are managed by the same personnel. The
ECIDA and RDC share the same Board of Directors as their oversight body. The ILDC
board is comprised of five members, three of whom are ECIDA Board members. None of
these corporations is owned by another corporation.

Purpose of the Annual Report:

As an industrial development agency, ECIDA and its affiliates are required to comply
with New York State’s Public Authorities Law. Under this Law, the ECIDA and its
affiliates are required to submit a comprehensive annual report that includes information
on:

1. Operations and accomplishments

2. Financial reports

3. Mission statement and measurements

4. Bonds and notes outstanding

5. Compensation (for those with a salary in excess of $100,000)
6. Projects undertaken during the year

7. Property Report

8. Code of Ethics

9. An assessment of internal control structure and effectiveness
10. Legislation that forms the statutory basis of the authority

2

-85-



11. Board structure

12. By-Laws

13. Listing of material changes in operations and programs during the reporting year
14. Four-year financial plan

15. Board Performance Evaluations

16. Assets/Services bought or sold without competitive bidding

17. Description of material pending litigation

In compliance with the Public Authorities Law, the following required information is
presented for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023.

1. Operations & Accomplishments:

A report on the 2023 operations and accomplishments of the ECIDA and its affiliates is
posted on the ECIDA’s website at http://www.ecidany.com/about-us-corporate-reports.

2. Financial Reports:

1) Audited Financial Statements:
The audited financial statements for the ECIDA and its affiliates are posted on the
ECIDA’s website at http://www.ecidany.com/about-us-corporate-reports while the

financial statement certification is included on page 9.

The financial statements are audited on an annual basis by independent auditors,
Lumsden McCormick, LLP. In their opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of the ECIDA and its affiliates as of December
31, 2023, and the changes in financial position and cash flows for the year then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

i1) Grants & Subsidy Programs:

The ECIDA and its affiliates are recipients of various pass-through Federal, State and
local grant programs that are utilized for land development, loan, and other economic
development programs. Details of the various grants are outlined in the notes to the

audited financial statements.

In accomplishing its mission, ECIDA does not receive any operational funding or
subsidies from Federal, State, County or local sources. Instead, ECIDA relies primarily
upon administrative fees charged to those businesses that utilize its products and services.

ii1) Operating & Financial Risks:
The following outline some of the operating and financial risks that impact the ECIDA
and its affiliates:

e New York State Legislation — The New York State Legislature can impose
various restrictions on the ability of Industrial Development Agencies to provide
tax incentives which could significantly impact the revenue of the ECIDA.

3

-86-



e Collectability of loans receivable — The RDC and ILDC operate various revolving
loan programs and as such their financial results are impacted by the collectability
of the related loans.

e Litigation — To provide various tax incentives or grants, ECIDA takes a leasehold
or ownership interest in various properties and is at times brought into various
lawsuits that could impact ECIDA’s financial results or affect insurability.

e Regulations — The ECIDA, RDC and ILDC are subject to various regulations
including those imposed by the NYS Authorities Budget Office and the Federal
Economic Development Administration. These regulations may increase the cost
of compliance or impact the financial position of the Agency.

e Local economic conditions — Since ECIDA relies upon fees generated from
various projects that it assists, a reduction in the number and/or size of those
projects would significantly impact the Agency’s revenues.

The ECIDA mitigates a portion of the above risks through prudent financial management,
external legal guidance and comprehensive insurance coverage.

iv) Current bond ratings:

The ECIDA and ILDC act as conduits for tax-exempt bond financings by various not-for-
profit and other eligible borrowers. As conduit bond issuers, ECIDA and ILDC do not
issue bonds on their own behalf and therefore are not rated by municipal bond rating

agencies.

v) Long-term liabilities including leases and employee benefit plans:

The ECIDA has long-term liabilities that are recorded on its financial statements related
to funds held on behalf of others under certain fiduciary arrangements as outlined in the
notes to the ECIDA audited financial statements. ECIDA does not have any long-term
labilities under employee benefit plans as ECIDA employees are not covered by any
defined benefit pension plans or provided with any post-retirement benefits.

The ECIDA (as lessee) has a lease for its office space and three minor long-term leases
for office equipment. The office lease is recognized as a right-to-use lease asset and lease
liability in the audited financial statements.

3. Mission Statement & Performance Measurements:

The ECIDA’s Mission Statement & Measurements Report for 2023 is included in
Attachment 1. This document was reviewed and approved by the Board at the March 22,

2023 Board meeting.

4. Schedule of Bonds and Notes Qutstanding:

Attachment 2 summarizes ECIDA’s and ILDC’s bonds and notes outstanding at
December 31, 2023. The indebtedness shown on these schedules is conduit debt and is
not an obligation of ECIDA, ILDC, Erie County or New York State. Neither the ECIDA
nor the ILDC records the assets or liabilities resulting from completed bond and note

-87-



issues in their accounts since their primary function is to facilitate the financing between
the borrowing companies and the bond and note holders.

5. Compensation Schedule:

See Attachment 3 for a list of ECIDA employees who had a salary exceeding $100,000
during 2023. Attachment 3A is a summary of benefits provided to those staff as per the
New York State Public Authorities Reporting Information System (PARIS). Biographies
for these individuals are posted on the ECIDA website at http://www.ecidany.com/staff-
directory. Salaries and benefit information for other ECIDA staff are also reported under

the PARIS system.

None of the directors of ECIDA or its affiliates receive any compensation for their
services as directors. None of the officers of ECIDA or its affiliates receive any
compensation for their services as officers beyond their compensation as employees.
None of the ECIDA affiliates had any employees during 2023.

6. Projects Undertaken by the Corporation during 2023:

Attachment 4 details the tax-exempt bonds and tax abatements that were approved during
2023. Attachments 4A and 4B detail the loans that were funded in 2023 by the RDC and

ILDC, respectively.

7. Listing of Certain Property of the Corporation:

Attachment 5 provides information regarding the real property holdings of the ECIDA
and its affiliates. This listing excludes the hundreds of properties in which the ECIDA has
technical title in order to convey certain tax or other benefits. The properties presented
are those where the ECIDA and its affiliates have “real” beneficial ownership.

8. Code of Ethics:

The Corporation’s Code of Ethics is posted on the ECIDA’s website at
http:// www.ecidany.cont/about-us-corporate-policies.

9. Assessment of the Effectiveness of Internal Control Structure and Procedures:

Management’s Assessment of the Effectiveness of Internal Controls of the ECIDA, RDC
and ILDC is posted on the ECIDA’s website at hitps://www.ecidany.com/about-us-
corporate-reports.

The ECIDA, RDC and ILDC’s independent auditors have conducted an audit of the
internal control over financial reporting and their report is included in the audited
financial statements posted on the ECIDA’s website at https://www.ecidany.com/about-
us-corporate-reports.

10. Legislation that forms the Statutory Basis of the Authority:

5



ECIDA
Industrial development agencies (“IDAs”) are formed under Article 18-A of New York

State General Municipal Law, as public benefit corporations. IDAs were created to
actively promote, encourage, attract and develop job and recreational opportunities and
economically-sound commerce and industry in cities, towns, villages and counties
throughout New York State (the “State”). IDAs are empowered to provide financial
assistance to private entities through tax incentives in order to promote the economic
welfare, prosperity and recreational opportunities for residents of a municipality
(“Benefited Municipality™).

Section 891a of the General Municipal Law outlines the composition of the Erie County
IDA membership and additional powers granted to the ECIDA. A copy of this specific
legislation can be found at the following address:

http://public.leginfo.state.ny. us/LAWSSEAF.cgi?QUERYTYPE=LAWS+&QUERYDA
TA=$SGMU891-AS$@TXGMUO0891-
A+&LIST=LAW+&BROWSER=EXPLORER+&TOKEN=35134270+&TARGET=VIE
W

RDC & ILDC

The RDC & ILDC are local development corporations which are formed and empowered
to conduct certain projects pursuant to Not-For-Profit Corporation Law §1411.
Distinguished from IDAs (which exist as public benefit corporations), LDCs are
established as charitable corporations that are empowered to construct, acquire,
rehabilitate and improve for use by others, industrial or manufacturing plants in the
territory in which its operations are principally to be conducted (“Benefited Territory”)
and to make loans. LDCs can provide financial assistance for the construction,
acquisition, rehabilitation, improvement, and maintenance of facilities for others in its
Benefited Territory. Specific LDC powers include the ability to: (i) disseminate
information and furnish advice, technical assistance and liaison services to Federal, State
and local authorities; (ii) to acquire by purchase, lease, gift, bequest, devise or otherwise,
real or personal property; and (iii) to borrow money and to issue negotiable bonds, notes
and other obligations. LDCs are empowered to sell, lease, mortgage or otherwise dispose
of or encumber facilities or any real or personal property or any interest therein.

A copy of this specific legislation can be found at the following address:
http://public.leginfo.state.ny.us/LAWSSEAF.cgi?QUERYTYPE=LAWS+&QUERYDA
TA=$$NPC1411$$@TXNPC01411+&LIST=LAW+&BROWSER=EXPLORER+&TO
KEN=35134270+&TARGET=VIEW

11. Description of the Authority and its Board Structure:

i) Names of Committees and Committee Members:

-89.-



The ECIDA and its affiliates operate several committees as outlined on the ECIDA
website at http://www.ecidany.com/about-us-board-committees. Attachment 6 outlines

the committee members.

ii) Lists of Board Meetings & Attendance:
A list of the various Board meetings and Board attendance is outlined on Attachment 7.

iii) Description of major authority units, subsidiaries:
The ECIDA and its affiliates do not have any subsidiaries.

iv) Number of Employees:
The ECIDA had 18 full-time employees during 2023.

v) Organizational Chart:
The ECIDA’s organizational chart is posted on the ECIDA’s website at:
https://www.ecidany.com/documents/Press  Room/Organizational%20Chart%20-

%20as%2001%620June%202019.pdt

12. Bylaws:

The Bylaws for the ECIDA and its affiliates are posted on the ECIDA’s website at
http://www.ecidany.com/about-us-corporate-policies.

13. Listing of Material Changes in Operations and Programs:

ECIDA, through its development arm ILDC, continued redevelopment work at
Renaissance Commerce Park (RCP) in Lackawanna, NY. Steelworkers Way was
completed, connecting the Dona Street Extension with the northern parcels, and serving
as an access road between the TMP Technologies and Uniland parcels. Uniland
Development also celebrated the ribbon cutting at 8 Dona Street, which was their first
warehouse/distribution facility at RCP. In 2023 Uniland commenced construction of a
second warehouse/distribution facility on the parcel adjacent to 8 Dona, located at 2
Steelworkers Way. Infrastructure work also continued, and ILDC presented a public
information hearing on a possible passive park located on a bluff overlooking Lake Erie.

The ILDC also continued work on the Master Plan/GEIS for the ILDC’s other major
property, Erie County Agribusiness Park, in Evans, NY. This work is being completed
with grant support from National Grid ($354,000) and Erie County ($230,000). A
$250,000 grant was also awarded by Empire State Development to be used for building
demolition, sewer, and roadway work. Construction of a water tower and two Master
Plan options were completed, in anticipation of the public hearing for the Draft GEIS in

early 2024.

The RDC continued to operate two revolving loan funds (RLFs) in 2023, providing
favorable terms to businesses who may not qualify for traditional lending from banks. By
the end of 2023, the RDC’s funds available for lending were replenished to
approximately $3,000,000. The RDC Board approved an updated Loan Administration

7

-90-



Plan (LAP), which includes a new line of credit product designed to help businesses in
targeted industries grow their businesses and create jobs in Erie County. Special lending
terms for MWBE businesses were also codified in the LAP.

The ECIDA Board approved a new enhanced PILOT benefit designed to increase MWBE
contract and hiring opportunities on projects that receive ECIDA PILOT benefits. The
Economic Inclusion Policy offers up to 25% less in PILOT payments if the project meets
agreed-upon MWBE contract and/or hiring goals.

14. Four-Year Financial Plan:

A copy of the four-year financial plan is posted on the ECIDA’s website at
https://www.ecidany.com/about-us-corporate-reports.

15. Board Performance Evaluations:

The ECIDA, RDC and ILDC Boards of Directors conducted a Board Performance
Evaluation in 2023 and forwarded the results to the Authorities Budget Office. The
surveys are not subject to disclosure under article six of the Public Officers Law.

16. Assets/Services bought or sold without competitive bidding:

Attachments 8, 8A, and 8B are Procurement Reports that are filed using PARIS for the
ECIDA, RDC, and ILDC respectively. These reports outline the assets and services
purchased through competitive and non-competitive bidding for all procurements in

excess of $5,000.

17. Description of material pending litigation:

The audited financial statements for the ECIDA, RDC, and ILDC outline any material
pending litigation. The audited financial statements are posted on the ECIDA’s website at
http://www.ecidany.com/about-us-corporate-reports.

-91-



Certification Pursuant to Section 2800(3) of the Public Authorities Law

Pursuant to Section 2800 (3) of the Public Authorities Law, each of the undersigned
officers of Erie County Industrial Development Agency, Buffalo and Erie County
Regional Development Corporation, and the Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land
Development Corporation does hereby certify with respect to the annual financial report
of the Corporation (the “Annual Financial Report™) posted on the ECIDA’s website at
http://www.ecidany.com/about-us-corporate-reports that based on the officer’s

knowledge:

1. The information provided in the Annual Financial Report is accurate, correct and
does not contain any untrue statement of material fact;

2. Does not omit any material fact which, if omitted, would cause the financial
statements contained in the Annual Financial Report to be misleading in light of
the circumstances under which such statements are made; and

3. Fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition and results of
operations of the Corporation as of, and for, the periods presented in such
financial statements.

John Cappellino
President & CEO

Mollie Profic
Vice President/CFO

-92_



Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)
Buffalo & Erie County Industrial Land Development Corp. (ILDC)
Buffalo & Erie County Regional Development Corporation (RDC)

2023 Mission Statement and Performance Measurements with Results
Approval Date of Goals: March 22, 2023
Approval Date of Results: Anticipated March 27, 2024

Purpose:

The Public Authorities Law requires public authorities to develop and adopt a mission statement
and to develop performance measures to assist them in determining how well they are carrying
out their mission. The Authorities Budget Office (ABO) requires that all public authorities utilize
the following format to annually review their mission statement and performance measures and
publish a measurement report. This report is designed to satisfy these requirements.

Please note: The ECIDA publishes an annual report outlining detailed project information and
accomplishments called “Year in Review.” The Year in Review is on the ECIDA’'s website at

https://www.ecidany.com under “About Us” then “Annual Reports”.

Mission Statement:

The mission of the Erie County IDA and its affiliates is to provide the resources that encourage
investment, innovation, workforce development and international trade resulting in a successful
business climate focused on growth, economic stability, job creation and retention for businesses
and individuals which improves the quality of life for the residents of the region.

-93.



Performance Goals, Measures & Results:

Goal 1: To promote private investment & innovation:

Objective 1A: ECIDA: Encourage private sector investment by providing incentives and
other economic development services to spur eligible development
projects.

Measurement: Value of new private investments from tax incentives
Metric: $250 - $275 M in private investment from approved tax incentives.

Results: A total of 13 tax incentive projects were approved by the ECIDA
Board of Directors in 2023. The total private investment amount for
these projects totaled over $339.2 M.

TAX INCENTIVES INDUCED

R = w/oamend & w/ amend == # of Project
500.00 i 25
. 450.00 o
400.00 - R§§§§t§§§§\ §
350.00 ’ == -5 i
300.00 g S . 15
250.00 '
200.00 10
150.00
100.00 ' 5
50.00 !

20

2021 2022 2023

Page | 2 Rev 3/12/24

-94-



Objective 1B: RDC: Provide “gap financing” to spur the creation of new businesses and

Measurement:

Metric:

Results:

Page | 3

private-sector investment in working capital, machinery and equipment.

Number of loans, $ amount of loans and amount of private investment for
loans approved

6-8 business loans totaling $2 M with private investment = $5 M.
Currently, the RDC has limited lending capacity (the majority of funds
have been deployed). As of Jan ‘23, the RDC has approximately $750 K
in funds to lend and expects this amount to increase due to monthly
principal reflow = approx. $200,000.

RDC approved 8 loans from the Legacy Fund for $3.1 M with $10.4 M in
private investment. Historically, the RDC has leveraged private
investment 6.5 to 1. Limited loan funds were available to lend during the
first half of 2023 which restricted the RDC’s ability to entertain some loan
requests. However, overall demand for loans was lighter than expected
due to rising interest rates and threats of a recession. Thus, the monthly
principal reflow coupled with several loan payoffs adequately replenished
the loan fund by the end of 2023 resulting in approximately $3 million to
lend.

Loans: Approved & Private Investment Amounts (in $M)
$48.7

$50.0 10
- 2
$40.0 T g 8
2‘7;5 7
. I 6

$30.0
‘ 5
$20.0 4
$12.7 . $10.4 3
¢10.0 7.0 | 2
$3.7 - $3.1 | 1
$0.0 - B - 0
2021 2022 2023
e Loan Amt Private Invest Amt = «=# of loans closed
Rev 3/12/24

-95_



Objective 1C: ECIDA & ILDC: Assist non-profit and other eligible borrowers to obtain
low-interest, tax-exempt bond financing.

Measurement: Value of private investments from low-interest financing provided to non-
profit organizations and qualified private activity bond projects.

Metric: 1 -2 tax exempt bonds totaling $30 — $35 M

Results: The ECIDA Board of Directors approved $87.3 M in tax exempt bonds.
This included the Related Companies Westchester Park bond totaling
$22.3 M. The Joint School Construction Board refinanced several bonds
totaling $65M providing the Buffalo School system with the anticipated
financial savings of approx. $2.94 M over a three-year period.

Tax Exempt Bonds induced (in SM)

- $160.0 5

4
$120.0 /\\
3
$80.0 &&x%\\\\
2

$40.0 / 1

$0.0 0
2021 2022 2023

Bond Amt =4 of Bonds

Page | 4 Rev 3/12/24

-96-



Objective 1D: ECIDA & ILDC: Pursue state, federal and private (grant) funding
opportunities to support priority projects and leverage private investment.
Administer projects that have received grant funding.

Measurement:

amount of grant funds under administration.

Number and $ amount of grant applications submitted. Number and $

Metric: 4 — 5 grants submitted annually for $1.5 - $2 M. 2- 4 grants totaling $1.5
— 2 M under administration.
Resuits: In 2023, 15 grant applications were submitted (tot = $24.5 M) resulting
in: § funded ($ 6.35M), 7 pending ($10.73 M) and 3 declined ($5.80 M).
In 2023 there were 9 active grants totaling $12 M under administration.
Grants Submitted (in SM)
$30.0 16
$20.0 g 12
$10.0 . = 2
o P .
2021 2022 2023
e Grant Amt # of Grants
. Status
Applicant Name of Grant (as of 12/31/23) $ Awarded
Farest Service Urban & Community Forestry Inflation Reduction Act Awarded $255,584
Muni Planning Grant - village 1 Awarded $38,800
Muni Planning Grant - village 2 Awarded $30,000
. Restore NY Round 7 Awarded $1,272,513
E.ne County Community Dev Block Grant Declined
Villages " i
] Green Innovation - village 1 Not Funded
(various) - -
Green Innovation - village 2 Not Funded
Urban & Community Forestry Pending
Assistance to Firefighters Declined
New York Forward Declined
ILDC FAST NY Awarded $4,750,000
Community Resiliency Econ Sustainability & Tech Pending
Congressionally Directed Spendirlg Request Pending
ECIDA Consolidated Rail Infrastructure & Safety Improvement Declined
Rebuilding America Infrastructure with Sustainability & Equity Declined
$6,346,897
Page | 5 Rev 3/12/24

-97.



Goal 2: To support business formation, job growth, and economic expansion
targeting economically challenged and disadvantaged communities:

Objective 2A:

Measurement:
Metric:

Resuilt:

Objective 2B:

Measurement:

Metric:

Page | 6

ECIDA & ILDC: Support the re-investment in vacant, abandoned, and
underutilized buildings.

Number and investment value of adaptive re-use building projects
5 - 6 adaptive reuse projects approved totaling $150 - $175 M

5 adaptive reuse projects were approved with total private investment =
$80.9 M. These projects will create a total of 250 apartment units of
which 38 units (15%) will be available at 80% AMI (or below). All 5
projects are in distressed census tracts and/or adjacent to distressed
census tracts. The private investment amount reflects both the available
building stock consisting of buildings with smaller sq ft (many of the larger
buildings eligible for adaptive reuse have already undergone
redevelopment) and impacts of other market conditions.

Adaptive Reuse Projects (in $M)

$150.0 6
$100.0 gﬁ\"%«\% 4.
3
$50.0 2
1
$0.0 0

2021 2022 2023

Total §  ====# of Projects

ECIDA ILDC & RDC: Support the creation and growth of smali business
and minority & women-owned businesses (MWBE).

Number and $ amount of direct assistance through Agency product
offerings to MWBESs (i.e. business loans, tax incentives). Procurement
goal $ amount and % spent with MWBE vendors for both operational and

other purchases.

Direct Assistance: - $250,000 in direct assistance to 5 — 7 MWBEs.

Rev 3/12/24

-98-



Results:

Page | 7

Vendor Operational Purchases of $18,000 / 30% MWBE (i.e. office
supplies, catering, equipment leasing).

Other Purchases: Meet 100% of the following: 1) Professional services
including 30% MWBE for engineering/design, 2) Construction service
that includes 30% MWBE for contract utilization and 3) RFPs and/or bids
scoring — that includes MWBE utilization and/or D&l initiatives valued at
10% of the scoring index

Direct Assistance: 8 MWBESs received assistance totaling $1,840,000
and were comprised of 4 RDC loans ($1,700,000) and 4 ILDC Loans
($140,000). Of the 8 loans, 2 RDC loans ($800,000) and 1 ILDC loan
($35,000) were made to minority women.

In 2023 the RDC amended the Loan Administrative Plan (LAP) to include
a new line of credit offering special terms to MWBE's targeting four
industries (Daycare’s, Construction, Trades and Agriculture Businesses.
In addition, the ECIDA provided a $2,500 SBA sponsorship for Straight
Talk that provides technical assistance to MWBE businesses.

S Amount of MBE WBE Direct Assistance

2,000,000.00
1,600,000.00 - —
1,200,000.00 ' W
800,000.00 "“f:lj'
400,000.00 s

2021 2022

Purchasing: A total of $145,000 of operational purchases were identified
(major categories were printing/marketing, IT services / hardware /
software, and office supplies). Of that total, $21,000 (14.5%) were from
known M/WBEs. $16,800 (11.6%) were from WBEs and $4,200 (2.9%)
were from MBEs. In 2023 ECIDA increased its annual spend with WBEs
by $5,680 and with MBEs by $520 and also began relationships with
three new M/WBE vendors.

Other Purchases: Construction Services 100% compliance: 2 bids issued
in 2023 with a value of $6.9 M included 30% MWBE goal have been
awarded to vendors with a commitment to 30% MWBE value = $1.7 M.

RFPs and/or Bids Scoring: 100% of RFPs included scoring value = 10%
for MBE/WBE commitment.

Rev 3/12/24

-99._



Objective 2C: ECIDA, ILDC & RDC: Support diversity, equity & inclusion with a focus
on staff development

Measurement: Provide training opportunities re: Racial Equity

Metric: Provide two or more continued educational / training opportunities for
staff on DEI
Results: Four DEI related continuing education / training opportunities were

offered to and attended by staff during 2023.

e BNP DEI Virtual Learning Series “Is Inclusion Belonging” on April 18th & April 28th.

e BNP DEI Virtual Learning Series “Affirmative Action SCOTUS Decision and The
Impact on Your Business” on November 9th.
BNP DEI Virtual Learning Series “How to Lead Inclusively” on November 30th.

* Mandatory NYS Sexual Harassment Training for all staff included diversity in the
workplace. Training held on September 18th

Objective 2D:  ECIDA: Increase opportunities for minorities and women to experience
economic progress through tax incentive programs.

Measurement: Adoption of ECIDA Economic Inclusion PILOT

Metric: Obtain ECIDA Board approval of and begin implementation of Economic
Inclusion PILOT Policy.

Results; The Economic Inclusion PILOT program was implemented during 3rd Q
2023. The goal of this program is to promote, encourage and maximize
opportunities for minorities and women to experience economic
progress by 1) establishing MWBE utilization goals for construction
activities and 2) to meet minority and women job creation and/or
retention goals. In meeting these goals, the applicant’s project will be
eligible for enhanced benefits related to the Payment in Lieu of Taxes
(PILOT). Of the 3 projects brought to the Board for approval in the 4th
Q, one was eligible for the Economic Inclusion PILOT and has opted
into the program (Project=1175 Delaware/Delaware Place).Several
business development prospects in the pipeline have expressed
interest in the program — should their projects be brought to the ECIDA
Board in 2024.

Page | 8 Rev 3/12/24

-100-



Objective 2E:

ECIDA: Support the creation and retention of jobs at all salary levels.

Measurement: Total # and average $ of jobs to be retained & created. For informational

Metric:

Results:

purposes include salary info re: management, professional,
administrative, production, independent contractor and other.

Average salary for retained and created jobs at $50,000 - $55,000.

In 2023, the average salary for the 1,343 FT Jobs (1,097 retained, 246
new) = $76,117. The average salary for the 73 PT Jobs (40 retained, 33
new) = $33,187 The total annual payroll amount = $226 M

2023 FULL TIME

Category # of Jobs | Salary w/ Fringe Salary w/o Fringe
Management 124 S 123,747 S 102,887
Professional 210 S 112,561 S 91,009
Administrative 110 S 82,249 S 67,090
Production 845 $ 72,334 S 59,600
Independent Contractor | 4 S 48,325 S 48,325
Other 50 S 84,485 S 68,400
2023 PART TIME

Category # of Jobs | Salary w/ Fringe Salary w/o Fringe
Management 1 S 30,000 S 30,000
Professional 2 S 56,250 S 45,000
Administrative 2 S 25,000 S 25,000
Production 55 S 29,431 S 29,318
Independent Contractor | 0 $ - ) -
Other 13 S 44,231 S 44,231

*Average salary metric is based on historical data with consideration given to market adjustments (such as inflation,
cost of living) and comparisons to County / City of Buffalo living wage data”

Page | 9

Rev 3/12/24

-101-




Objective 2F:

Measurement:

Metric:

Results:

Page | 10

ECIDA, RDC & ILDC: Reach out to Erie County businesses to inform
them of ECIDA and other business support services available.

Number of business outreach attempts (including marketing
communication efforts)

20,000 business outreach contacts

In 2023 business outreach contacts = 42,755 over doubling the goal. The
outreach efforts include direct business development contacts, event
participation, presentations, and direct marketing communication
activities (direct mailers, marketing email clicks). The main reason for this
increase is we changed the measurement unit from Business First email
‘opt ins” in previous years to the industry-standard measurement of
impressions based upon Business First direct marketing emails. Note:
21,000 opt ins (2022) to 40,000 impressions (2023).

Additional paid advertising Marcomm activities for 2023 totaled more
than 909,000 impressions (social media, radio and print advertising).

Outreach Efforts
50000
40000
30000 1
20000

10000 i

2021 2022 2023

Rev 3/12/24

-102-



Objective 2G: ILDC: Support reinvestment in vacant and abandoned brownfield
properties for the purpose of creating shovel-ready sites, new
investment, and jobs.

Measurement: Number of acres of land redeveloped / in the process of redevelopment
and public/private investment amounts

Metric: 350 acres of land under management

Results: Continued management and redevelopment of approximately 486 acres
of land: 240 acres of brownfield property at Renaissance Commerce
Park, 240 acres of land at the Erie County Agribusiness Park (former
Angola Airport site), and 6 acres at the former Polymer Applications site
(3445 River Road).

2023 Highlights

Site

Activities

Renaissance Commerce Park

Managed 14 new prospect leads for RCP.

Construction of new water and sewer lines at Odell, and Ridge Road corridors.
Completion of road construction for final section of Steelworkers Way.

8 Dona Street facility ribbon cutting, fully leased.

2 Steelworkers Way facility under construction, completion in early 2024.
Negotiating sale of parcel 4a to Uniland Development for construction of a 3rd Spec.
building site, 10 acres.

Awarded $4.75 million FASTNY grant for WYE Yard rail relocation project.
Engineering Contract Awarded and underway for WYE Yard rail relocation project.

s Completion of Smokes Creek Passive Park feasibility study

Agri-business Park

o  Construction of new water tower to provide additional water service to the Town of Evans
and the Park.

o |Installation of new electrical service and water lines to service the Park

e  Completion and approval of Masterplan and Draft GEIS for Park

Polymer Site

e Negotiated lease - 3445 River Road, Tonawanda, with MN8 Group for the development
of a battery storage facility.

Page | 11

Rev 3/12/24

-103-



Goal 3: To encourage international trade:

Objective 3A: ECIDA: Promote & support the use of Erie County’s foreign trade zone
(FTZ) to assist businesses in remaining globally competitive by reducing,
eliminating, or deferring import duties.

Measurement: Value of goods moving through FTZ #23 and # of FTZ activated sites

Metric: A total of 6 FTZ sites with goods valued at $62 M moving through the
zone.

Results: For year-end 2022, a total of 6 Active FTZ Sites with goods valued at
$92,057,662 million moved through the zone. This represents an
increase of $29,765,515 from year end 2021. The increase in FTZ
activity was primarily driven by the Cummins Engine and Sucrose
Sourcing sites.

Foreign Trade Zone #23
$100.0 8
- J 7
$80.0 * o 6
$60.0 [ 5
4
$40.0 3
$20.0 £
il
$0.0 ' 0
2020 2021 2022
e S Value of Goods # FTZ sites

*(note: due to the timing of the Annual Federal FTZ Reporting (June) — the prior year’s results are listed)

Page | 12

Rev 3/12/24

-104-



Goal 4: Regional & Business Resiliency:

Objective 4A:
Measurement:

Metric:

Results:

Objective 4B:

Measurement:

Metric:

Results:

Page | 13

ECIDA, RDC, ILDC: Assist businesses throughout Erie County.
Provide a roadmap for business resiliency.

Implement the updated 2022 Comprehensive Economic Development
Strategy (CEDS) that includes a Post COVID-19 Economic Recovery
Response Addendum that will provide action steps for responding to the
economic injury/disruption caused by the coronavirus pandemic.

The Erie County CEDS Implementation Committee met 3 times in 2023:
Mar 27 (virtual), Aug 28" (in-person) & Dec 11t (virtual) to discuss the
status of the goals and objectives contained in the 2022 Updated CEDS.
Outputs from each meeting include Meeting Summary Reports and
CEDS Committee Survey Responses.

ECIDA RDC, ILDC: Support Small Businesses in Erie County
Consortium Communities whose owners have low to moderate

household incomes.

Provide administrative support for the Erie County Microenterprise Loan
and other programs funded by Community Development Block Grant
funds.

Approve 5-7 loans for $160,000, which represents the remaining funds
available for lending from the Erie County Microenterprise Loan program.
The ECIDA will continue to service, support and market the lending
program to the eligible consortium communities.

The ILDC closed 8 micro enterprise loans for $280K with $49K in private
investment. 4 of the loans were to Woman owned businesses. Due to
principal re-flow from loan payoffs from the existing loan portfolio,
additional HUD monies were allocated to the loan fund. The ILDC was
able to fund more loans than previously anticipated.

Rev 3/12/24

-105-



Goal 5: To

safeguard the public’s investment by ensuring compliance and

transparency with ECIDA Policies & Procedures, NYS Tax, EDA and ABO
requirements:

Objective 5A:

Measurement:

Metric:

Results:

ECIDA: Client compliance with material terms including local labor,
employment retention & creation, investment, pay equity and unpaid real
property tax policies.

Collection and analysis of quarterly employment & local labor reports for
all active projects, review of investment verifications, facilitate completion
of pay equity audits by Erie County office of EEO and real property tax
payments through the Erie County Commissioner of Real Property
Services

100% compliance

In 2023, 1 project obtained a local labor waiver, and 2 projects
successfully complied with the Pay Equity audit, showing no adverse
findings. 100% compliance unpaid real property tax policies and
investment confirmations. Compliance with employment retention and
creation to be assessed Q1, pending receipt / analysis of annual surveys.

Objective 5B: ECIDA: Client compliance with the NYS Sales and Use Tax program.

Measurement:

Metric:

Results:

Objective 5C:

Measurement:

Metric:

Results:

Page | 14

Monitor and review of clients’ ST-340 reporting forms against the amount
of the sales tax savings approved by the Board of Directors to ensure that
the amount of the sales tax savings that clients report does not exceed
the board approved amounts.

100% client compliance

Two clients exceeded their sales tax benefit - both overages have been
collected/remitted to NYS. One NYS ST-340 form pending as of 3/12/24.

ECIDA, RDC & ILDC: Compliance with ABO’s deadlines/regulatory
reguirements.

Timely and accurate filing of the annual PARIS reports, budgets and
financial audits

100% compliance

The Agency is on track to meet filing requirements of the ABO's 3/31/24
reporting deadline.

Rev 3/12/24

-106-



Objective 5D: ECIDA, RDC & ILDC: Board Member compliance with ABO regulatory

requirements.

Measurement: Board completion of the annual Board of Directors Self Evaluation,

Metric:

Results:

Objective 5E:

Measurement:
Metric:

Results:

Objective 5F:

execution of the Acknowledgement of Fiduciary Duties & Responsibilities
forms, and completion of the required ABO board member training.

100% compliance

All 19 ECIDA & RDC Board Members and 7 ILDC Board Members have
completed ABO board member training. The Agency is on track to meet
the ABO's reporting deadline of 3/31/24.

ECIDA, ILDC & RDC: Ensure proper controls and safeguards over the
financial reporting and assets of the organizations.

Annual independent audit reports of all entities.
Audit opinions and management letter.

Anticipating an unqualified opinion indicating that the financial statements
are reasonably stated.

RDC: Ensure proper controls and safeguards over the administration of
the new $5 Mil EDA CARES Act revolving loan fund (RLF).

Measurement: Obtain the highest rating from the U.S. Dept of Commerce: Economic

Metric:

Results:

Page | 15

Development Administration (EDA) on the quality / health of the RLF
administered by the RDC

Receive an “A” rating from the EDA.

For the year ended December 31, 2022, a Level A risk rating was
assigned to the CARES Act RLF. 32 out of a possible 33 points were
earned. Metrics such as loan write-offs, available cash compared to
other RLFs in the region, and strong portfolio management contributed
to the high rating. Certain risk metrics such as default rate, net RLF
income, and loan leverage ratio have been relaxed during the startup
period and will factor into future risk ratings. The risk rating for the year
ended December 31, 2023 is expected to be known mid-2024, as the
reporting deadline is March 30, 2024.

Rev 3/12/24

-107-



Governance Certification

1.

Have the board members acknowledged that they have read and understood the
mission of the public authority?

Board of Directors response: Yes
Who has the power to appoint the management of the public authority?
Board of Directors response: The Board of Directors

If the Board appoints management, do you have a policy you foliow when
appointing the management of the public authority?

Board of Directors response: The Board has not adopted a written policy.
However, the Board follows prudent and reasonable practices to appoint
responsible individuals.

Briefly describe the role of the Board and the role of management in the
implementation of the mission.

Board of Directors response: The role of the Board regarding the
implementation of the public authority’s mission is to provide strategic guidance,
oversight, mission authorization, policy setting and validation of the authority’s
mission, performance measurements and results. The role of management is to
collaborate with the Board in strategy development and to implement established
programs, processes, activities and policies to achieve the public authority's
mission.

Has the Board acknowledged that they have read and understood the responses
to each of these questions?

Board of Directors response: Yes

Page | 16 Rev 3/12/24

-108-



ECIDA Bonds ATTACHMENT 2

jd FStes S ROl ECtN S a Stend sty
Niagara Maryland Development,
1062 |M&T Bank LLC $2,500,000| $ 215,000 | § - |8 216,000 |var 295088F M5 6/1/23
New York
Housing Finance
2360 |Agency 2009 Shoreline Apartments LLC $9,000,000( $ 1,096,892 | § 1,044,869 | $ 52,023 |0.055 5003]  11/30/41
Bank of New Our Lady of Victory Renaissance
2516 | York Mellon Corporation $11,860,000| $ 6,805,000 | $ 6,275,000 | $ 530,000 |Variable 4/1/32
2591 |M&T Bank Canisius High School $22,250,000| $ 9,900,000 | $ 9,475,000 | § 425,000 |var 1012768 2/1/38
Joint Schools Construction Board
10194 |M&T Bank 2013 Refund of 2009A Bonds $62,540,000($ 60,235,000 | $ 59,935,000 | § 300,000 |var 254 5/1/28
U.S. Bank 1036945,
Nationaf Medaille Coliege 2013 Refund of 1036947,
10216 |Association ECIDA 2003 Bond $18,240,000( $ 13,010,000 | $ - 18 13,010,000 |fixed 1036932 2/16/35
Joint Schools Construction Board
(Refund of 2007A & 2008A
10291 |M&T Bank bonds) - Series 2015A $236,975,000| $ 140,925,000 |$ 120,385,000 | $ 20,540,000 |var. H378 2029

Joint Schools Construction Board
Series 2016A (Refund of 2009A

10342 |M&T Bank Bonds) $133,580,000| $ 100,275,000 | $ 84,405,000 | $ 15,870,000 |2.17 118534-000 2031
Zions CPC7068801,
10404 |Bancorporation |Marina Vista $13,300,000{$ 12,768,730 | $ 12,671,935 | § 196,795 |fixed 7916 12/20/37
U.S. Bank
National Related Affordable/Eimwood 1.846%,
10504 | Association Square Apariments $8,590,000( § 8,590,000 |$ 8,534,149.62 | § 55,850.38 |Fixed 234450000 2038
Joint Schools Construction
Board/City School District of the
10621 |M&T Bank City of Buffalo -2021 series $109,135,000| $ 103,935,000 | $ 95,955,000 | $ 7,980,000 |Fixed 2032
Joint Schools Canstruction
Board/City School District of the
10730 |M&T Bank City of Buffalo - 2022 series $71,150,000/ $ 71,150,000 | $ 51,945,000 | $ 19,205,000 |Fixed 156152-000 2026
Huntington OAHS Tonawanda TC, LLC Account number
10758 |National Bank  |(Tonawanda Towers) $ 11,090,000 | $ 11,090,000 | $ 11,090,000 | $ - |Fixed 5082001861 10/1/2062
Wilmington Trust
National Ellicott Park Townhomes
10764 |Association Community Pariners, LP $33,000,000 $33,000,000| $ 32,935,000 | $ 65,000 |5.45% fixq161477-000 4/1/2067
U.S. Bank 248174000
National Westchester Park Perservation
10809 | Association LP $22,310,000 $22,310,000| $ 22,310,000 | § - |4.23% fixe 2041
Joint Schools Construction
Board/City School District of the
10813 |M&T Bank City of Buffalo - 2023A $57,270,000 $57,270,000| $ 57,270,000 | § - |5.0% fixeq166740-000 2028

$ 6562575622 |§ 574,130,953

-109-



PrOTECEACIES

—-

Sishsied il

|

ILDC Bonds

HAARCE 3

K& e GG AR R by o

P CTh MR8 25

JAteTEC TR At e

ATTACHMENT 2

LeF4a helilel | |

e -l LV SEGE T S N T e L LANESSR) A= - RS =
2758|UMB Bank Enterprise Charter School $7,345,000.00 $6,060,000.00 $5,895,000.00 $165,000 75 1032851
Cantalician Center for Learning-
10111|M&T Bank Series A $9 525,000 $4,953,333 $4,440,000 $513,333 |var. 1034105
The Bank of New
10278 |York Mellon Catholic Health System $93,800,000 $72,980,000 $66,500,000.00 $4,480.000 5
The Bank of New |Orchard Park CCRC, Inc. a/k/a
10290 |York Mellon Fox Run $44,490.000 $35,550,000 $34,055,000 $1,495,000 |1-5% ORCHRDPARK15
Canisius College of Buffalo,
New York - Refund of 2004-
2005 DASNY Bonds - Series Libor rate:
10296 |M&T Bank 2015A $30,760,000.00 $19,825,000.00 $18,865,000.00 $960,000 [1.3375 3233822
Canisius College of Buffalo,
New York - Refund of 2004-
2005 DASNY Bonds - Series Libor rate:
10296 |M&T Bank 20158 $16,195,000.00 $16,195,000.00 $16,195,000.00 $0 |1.4075 3233830
10338 |M&T Bank 854 Ellicott Street, LLC $44,328,500 $40,003,376.32 $39.055,046.90 $948,329.42 2.95/99-6641368-3
Series A - 123350-000
10371|M&T Bank Tapestry Charter School $33,900,000.00|  $32,150,000.00 $31,645,000.00 $505.000 Series B - 123351-000
Charter School for Applied Varies: 4.25%-
10375(U.8. Bank Technologies $22,995,000.00 | $18,340,000.00 $17,285,000.00 $1,055,000 |5.00% 220612000
Medaille College 2018 Series
Refunding of 2010 Bonds
10398 |M&T Bank (LDC) $9,350,000.00 $9,045,000.00 $0.00 $9,045.000
Global Concepts Charter
10399 |Wilmington Trust {School $6,185,000.00 . $5,290,000.00 $5,045,000.00 $245,000 |4 & 5% 131876-000
10470|U.S. Bank DYouwille College $48,205.000.00 | _$46,525,000.00 $45,615.000.00 $910,000 [Variable 234554000
Key Government  [134 High Street, LLC, Series
10713 |Finance, Inc. 2022 $19.635,847.21 $19,023,082.11 $18,269,755.69 $753.326.42 2.92%
$325,939,791 $304.864.803

-110-



ATTACHMENT 3
Erie County Industrial Development Agency
Compensation Schedule
Year Ended: December 31, 2023

The following employees had a base salary greater than $100,000 in 2023:

Performance Payroll
Name Titie Salary Compensation Taxes* Benefits Total
John Cappellino President & CEO $ 205,000 - 13,157 41612 | § 259,769
Elizabeth O'Keefe Vice President - Operations $ 120,000 - 9,432 23,844 | $ 153,276
Mollie Profic Vice President & CFO $ 115,605 - 9,096 37485 | % 162,186
Grant Lesswing Director of Business Development | § 106,822 - 8,424 29,739 | $ 144,985

* Represents Employer's Share of FICA taxes (Social Security & Medicare) & NYS Unemployment Insurance taxes

-111-



Erie County Industrial Development Agency
Projects Undertaken by the Corporation
Year Ended: December 31, 2023

ATTACHMENT 4

Projected  Net Jobs
Year2 Projectedto Lease Project Tax Exempt

Company Jobs be Created Amount Bond Amount  Date Approved

1 Moog, Inc. 180 0 $ 76,750,800 3/22/2023
2 Lactalis American Group, inc. 403 27 44,526,000 11/29/2023
3 Westchester Park Preservation 5 1 35,600,000 22,310,000 10/25/2023
4 BPS Commissary Kitchen 66 15 33,067,799 7/26/2023
5 356 Hertel Ave, LLC 42 42 32,067,800 2/2212023
6 IMA Life North America 150 30 27,556,179 9/27/2023
7 Wood and Brooks Properties, LLC 3 3 23,127,638 4/26/2023
8 1175 Delaware Place 2 2 16,750,000 11/29/2023
9 Stark Real Estate Holdings 180 130 16,250,000 6/28/2023
10 Rosina Food Products, Inc. 291 15 16,000,000 6/28/2023
11 Commitment 2000/Father Sam's 88 12 8,623,800 2/22/2023
12 TM Montante/50 Gates Circle 4 0 3,465,838 5/31/2023
13 Trautman Associates/130 Pearl, LLC 2 2 2,477,047 712612023
14 JSCB Series 2023A Refunding of 2013A Bonds 0 0 65,000,000 10/25/2023

Total: 1416 279 $ 336,262,901 $ 87,310,000

-112-



ATTACHMENT 4A

Buffalo & Erie County Regional Development Corporation

Projects Undertaken by the Corporation (Loans)

Company
1 Perry's lce Cream

2 Linita Design & Manufacturing
3 Sherex Fastening Solutions

4 Top Seedz, LLC

5 Rust Belt Love, Inc.

6 El Encanto Café, Inc.

Year Ended: December 31, 2023

-113-

Total

Loan Amount Date Closed
) 2,000,000 6/21/2023
750,000 4/21/2023
750,000 3/16/2023
750,000 4/28/2023
100,000 1/24/2023
100,000 4/21/2023
S 4,450,000




ATTACHMENT 4B

Buffalo & Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation
Projects Undertaken by the Corporation (Loans)
Year Ended: December 31, 2023

Company Loan Amount Date Closed
1 Kevin Thie d/b/a Buffalo Firewood S 35,000 4/11/2023
2 David Grapes, Jr d/b/a Grapes Lawn and Landscape 35,000 6/12/2023
3 Elaine Urbanowicz d/b/a Urbanowicz Acres 35,000 7/6/2023
4 Dark Forest Chocolate Makers Inc. 35,000 7/31/2023
5 J.P Mobil Detailing LLC 35,000 9/6/2023
6 Taylor'd Beauty LLC 35,000 10/30/2023
7 Beach's Motorcycle Adventures Ltd. 35,000 10/31/2023
8 Beauty Blends Tattoo & Spa Inc. 35,000 11/13/2023

Total S 280,000

-114-



"a|qejieae 4 ‘|eslesdde Jo (sjqeoidde j ajes uoyezienba xe) Joj pajsnipe) anjea passasse uo paseg ,

“diysiaumo |eroyauaq
"S}y8USQ 4310 Jo XE] UIeHIad ASAUDD O} JOPIO Ul Bl [E21UYIB) SBY YQIDT Ayl YIIym U sana

€31, SBY Y103 U} as9ym asoy) ase pajussald sejuadosd ay )
doud Jo spaipuny sy} sapnjoxa Buls) sAoqe ay jey) ajou aseald

pied a1d aseyaing 19)19§ 0 SSAIPPY B aweN Auadoud jo Auadoag jo uopdioassq ina Auadosd jo uo))eao pue ssaippy PUMQ
Jo 9eg «AINS
pajewnsy 1
'€202 Buunp pasinboe sem ey} Aysdoid [eal e jo Buysy e s) Bumojio ay) ¢ af H
i
PAA|adaY d9pg 9jes Jo ajeq 43SBY2INd JO SSAIPPY ' SlUEN Apadoud jo Auadoid go uopdpasag ng Apedoid Jo uoneso pue ssaippy Jaumo
AN
pajewysy

S INJWHOVLLY

‘€202 Buunp jo pasodsip sem jey Auadosd Ieat jje pue (000's$ Jo ssa9xa ui (|

AW} 8njea jaxsew Jiey e yuw) Apadoud [euossed o Bunsi| e st Bumoyoj 3yl Z sigeL

LEE'6L9'L ¢ Bulpiing *J's 89E'64/M PuE) JUEdEA J saloe 68261 8121 AN 'euuemexde ‘axyiduin) BinquieH £oEz ola] ||
905'€0.L sbuipjing |e12Jawwod /m pue) jo saloe 66°LE£2 900¥1 AN ‘SUBAZ ‘peqy J9JUSQ SUeA] USpT 9ZG) oaqll
000'0¢ PuUej Juedep 0SiPL AN ‘BPUEMELO] 'PROY JAAIY Ghirg 2a1l
000'008°L Ajnioey eoyyo joo) aienbs £og'z) €02¥1 AN ‘Ojeyng '19ang sssausg gp| vaid3a
000612t ¢ 9SN0YaleMm [elosRwLo) 82l AN vaio3
‘euuemeyoe ‘syidwng Binquen AN - 43)ud) apeu| Aemajes)
JSadoig Auadoud jo uopdjiasaq ing Auadoud yo uopeao pue ssaippy JaumQ
40 AN
pajewsy

"€202 ‘L€ Jaquanaq] 1. ssleyue sy pue YQ[D3 oy Aq paumo Auadoid [B31 jje jo Bunsy e si Bumolioy ayl | aiqe

€202 ‘L J9quadaq :papug Jeap
Hoday Apadoiy

Kouaby yuawdojsnsg leisnpuj fjunos aug



43

143

«181S pireq

g3

LYHWS eine

193

143

143

7330425 Y1auuay

143

43

uasdpud snueg

143

43

ZJe3U0|0d yiep

-E|

|

-El

SiifaN uu3|o

43

«A3UDP piaeq

43

N3

3

314NQIIA epuaig

143

UBMODIA asIuag

43

Asuped uesns g

- E|

143

-E|

zyisdn pJeyory

-E}

«diniei Aduep

143

ed|ny ueuig

143

193

XNH-UOSUYor eJA )

1§93

UOSUYOf PIEMOH

143

saysni |2eydiN

d3

«4nopueo e0agay

Jaysejjeo aimoq

43

43

}-F]

+SUBA3 Aieydez

43

d3

Ja8uiww] ydasor

143

+ASUUOHaQ uosyj|y

d3

Y3

umoug uohug

d3

an(g e

143

PISMoNzZauag aueiq

143

H3

*UUM299 Auudgd

43

« Saudeg 'y

43

«upjseg udy

193

LSauleg sewoy]

EE|

43

1oqqy asiuaq

)
-21UM
ueol

ueoy

Axjod

Suneupwopn

upny
3 ddueuyy

uonlesuadwo)

SOUBUIBAOD

3A1N2AX3

awep

94 Judwiydeny

2Q11=1 20¥=Y ‘vaid3 =3 :Aay

saapniwwo) paeog HQ11/0ay/vain3

(ez/T€/ZT 10 5V))

-116-



slaquiaw pieog-uop ,

H3 *SPOOAA 9240y
193 193 U303 ZUM Wel|)im
43 EE| AINA |ned
K| B1GO] uyor ‘uoH
43 +J0JABL |9eyIN
143 £Blenzs |aeydnn
¥3 «Suaydals uoae

3O

-3l Upny annnlax3
ueo ueo] | Adljod | BupeutwopN | 73 asueuly uopesuadwo) | adueussnon
207=120¥=Y ‘VQID3 =3 :Aa)y
(€Z/TE/T IO V)
9 JuswpeNY

s9alWWo) pieog Hq11/7ay/van3

-117-




HPANA Inegd

2190435 YIaUUS)

uadplid sniieq "Aay

ZIRIUO(O4 el ‘UoH

SII3N uuslS "UoH

ayynQa epuaig

UBMOJIW 3siueQ

LIRIE IR I IR

LRI IR ]

x| x| x| x

zysdry paeyary

ed|ny ueyg ‘uoH

o) om | x| x| x| x|

uosuyof eddy

UQSUYOr pJemon

saydny |peyw

1ay3e|ieg amoq

J33unuwz ydasor ‘uoy

Auayoq sautef

umMo.q uosAg ‘uoy

an|g yJep ‘A3y

X

ISMONZIURY BURIQ

Hoqqy asjuag

Supsaw oN

dunaap on

€z/szjor

Jupaaw on

| Sugasy oN

dupaapy oN

£2/9t/e

£2/2/e

te/eeft

Jupaap oN

Jay

nf

ady

BN

934

uep

Jl[ANA Jneg

x

719045 Ylauuay

uadpud snueq ‘asy

24BIUO|O] MBI "UOH

SHISN uua|D uoy

YNAIN BpUIIg

UBMODI asiuaq

M ow) x| x| o

IR I I ]

W ox| x| o x| ox

3 Zysdr] pleyaly

ediny ueng "uoH

UOSUYOF BIA]

XK | ) x| x| x| x| x

UOSUYO[ PIEMOH "UOH

S3YBnH |aeydpy

Jaydej|eo alyoq

Jaduiuwg ydasof ‘uoy

Ausyoq sawer

umMoig uoJAg "UOH

an|g yie Ay

X

X

X

D{SMOXZIUa] 3uB|q "uoy

X

X

nogqy aswag

Suieapy oN

gzf6T/1n

g2/s2/0t

€2/12/6

Supsaw on

€2/9¢/L

£2/82/9

E2/1E/S

€2/9z/y

ge/e/e

€efeefe

Jupaam on

van3

van3i

SF0N

e

AN

8o

dag

ny

g

unf

Aewi

ey

qa4

uEp

Bquan

paeog

Li WawypeRY

Q3AaN3ILLY = X

1517 ON1LITN HISWIW QHVO09 SILVINIE4Y ANV vaIDT £202

-118-



24e3U0|04 YJBN .:o:_

ayusdp) paeyaty

x| x| x

UOSUYOT PJRMOH "UCH

x| x| x| x

x| | x| x

3pse) |aeq

Umaig uolAg "uoH

X

x| x| x

uiyjseq |dy "uoy

X

X

X

X

noqqy asiuaq

ge/oz/ze

2upgssy on

€2/st/ot

£2/Lzf6

upasw oN

W ON | Jupsap oN

£e/te/s

£2/92/v

€2/TzlE

€z/et/e

Supeapy on

2an

a1

sajoN

¥Rqa

AGN

L# uaunpERY

Lo

des

Sny

nr unp

QIAN3LLY = X
1517 9NILIIN HITWIW Q¥Y04 SALVIIY ANV vaid3 €202

Aey

idy

BN

934

laquiaw|

pJeog

-119-



0Z 0 | abed

LM eaLieul] 8yelS ewp 10 (GII-6EL
UORI8S YliM 83UBPIOSIR U| ‘PaLINad0 eARY SUORBIOJA BloyM SBOLBISU) U] SUOROUERS esodw) o) pue Yuswainocid
SO & Buiinp Joe)U00 BjqssiuLedw) jo suopeBelie 8jeBseAU| puB MeiAes o} s8900d B GABL AuoLaNy Bl 880G ‘6
4108jU00 ojqissjuuedw) S|\ jo OpBUI PJ0JBI B SBM ‘SOA J| | 'Bg
me
eauBuld 1Bl 8Y) O (0L)-6EL UORIBS WM BouBpIOOIE U} ‘poped Hugiodal ap Supnp Juswieinaald ey} sousnjyu)
ON ©} paydwieye Jo Juswainoasd 8 Bupnp 10Bju0S e|qiss|uLedil) PRy JOpuBA & 1Bl eujuusiep Aoyny ey pia k]
Y 407 JusWs.ndaid 8l 1, "ME 8ouBLld 8jElS o 4O (BJ(Z)I-GE ) UORIBS LM SoUBPIcOIE
80A | U) ‘Juewainooud oyjoeds B o BIOO PEZHOLUINE BY) BB BAIeS 0} SusIed Jo uosied B ejeubjsep Auoyiny ay) pig Y
4S0BAUOO JuBLIBIN30.d J0) SUCIEDYOBAS 10 'SIUGWINO0P Piq S[BE0d0Id
SOA Jo uoped)jos sy uj wé&a pue sepjjod weweainooud §)) jo ABWWNS B ejeiodioou) Ajuoyiny el seoq ‘9
SOA Jueweaibe uojenjioo-tou B uBis o} sieppiq eApcedsod aJinbai Auoyny ey seoq G
ON 489sBYRINd $SBU|SNG JO/PUB [BARS 10} Seakojdwe o) spJeo ypeso ubjsse Auoyny ey seoq ‘b
ON 2seujepin6 jueweunood ey} 0} suodeaxe o) mojje ARuoyny ey seoq ‘€
SOA 4pasog eip 4q paacidde pue ‘papeau j) pepueiue 'Ajenuue pamsiaau seuljepind yuswaunosald eyy ey K4
33..09920&8.»:.58&E8.>:w!8§;2\68£ SOA 2seuliepind ueweasnacud eary Ajuoyny ey seog b
(eiqeoiiddy ji) Tun | esuodsey uopsenpd

8 ANJWHOVLLY

V/N : @eq payme)
Q3 LLnNansNn smes
P2OZ/CLIED e uny

€202/ €12t Buipug sea, (eosiy

Aouaby EmEno_msmo [euisnpu| Hunod su3 Joy Hoday JuswaIndoig

st R T I EAREE (NS B ETNTE WES Te T b B S PR AN

=Y 20 W o WA

-120-



114

jo  obed

Wnouy ey uey
uopdposeq 8807 8| ShjBA JOUB
£2/LE/21-22/1LE2) ©6.I8A0D Ayjiqe)) SSBOXE pusces jusliandcid Hed s Aym ujejdxg
i8e, [eas]d
30181 peyun Agunod 00°058°L$ Jo4 pepuedxz junowy
uojiey/eoujaoig 00'058'2$ junouly
¥ snid ONBA I9NIBA Jj8
£C68Y 9poY [wysod €202/LE2L 9jeq puz
1IN aes 220C/\E21 8jeQ piemy
ONISNV1 LTh) PIg eApsdwio) - eiued AQuony 8862044 plemy
TOU|] sSuppy leyio jJueuIeInd04d Jo edAy
8NUBAY PUBIS) "N 00Z Lou|] sseuppy BIUBWY JO AUBdLOD BIUBINSY| PUN4 JUBPRIY QUIBN JOPUSA z
unowy ey usy)
uopdpaseg 8367 S| ON{RA JoxBN
sejepdn uopeolidde uBOAARUBOU] XE] ‘@UBURIUIBU SYSGEAM JUSIGINIOLY Jjed ayy Aym upeidxg
TN
SelElS payun Anunoy 00'592'S$ lod pepuedxgy a>=“_o_=_u
uojBeyeouirosg 00°$92's$ junoury
¥ snid SNIBA J0)UBH J8 |
0SLyL 8poD Imsod 9eq puz
AN aws 0102/12/8 Neq premy
VANVAMVYNOL A9 Pi8 eAppedwog - pequUoD Auoygny $50204d pIBMY
zoup sseuppy Hoddng Jo uswdojeraq/Bupinsuoy - ABojouyse Juewaunaold jo edA)
OAHQ UBPHeYS 8.9 joul] sseippy woa'Dsd 098 QWBN JOpUoA ‘L

V/N : 8jeq pauag
Q3 LLINBNSNN ‘smelg
vZOTTHIED Bjeq uny

£202/1€/Z) Buipuz Jeay |eosty

fousby uswdojereq jewsnpul Aunod aug Joj Joday JUBWRIND0I4

—.__L.U.ru.\n.mn.u LISl iAo g 300330 0RTe = ) SHE R EIeD L (o RIS JEL Q. .

= 1AW ol e

-121-



02 jo ¢ ebed

unowy eyy usy
uopdpuoseg $807 8] 8NjeA (RN
BujspieApe Bjpew [ejoos pue ojpes [eo0] pejefire 11 Juswainsold Jjed oy Aym uppidxg
180 A [22%)4
89]8)S payun Aunog 05°2£0'62$ o4 pepuedxy junoury
uojBeyreoujacig Junowy
¥ shid ONIBA J83BN J[Bd |
922yl 8po) [9isod ajeq pugz
AN oEs eQ piemy
OTv4dng 15 J9pJO 8sBLHANGAUSIBINIOIH JOBRAUCYD UON $8020.d pIemy
002 8jing Zou sseuppy S@IJAIOS [BUOjEEB)0IH 0YIO uGwWeIN0ad Jo edA)
Aemyed ejriodiod 0os Louj] sseppy *ou| ‘suopesedQ Aosepny QUIBN JOPUSA k4
unowy ey ueyy
(r0S$) suopegs|Bes Jueas pue djysiequiew uopdjassq $307 S| ON[EA JOXRW
*(00g't$) Bupuny Juewdojeaep eysqem 80104 yse) £s8UISNg AJUno?) ey ueWeINd0.d Jjed e Aym upeidxg
Jee, [eas)d
86)BIS papun Agunoy 00'¥00's$ o4 pepuedx3 junowy
uojBoyreaujrosy junowry
¥ shid on[eA JoNRY Jjud
Leerl 8pa) [eisod ejeq pug
AN a|Nes ajeQ premy
FTUASAVITIIM - &9 18P0 83BYIINAUSEINO0I RRAJUOD UON 880301 plemy
0S| 8lng ZOUIT ssauppy 1BYIO jusweInaold jo edA]
peoy Asfss3 oop Leur ssaippy "0U] ‘801N JO JBqUIBYY) JSIGYLY QWEN JOpuep €

VIN : 8jeq payna)

Q3LLINGNSNN smejg
¥20z/ZLie0 8jeqg uny

€202/1€/Z) :Buipug Jeah |edsiy

fouaBy juswdojanaq |BLISNPU] AUNo?) au3 1oy Joday juswainooid

AS A LV L M) L | S

SN LR

LRV SV e

-122-



114

Jo py abey

-123-

unowy ey uey

sdiysiosuods Juere uopduoseqg $907 8] oNjBA 10BN

pue uogeajqnd sseujsnq Apieem (80| uj subjedued Buispieape pejebie) juswisandold ed o) E uejdxg
dea) j@3s[y

$9J81S pejuN Agunoy 00°0£2'se$ 104 pepuedxz junowy

uojBeyy/edujrosd Junouwry

¥ snid on|eA J0)JRi Jjed

€02kl 8po) [sisod aeq pug

AN ans 9jug piemy

OTv44nd Ao J6RIQ 9SBYMNAUBLLBINDAI JOBJUOYD) UON $5020.g pIRMy

Tour sseppy 8410 JusweInsold jo odAy

joans UeN 9 our sseippy 184j4 sseujsng ojeyng QWBN JOPUSA ‘9

junowy ey} uey)

, uopdpaseq $807 3] ONEA JHBH
YELEEL-ETILER) PUB £2/LE/ZL-CZ/LE/Z) BOURINSU| AiiqR) 18GAD jueleinaoid Jjed o Aym ujejdg
JRe, 1838]4

$918)S payiun Aunop 00'0¥2'L$ 404 pepuedxz junowy

uo|Bey/eaulacig 00°0¥2'L$ unowy

¥ snid ON[BA )O3R Jj84

th10L 8poY |eisod ¥20z/LE/ZL ejeq pu3z

AN aes 2e02/LEC) ajeq premy

HHOA M3N ) Pid eAgadwo) - pequog Apoyny $80004d pIRMY

400/ WigL U sseuppy 1BYO JUBWISINIOIJ J0 edAL

BZ8|d 19]|6j00Y St Lou] sseuppy '0%) 8duBINsU| Ae[Zzeog BWEBN JOPUBA ‘G
V/N - 818Q paylia) £202/1€/2} :Bulpu3g Jea oS!y

Q3aLLnNgnsSNN SNes
¥20Z/ZLIE0 ‘8jeg uny

fousby uawdojeraq [ewisnpul Aunog su3 10} HOday JUBWRIND0IY

Lidaat _‘,r...- LECARTEZLLI b hd) 3 L1139 CRep 2 ] S5 byl Do vr:_:_..ﬂ\ b N o T | I'r.

=12 ol We 5




0Z jo g abeq

nowy e uey

uopdpaseq $807 $) ONjBA J0)JeN
wsweoe|des jsejjeq/ep pue BUISSOO 10} JUBLLSSINGUIIE) SIBHBIBKY jusweunsolg 1o e Aym ujeidxg |

TN TP

sejels pejun Anunog 61°80¢'0£$ 404 pepuedx3 Junowy

uojBey/eoujaciyg unowy

¥ snid ON{BA JoXLeN JjRd

1S0p1 9poD |vjsod aRa pu3z

AN ARG arQq piemy

N3a3 A0 49pI0 88BUANIAUBWAINI0IH RBIJUOD UON 880204 piemy

Toup] sselppy se||ddng/sepipowiwio) Juewainsodg Jo edh]

weans jodeq 0098 LeulT ssedppy peadjjey weynog ojeyng SLUBN JOPUBA 8

UNoWY ey} ueyy

uopidpaseq £507 8] ON[UA JOMRN

senp diysiequew pue djysiosuods [enuuy uewWeINd0Id Jje4 oy Aum upedxg
\ 180, j89S|d |

sajels payun Anunos 00°000°'6$ 1o pepuedxg junowy

uajfiey/esujroig Junowry

¥ snid enjeA J9NIRW Jjeg

[3%4.43 8pa) |ejsod oeq pu3

AN ams ejeQ piemy

OTv44ng T 48pJQ 8SBUYANGAUSLIAIND0IY J0BAUOD UON 98630ud piemy

Zeur] sseippy 18I0 JusWeIN0.d jo edAy

8NUBAY puBjyMON £89 Leu[ sseuppy aoueylly Buunioejnueyy eiebesN ojeyng QWEN JopueA ]

V/N : 8jeQ payiuad
Q3aLLINENSNN sniejg
2eq uny

vZOZ/ELIE0

€20Z/1.£/2} Buipul tea |2asiy

fouaby juawdosaeq [eHIsnpu) AIUNOT BuT 104 Boday JUSWSINOOIY

-

r..?.,....__-ﬂ\...ﬂ LR BLEL IR A RN G 1340 CPa0 2 4 SESHERLETD NIV S DG e oy S

A= f=0 L

-124-



02 jo g ebed

JUnROWY 9Ly} UBLYY

Hed eUBILOD BOURSS|BUDY JB SUOJSURIXS BUl| JeJEM PUE JOMAS uopduaseq $8067 8] ONJRA JONIBW
Areyues ojiqnd Joy sesjues ubjsep pue [BoUBUY ‘|BjusWUoIAUB ‘Bujuueld juewaandolg e oy Aym ujeidxgy
TN P

SeEIS pepun Agquno Z1°091'892$ o4 pepuedxz junoury

uoiBeyyeduaold 08°205'S1L$ unowy

¥ snid anjeA JoNR Jjed

£02¥1 8po) |wisod ajeq pug

AN o ] 1202/8/€ auQ plemy

ov4dng LTh] Pig eAngeduios) - ;oBAUOD Auowny _98830.1d PIRMY

Zou| ssappy sedmes Buginsuon juowIeINd0ug jo edA)

001 8Uns Jeans wi3 Lyl Leur] sseuppy suseaubuly §99 SUIBN JOpUsA ‘0t

unowry ey ueyy

uopduaseg $807 §| SNjBA JIBY

SAJBRIU B38| J0) BIBY S,0/8YNng Joj Hoddng JUBWIBINTIOI Jjed oy Aym upepdxg
°n 1RQA [B2S]4

Sejels pajun Anunoy 00°000'001$ 04 pepuedxz junowy

uolBex/esujaoid junotuy

¥ snid an|eA JOXJEW JjB4

X074 4% 8poY |Ksod ejeq pu3

AN ejes aeq premy

Ovd-idng A1 JOPIO BSBYOINGAUSWIAIND0I JIRAUOD UON $30204d PIBMY

yOr aling Zou| ssauppy BYyo ueweindoid jo edAy

18ang Aued g6 Leuy ssesppy uopeJodiog wawdojeaeq ueqin ojeung OWEN Jopuep ‘8

V/N : 3jeq pauged
Q3 LLINGNSNN sniels
LAV AT :8jeq uny

£20Z/1€/21 ‘Buipuzg Jeap (eosid

fousby juswdojaraq [ewsnpuj Aunoy aug 1o} Hoday awainoold

:L.;L..u..ﬂ..?..a..u LRSS LL LR e Bl iR CRr > § 225 Ky L K0 e VI e

ST\ I e

-125-



0Z Jo 2 ebed

junowy s\ uey
(16°€29'9$) uopdusseq $807 8] enfeA Joel
sefizeyo Jejdos pue (00°010'2¢) sefueyd eoususjuew |enuue auepanooq USWOINI0Id deg oy Aym ujejdg
TN
SOl pPeyun Aipunog L6'€89°'CL$ 104 pepuediy E"_oE_u
uojbey/eoulr0id L6'EBD'ELS unowy
¥ shid oNnjeA JoNIRIN Jj84
£0Z¥1 9poJ [visod €202mLEL ejed puz
AN aqms 810ciFLigL 8j8g peMY
Ovddng 8o Pig eAnpedwod - pejuod Auoyny $8020.d plemy
ZOU[ sSIppY sa||ddng/sepipowiwon WeWLINd0I Jo edh L
10848 poolIIT SoF LU sseuppy "au] ‘sejfBojouyoay ssouisng xe4 Je|don SWBN J0puep ZL
unouly ey ueyy
uopduoseq 9807 §| ONBA JOUBY
#2/1/4-€2/1/1 BOURINSY) SIGOYI0 B SI0}0RUIG Juswaunaoid 484 o Aym ujejdxy
1BOA |B38]4
SOlelg pajun Anunoy 00'820'tv$ do pepuedx3 Junowy
uojBayyesujacig 00'8.0'¢v$ junowy
¥ snid oN|eA JosueW .__u....l._
9€00) 8poY [B)sod €20Z/LERL s1eqg pu3z
AN e €202/L/1 ejeq piemy
MHOA MIN LTE) Pig eARRedwo? - priucH Auoyny $86304d pIEMY
Zoup ssesppy yio Jusweinsoud jo edAL
SBOUBLY 81 JO enUeAY £EL L jeur sseippy qqnyo BWEN JOPUBA ‘L

V/N - 8jeq pagiued
J3LLINGNSNN smels
¥202/2L/e0 B)eq uny

£20Z/L€/Z1 :Buipul 1234 [BOSIY

fouaby yuswdojeaaq Jewisnpuj Aunog 2u3 Joj poday Juswaundold

LIRS A LR L B N B TRD S KWl =g | LR N O L e T = e

L

—_—

I NS o e

-126-



0z

40 g abed

uNowy o uvy

uopduaseqg 9807 8] onjeA el

1088 Auad G6 J8 Sealyo Joj Safyjpn pue juey juewiainonld 484 oy Aym ujejdig
TN

80J8lS pajun Anunoy Z9°'SE0'6L1$ 404 pepuedxg Junowy
uojBeyseaujaosd Z5'G€0'6L1$ junowy

¥ snid ON[BA JOMIRI Jj8

41001 9poY [Bisod €20Z/0¢/L 1 8jeq pug

AN ams 8002/L/8 sjeq premy

HHOA M3N i) PI8 8ARRedwog-UoN - Penuog Auoyny $3830ig prRMY
Zou( sseippy FENTe) JUBWIIN0 Jo edAL

anueAy pJYL EE9 Lou|] sseuppy uogesedion juewdojeAsq jElS sJdWT | GWEN JOpusA ‘vb
unowy ey} ueyy

uopduaseq £897 8{ oNRA BN

$O8UBY|| JOSN AIBMYOS ueweINd0.d Jjed oy Aym upeidxg
8O 1828]4

$9)81S pajun Anuno) 98°'z92'e$ 4o pepuedxz junowy
uo|Bey/esujaoiyg junoury

¥ snid ON{RA 19BN Jjed

28982 6pOY [ejs0d ejeq puz

X1 ang 9RQ piemy

AD0H ANNOH A9 PeQuUOY SjelS Jepun pesayaing 888204 piemy
Ul ssauppy aJemyos - ABojouyos | JuewWeInsosd jo edAy

Kem lieq suo JLouj] ssedppy o1 Bugeruep eq QWRN Jopuep eL

VIN : 8jeq pauniad

A3LLINGNSNN sMelg
LA AN ) ‘Bleq uny

€20Z/1E/TL Bulpul Jeap eosiy

Aouaby juswdojeraq [ewisnput Aunon su3 10} Joday Juswiainoold

LLIASAS LRI LLAC L) LI Chas 3 ) S Erh LA Lf) 1 o DL o T

=12 ol e

~-127-



0Z Jo 6 abed

JuNoWY ey usly

uopdposeq 8807 8] ON[EA J3RN

'889|AIes jebe jueweindosd Jjed oy Aym uejdxg
NP

S9jEIS pejun Agunoy v1'€20'8E$ 404 pepuedxz junoury
uojBey/eaurolg PL'E20'8ES junowy

¥ snid ONIBA JoNJRI Jje]

[1]¥4 0" 9poQ [wisod v2oz/LiS ojeq pug

AN auis 8002/2L/1 Neq pismy

OTviding A0 P8 eangoduwiog - eiueD Auogny 950901d pIEMY

0001 oung "Jeaug ebueyoxg 922 ZouT sseuppy seoes [Bbe OWEIN3044 Jo odAy
efiueyox3 e uppeq Louj sseuppy 271d ‘yoeeq spuey SWBN Jopusp E:]
Junoury el ueyy

uopdpaseq $507 8] ON[RA JURH

"seedojdwe vQ|03 10} sourINsy) [BjueQ uewaINIoAd Jjed oyy Aym ujeidxg
480, [B28)4

$918]S payun Kiyunog ¥8viv'sLs 4od pepuedx3 Junowy
uojBey/eoujA0lg 8 vrb'8Ls unowy

¥ shid ve'vby'sL$ ON[RA J)UBW Jjud

10001 9poY [)sad €202/1E/TL 8jeg pu3a

AN amg £202/LiL 9jeq piemy

MHOA M3IN Ao PIg eAgRedwon-UuoN - JoeRUOD Aoyiny 88030.d premy

Zou[ sseippy lsyio usweind0.d jo edAL

SPIBA UOSPNH Q) Lou sseuppy ug|pieng QBN J0pusp ‘Sl

-128-

VIN * ®1eQ payne)
Q3LLINGNSNN ‘smejs
¥20ZreLIE0 B|jeg uny

€202/LE/C) ‘Buipu] Jes [eosiy

fouaby yuswdojanaq [euwsnpul Aunog aug Joj Hoday Juawaindoid




0z

jo 01 abey

wnouwy ey uey

uopdpaseq 8807 8| 6N[RA 1OHRW

seeAojdwe Joj eourinsu} yyeeH uswaInstld Jjed oy Aym ueidxgy
186, |eas)d

$OJE)S pajiun Anunog 81°959'8/1L$ 404 popuedg junowy
uojBieyesuiacsd 21'959'8/1$ junowy

¥ snid 91°'959'8.1$ n|BA JOXUB JR4

X444 9poD jejsod €20Z/LERE 9j8Q pu3z

AN a8 2e0zitrel 8j8Q piemy

FTIASAVITIM &0 PIg eAnnedwon-UoN - y0rQuUoD Auowny $8020.d piemy

Zou| sseuppy 1[0 Welleinaoad jo edA )

Al sexe Joged LIS Lou] ssauppy WpesH juspuedapu SWBN Jopuep ‘81
junoury ey ueyy

uopdpaseg $807 8| eNBA JMUBK

seohojdwe Joy soueINSL| Y)BOH jueWeINd0I4 Jje4 oys Aum ujejdxg
dBOA |28}

selels pajun Agunog 08°050°2$ 404 pepuedxg junoury
uojBeyeoujroig 08'050'2$ Junowy

¥ shid 08°0S0°Z$ SN|BA Jo)IBY Jj84

20Zhl 9poY ieisod €20Z/LE21 ejeg pug

AN amg €202/1/1 8jeQg paemy

Ovd4na Ao PiF eAppedwiod-uoy - 10BQUOD Aioyiny $8630.d plemy

00l eyng Zeu|] ssauppy 18Y10 ewaINs0.d jo edAL

jsang 89ssuen M 52 19Ul sseuppy ANM JO plelys en|g ssatd on|g spewydiH QWEN JOPUdA 1

-129-

VIN - SjQ pouRISg €202/LE/Z) ‘BUIPU3T JEaA [EOSI4

fousby Juawdojpasq eLsnpu| Aunod au3 o) poday JUSWAIN00I4

Q3 LLINGNSNN SMes
V20Z/ZLIED ‘8leq uny

S R S TS T U o I I YIRS TR e VR O DA e S

S A I NS L W=




0Z Jo |} abed

UNoWY o) ULy
uopdpaseq $867 8] oN|BA JoEN

SJBMYOS UOREORUBIRNE JojoR)-fiNw ‘uopduosqns sedjes || JuelusINd0.g djeg oy Aym ujejdz
d8e, (82814

$6jels payun Aunoy 8552663 Jdo4 pepuedx3 junoury
uojBey/esujacid Junowy

¥ shid ON[BA JOXHRI S8

9097r1 8poQ [sisod ejeqg pu3z

AN aus 9jeq piemy

¥31S3HO0Y LR WRJUOY 81e)S Japup) PesBYIINg 858204 pARMY

Z8ul] ssauppy esemyos - ABojouyoe jueweindold jo edAL

enueAy ik sp9i jou sseuppy so|Bojouyos) ¢ Jeke QWEN JOPUeA ‘02
JUnowy eyj uvy)

uopdpaseq 307 8] ON[RA Joxuuly

weunseaus diysiequieyy jusIeINaold Jjed e Aym ueidxgy
180A [828]]

Sejels pajun Anunop 00°000'G2$ o pepuedx3 Junowy
uoifiey/eoujacid Junowy

¥ shid on[eA JoMIRIN Jj184

20ZpL 9poY [8js0d ejeq puz

AN a9es 0jeQ piemy

Q1vddng Ao 18pIQ BSBLAING/UBLIAIND0I] JOBAUOD UON ' $308304d pieMyY

009 eyns Zou|] sseuppy BYIO JUswieinsoid jo edA)

19845 0888UeS) "M 262 LU sseppy esebe|N ojeyng jseau) BWEBN JOPUSA ‘6l

V/N : 8jeQ payiuad
Q3aLLINENSNN Smejg
[ AV AT4 ] |jeguny

£202/L€/Z) :Buipuz JeaL (essigy

fousBy juawdojeraq |emsnpuy Ajunod sug Joj Poday JUBLWIAINY0I]

LAIOAEA TS LA L b iy 450 (G s [l 1S B SN S e S P2 |

ey

-130-



0Z jo 2| abey

JuUNOWlyY 9y usy)
“pefoid Jusweousyuz uopdiseq 9807 8| oNjEA JO)IRH
lleL) euyaioys el o} pejejel seopues Bujuueld pue Bupinsucy uswesnaold J[e4 oy Aym upejdxgy
1R0A [838]] |
sejels pejun Aguno) 05'Z62'58$ 104 pepusdxz Junowy
uojBeyyeaujroig 00°Z2€'9418 junowy
P snid ON[uA JoMIBW Jjvg
602h1 9poY [ejsod 89Q pu3 |
AN ans €202/9¢/L 9eQq paemy
OTvd4dng &0 Pig eARpadwod - oeauo Auoyny £20301d pIRMY
Teu[] ssaippy saoueg Supnsuc) WBWBINI0U JO @dA)]
SNUBAY BieME[] 069 jeun] sseippy “ou) ‘suaaulbug ouny QUIBN Jopusp zz
unowy ey uewy
uopdpaseq $807 $] aNRA JouRN
100) UopBIRUBLANE JOJOBJ-HINLU PUB SOIAIES || ueweinaoid Jjeg oy Aym ueidxg
IB0, {898)4
SalBJS pajun Anunog 85°526'6$ o4 pepuedxz yunowy
uojBey/esujrosg junowry
P snid aN|BA JO3JEW JjBd
908¥1L 8poQ [wsod ejeq pug
AN oug ejeq piemy
J3LSIHOOH 10 Pryue] Sels Japun peseyng $8630id piemy
002 s1ng Zou|) ssauppy alemyog - ABojouysa JueweINs0a jo edA)
enuaAy 1847 §p91 16Ul sseppy "ou ‘sajBojouyse) ¢ JeAe SWRN JOPUSA ‘i

V/N | 8jeq payiad
Q3LLINGNSNN sneys
:ajeq uny

Y20z Lien

€202/1£/21 ‘Bupul JeaA |eosty

fousBy juswdojarsq [ewisnpul Aunog aug Joy Loday JUSWaINa0Id

\ LLISRSASS LhC R LL s ) L) R R S0 T ) S MR LT ] e =

Sl L Wem

VLI e e S

-131-



0Z Jo ¢} abed

JuNoOWy a1y uryy

uopdpdseq $307 8] ON[RA JoNIRN

€2/LE/ZL-22/1E/2) ©BRIOGA0O BjlRIqUIN jBleWWOD Wweweundolg 4184 o Aym upeidg

TN F)

S8lelS pajun Aquno) 00'605'2L$ 404 pepuedig Junowy

uojBaex/esujacid 00'605°21$ unowy

¥ snjd Gn|eA Jo3Rp Jje4

[{044% opoD [81sod €202/LE2) 9jeQ pu3z

AN aes T20%LER) ojeQ pemy

oTv44ng 81n Pig eAzgedwiod - pBRUOD Auoyny $3030i4 plemy

Zouj ssauppy Y10 JUeWaIN04d o odA)

19848 ujelN 052 feuj] sselppy '00) 82URINSUY| [EMNY SJUBYISI QWIBN Jopuep R A

wnowy ey ueyy

uopdpaseg 507 8] SNIRA YoXUBl

$80jAJ8s Jipne juopuadepuj LWeINI0Ig Jje4 oy Aym upehg
ieeA [UIs)d |

861BlS pajun Ayuno) 00'000'62$ o2 pepuedxz junowy

uojBoyy/eaujacig 00'000'62$ junolry

P snid ON[BA J10)BH Jj84

[174 4" 8poY [eys0d S202/0€/9 ojeQ pug

AN aels 2202/82/6 ojeQ pIEMY

OTv44ng L Th) Pig eApedwiod - pequod Auoyny 9303044 piemy

ZOU| sseuppy $80JAIOS [BuO|SSa)ald JORO jueweinaold jo edA}

l9a4g ulpjuei4 §9¢ Lou|T sseJppy d11 IO uapswin SWEN JOPUSA ‘€z

V/N : 3jeQ psyad

a3LLINBNSNN smeig
YZ0Z/ZLIE0

8leq uny

€20Z/1€/Z1 ‘Buipu] JesA [edsiy

AousBy juawdojaraq |eusnpuj A4unod suz 1o} oday JUBLIAINO0IL

..-E....-M...?mv {8 oy b= S Tl S :C;‘.Dnumul.l_ ESES T U I T R W Sl “FUPLLEN A

S\ L e

~-132-



0C

jo ¢ abeyq

nowy ey usyy
uopdpaseq $307 8 en[eA JR
leans Aued 66 J& 58010 Joj Juey jusweandold djed oy Aym ujeidx3 |
1804 |8IS8]d4
S6JBIS pejun Auno) 86°6/2'CL$ Jod pepusdx3 Junowy
uojBey/edujacid ¥9'SZL'v85$ unowy
¥ snid ¥9'SZ1'v85$ ON|BA J0)IBY Jjed
[ ¥4.43 opo) [vjsod L202/LE/L ejuq pu3
AN aes E20Z/ILZL RQvq pIBMY
Ov4dnd L) Pig orggedwod-uoN - prguoD Auoyny 9892014 paemy
00zZ eyng Zoun sseppy JLITe) WeweIndod jo edAL
jsang edaues LoL Loup ssaippy 071 ‘Wewdojereq jeans uebiyom QWIBN JOpUuep ‘92
unowy ey} uey)
seehojdwa Joj saueInsu) yeop uopduoaseq $507 8] ONjBA JaX BN
[G1USpIa0B pue sourINsyY AYliqes|p uie)-Huoj ‘eourINsY| )| uue) dnous uswainaold Jed oy Aym upejdxgy
480 |BOS}4
se)e)S payun Agunoy FOVLLLLE Jo4 pepuedxg junowy
uojBey/esujaclg YOvLLLLS unowy
¥ snid YovLL'LLS ON[RA JOIIBH Jje
99101 8p0Y [E180d ¥Z0Z/0EH 8jeg pu3g
AN aes Z202/\IS 8jeQq pJemy
HHOA MIN A0 PIg eAgpedwion-uoN - peguog Auoyny 9S804 paBMY
Tou[7 ssappy BYRo Jusweinaold jo edAy
@nUBAY Yed 00z Lou|] ssuppy Auedwog eourinsu| ey ueyjodonepy SWEN JOPUBA ‘6z

VY/N - 3jeq paya)
Q3LLINGNSNN snejg
veaeieLien @eq uny

£202/1€/24 Buipuz Jea {eosi4

fousby Juawdojenaq jewsnpu) Auneg aug 40} Hoday JuswaINo0id

-133-



02 Jo 5} abed

junowy ey} usyy
uopduaseq 9307 8] enjeA Jo0UeW
suopelsiBol sousiejuod £zoz pue diysiosuods saualajued zzoz juswaansold aeg oy Aym ueydxg
I8, [eas|q
selels peyun Anunog 00006'$ o4 pepuedxy Junowry
uojBiey/esujaoag Junowy
¥ snid on[eA oUW Jed
14744} 8poY |wysod ejeq pu3l
AN i ] ajRQ pIemy
ANVETV ) 49pIQ B98YIINHAUBIAINIVL JORAUCY UON $8630.d piemy
Zou[ sseuppy BYo jJuewIaINdoad Jo edA
(d3LVAN)
849 Xogd Od lou] SSQIPPY |  sjeuojssejoud Juewkojdus pue Bujujes ] J0 LORBIOOSSY YIOA MaN GWEN Jopuep ‘8¢
Junowy ey ueyy
uopdpaseqg $597 §) ON[RA 3R
V2/62/21-€2/62/Z1 swnjueld eduensy) duiod SIeNIOM jueweund0id Jred oy Aym ujepdig
Jee), [e3si4
89)E1S pajun Aunoy zeseLiLs o4 pepuedx3 junoury
uojfBeyyeaujroag junoury
¥ shid NEA JorIep Jje
80001 8poY jmsod ejeq pug
AN sjes oeQ piemy
AHOA MIN Ao 48pJ0 BSBUUNGAUSAINSAL 10BAUOY) UON $8620Jd pieMy
Z0U[ ssauppy SOOA18S [eLO|SSe0Ud 1yI0 jusuIeINd014d Jo adAL
8€2S X098 Od L8u|] sseuppy uopesuadwion SIBXOM HISAN GUWIBN JOPUSA iz

VIN : 8leq paypad
SNiElg
B)eg uny

Q3LLINGNSNN
¥Z0ZIeL/e0

€202/1€/2) ‘Buipu3 ses eosiy

fouaby Juswdojanaq [esnpu| AunoD aug o} Yoday juswainoold

LIS S AT LR R LU S bl L Rlaie R A ) S Bl rEU)

=1

| W S0

S S
2INT i =

-134-



02 jo 9}, abed

junowy a3 uey}
Jeek uopduaseq $807] 8| ONjEA JOMJBWN
depusejed £20z Joj eosuelnsu) ebeyoed [edipjunw ‘eourinsy) b_l__ms_ [T jJueiusINdoId djed4 e Aym ugejdxg
dReA [BIS)4
SOlEIS pPajuN Anunoy 29'6v9°L1S Jdo pepuedx3 Junowy
uojBieyjeoujacid 29'6v9'Lv$ unowy
¥ snid ON[BA JOIIBW Jj8
8216} 9poY [ejsod €202/1E2L aBg pu3a
vd sjus ZCOT/LERL 9eg piemy
VIHd13AVliHd &0 Pig eanedwod - Riuog Auoyny £86304d piemy
Zou sseuppy BYo ueweunaoud jo odAL
15204 X09 'O'd Leu] ssauppy sejuediion esueinsuj ejydiepeyyd QWEN JOpueA ‘0c
unowy oy} uey
(09p'2$) suopessiBos uopdpsseq £897 5} an[eA JlBN
jueAe (000'2$) senp diysiequiew ‘(00s as) siuene o sdiysiosuodg jusweunsold Jjed o Aym upejdxgy
189 [838]4
SejElS pajun Aqunoy 00'096'0L$ 104 pepuedxz Junowy
uo|Bey/eaujaciyg unowy
¥ snid ON[BA Jo)IRH Jjed
11 X443 9poY [ejsod ejeq puz
AN ang ajeq piemy
ANVETY . ) 48pJQ 8SBLYAINGAUSIAINIOI JOB[UOD UON $88004d piemy
Joo|4 \py Zou| sseuppy BYo JusIGINI0I jo edAL
anuaAy uojBujysem L1 leu) ssauppy (0Q3SAN) 1OUND JueIdojsAS( DJUIOUCOT BIEIS SHOA MEN SWERN Jopuep ‘62

VIN - 3jeq paytued
a3LLINGNSNN snieyg
@leq uny

Yeae/zLien

B L S A LR LA L S LRl TR T 1 N3 e & N 1N LI e

S AN ) W3

€20Z/1.€/2) :Bulpu3 Jea ) easty

fouaby Juswdojas(q jewsnpu) Auno) aug 10} Hoday JuswaIN00ig

-135-



174

jo L) ebegq

Wnowy ey uey)

{05°zee'1$) Bupupd podes ((052'v$) uopdiaseq 9307 8| 8N(RA JorRlW
siepueied 20z ‘(002'2¢) Bupupd pue uBjsep ojydeB podey [enuwy ZZoZ juewaandolg 4v4 oy Aym ujejdxg
189 808|4

91|18 pejun Aqunop 05'282°¢L$ Jo4 pepuedxg unowry
uojBeyesujrcsg junowy

¥ snid ON{BA JeNIR] Jje

{44 43 9po) [vjs0d e8jeq puza

AN a8es ajeq piemy

1SHIHAV Ao JBPIO BSBYIN/AUBIBINO0L J9BQUOD UON $88301d piemy

zoup sseippy 880jA18 [BUOISEBJ0I] JOYID Juswesnaold o edAy

201 8Yng “eAlQq uuslo) uyor 5z Lou| ssaippy 071 '9emavid SWEN Jopuep K45
Jnowy el uely

uopdpaseq $307 S| SN[RA JOUBH

obejsod Jjuewielnaold 4184 oy Aym uejdxg

180, [e28]4

selels peyun Agunog 05'8¥0°'9$ dod pepuedx3 Junoury
uojBey/esujrciyg unowy

¥ snid ON[BA JoNJBW J8d

822rl 6pay [eysod eje@ puz

AN 9ne 9)8Q piemy

OTvidng Ao 18I0 BSEUIINGAUSWAINIAI] JORRUOD UON 2%030Jd PIRMY

Zou[T sseuppy FLtTe) WewaInooid jo edAL

Aemyied sjujod N 6z Leur ssesppy *ou| ‘semog Aeuld QRN J0pUeA I

VIN : 8jeq paye)
QJ3LLINBNSNN snie)s
[ {AVATAN 0] |leq uny

£€202/1€/Z) :Bulpuz 1eaA |eosIy

Aoualy juswdojerag [ewsnpuy Aluno? sug 40} poday Juswainooig

1\ W

-136-



02 jo 8} abed

Junowy Sy usyy
uopdpaseq 9307 8) ON[RA JOXIBIN
uopejjejsu pue Juewdinbe jensiaoipny juewesnaoiy djeg e Aym upejdxy
TN P
S0)8)S pajun Anunog 00'€98's$ dod pepusdxy Junowy
uo|Beyy/esujacid unoury
¥ snd enjeA joniey Jj8g

{4174 4 opoY [vysod o1eq pu3 |
AN ams Neq piemy
ov4ing ) 19BJUOY) BIEIS JAPUN PesByaIn $30301d PIEMY
00F eling Zour sselppy aIBMpJIBH - ABojouyoel Weweindog jo edAy
184S uie 019 |ou[] sseuppy D71 MojARIBA QWEN JOPUsSA e
unowy ey} uey)
uopdpaseq $307 8| BN[BA JOBK
suojiduosqgns ‘ssogou Bupeey oyang JueweIndold a4 oy Aym ujejdxg
TN
$818)S pejun Anunop SLOv0'2LS dod pepuedx3 junowy
uojBeyj/esujroag junoury
¥ shid ON[BA Jorde Jj84
overl 8poy [wisod ejeq pugz
AN aeis eje(] piemy
ov4dng Lh) 18pI0 BEBUUNGAUSWIBINIAIH JOBQUOD UON $8630.d piemy
Zoury ssauppy BYo JueweIndold jo edLy
0S9 x0g Od Leujq sseuppy SMEN ojeung eyl SWeN Jopuep ‘te

ViN : 3leqQ pagiuad
Q3LLINENSNN
$Z0Z/ZLIED

smejg
:Bleq uny

£202/18/2) :6uipuz Jes A eosiy

fousby uswdojerag [eusnpu) AJuno) sug 1o} poday Juswainoold

LS A LECRZLLI Rl L30T cRoe >y <iir iyl s
o

O DV e T

IS 1 Wa>"5

-137-



J0 6} abey

unowy ey} usyy
seAneuseye Jenjdesuco uopduaseq 9907 8] ON[EA JOOUeH
BAuy [BUO[BSI00Y BAISSB X8R0 SAYOWS O} pejejel saojasas Buginsuon jusweanaosd djed o Aym upeidxg
TN =P
01918 pejun Anunoy 00'G26'82$ 404 pepusdxg junowy
uojBeyeauiroay 00°005'69$ unowy

¥ shid ON(BA JO3B Jje |
X444 9poY Wisod €202/LIE a1eQ puz
AN ans 2202/02/6 8jeQ piemy
ITUASAVITIM Ao Pig eaggedwo) - j9e4uc) Auowiny $5920.d pIRmy
002 e)ng <ou|q sseuppy [ PVETN E_zwcoo JUQWLINI0U Jo 6dA)

Od 'aimosyyaly

peoy Aefss3 626 pour ssaippy edeaspue  Supfemng ‘BupesujBug ‘einpeyyosy O [OPUSM OWEN Jopuep ‘g
unowy ey} ueyy
uopdpaseq $897 8] onfeA Y0 EN
soljddns eoyjQ JuLsWINNI0IG djed oy Aym upejdxg
Jeej [eas}d
891815 pajyun Anunos 6L°2L1'ELS 404 pepusedxy junoury
uo[Bey/esujrcig unowy
¥ snid AN|RA JoNIRY Jjoy
86220 8poY |aysod 8jeq pu3l
YiN aes a)8Q piemy
NO1S0O8 Ao JOpI0 esBLUANGAUBSIGINI0.H JOB[UOD UON $S020Ug pIBMY
Teu[T sseuppy salddng/seppowios WotUeIN30.y Jo edA)
101186 X089 'O'd L6U[] sseuppy 'ou| 09 UOSB ‘g'M SWERN J0pUeA 'S¢

-138-

V/N : 8jeQ payia)
Q3aLLINENSNN -Snieys
[ (AVArATix] @jeg uny

€202/1.€/21 :Buipu] Jes [eosiy

Aouaby juswdojaaaq [euISNpUl AUNOD BLT 10} HOdaY JUBLIZINDGIY

S 1l1:13 SO LR LLIBORU) GLG i s 1 Sl RIS DI e S

SIS e




02 Jo 0Z abed

KUOWWTH [RUCHIPPY

Junowy ey} ueyy

uopduaseq $507 $) ON[BA JOXBWN

SE0JAIOS JOLLIBJU| PUB BLOYH JUSWIINI0Ig aje4 o Aym ujeydxg
Jeo |8asid

SJElS pejun Anunop ZLEEE' VTS o4 pepuedxz junoury
uojBey/esujnciyg Junowy

v snid QN|RA Jorel Jivd

0620¥ 9po) [vsogd ejeq pu3

M ans qrQ piemy

FTUASINOT 10 PBAUCY SIS Jepun pPaseyaIng 8809019 pIRMY
Zou ssauppy $8JjAleg Jo Juswdinbz uogesjunwiwossie | UWSINIO0I Jo odL)

£101006 Xod ‘O'd Lou] sseuppy WBBASPUIA OWIBN JOPUBA “ie

VIN : 8jeq payied
snejg
‘8leg uny

a31LINGNSNN
YZOZ/TLIE0

€202/1€/Z} Buipul Jes, (easi4

Aousby Juswdojpaaq [ewisnpuy Aunog au3 o} Yoday uswainNoold

SRR LR ) A CI S e ) =i B[ iy e g THICAITN Y e S

=121\ CL e

-139-



¥ jo | abeyq

LM B0UBLILY ejeys el JO (GF6E L
UOR3SS LiM 83UBPJGIOE U ‘PEUINOD0 BABY SUORBIOIA BI0LM SBOUBISU| U] SUOKIUBS esadul o) pue ‘Juswainsoid
SOA 8 Bupnp 1oRjU00 e|qissjuuiedw) jo suogeBeje e1ebseu; pus mejnau 0} sseooid B eABy Auoyny ey seoq ‘6
$IIBI0D ejqissjuLedw) S|y Jo BpBW PICOA) B SEM 'SOA Y | ‘e
me
8ouBuy 0JBIS 8L JO (0L )F6EL UORDSS LM 6oUBPIODOE. U] ‘poped Supoday aup Buunp Juswasnooud ey sauenyu
ON ©3 peydwieye Jo yueiueunooud @ Bupnp Joequos ) 8q|ssjuuedw) pey Jopuea & jew sujuusiep Aoyny ey pig ‘8
L0V Bukqgo wellamnoalg oy, 'me eduBUl] 6j&yS 8if 4o (B)(Z)6E ] UOROSS UM 8ouBpIOOR
80A | Ul ‘weweinoad yoeds B Lo 0BUCO PEZUOYINE oY) SB BAIeS 0} suossed Jo uosied B sacu_uuo.vl Auowny ey pia 3
{SI0BAQLOD JusWaINO0Id Joj SUOREIYOedS JO 'SJUBWINOp PIq ‘sjesodold
SOA 40 UoREYIHOS 8Y U) SUORIqIyo.d pue sejojiod Juswainoaid s Jo Aewins © eyeiodioou) Auoyny ey} seoq ‘9
SOA Quewselbe uoisnijoo-uou & uBjs o) siepplq eagdedsaud eJinbas Ajuopny euy seoq 'S
OoN £8988Yaund SS8UjSNg JO/PUE jeAR} Joj seekojdwe o) $pJeD Jjpawn uBjsse Apoyny el seoq k4
ON ¢seulepinB weweunooud ey o} suopdeaxe oy mofje AHoNY By} seoq >
SOA Lpasog ey Aq panasdde pue ‘pepseu jj pepuetue ‘Ajjenuug pemejaeu sauliepind uetiainaaid oy ery Z
33__8.3§8b?§3w§8.>=5_8.§\“w§: SO 486UjiepinG juswenaoud eAey Auoyiny ey} seoq b
(ejqeanddy 1) Tan esucdsey uopsen
‘UORRULG)U[ JueWeINIodd

VIN : ®ieQ payed

€20Z/1£/Z1 ‘Buipul JeaA [eosty
A31LLINENSNN SMe)s
(ZAVAAN ] @jeqg uny

uogelodio) juswdojeas( feuoibay Aunos aug pue ojeyng 104 Hoday Juswiainooid

LRES S o Ve R W T WL WA B W P vl SEELEO L TG e e T

S S ot G

V8 INJWHOVLLY

-140-




¥ Jo Z abeyd

Junowy ey uvyy
‘juswesinquiied uopdpaseq 307 8| enUA e
esuedxe pue ‘Jual ‘seoinies Buyjels 10} v Aunog eu3 o} a8y juslueBeuByy juewunsolg e e Aym upejdx3
[TONTCF]
SOIEIS pejuNn Agunog 66'882'162% 404 papuedx3 Junowy
uojBer/eaujroid unoury
¥ shid ONBA YOI Jj84
€0Zv1 8poY [ejsod ejeq pug
AN ams aQ_Q plemy
oTvddng L) 48pI0 85BUUNAAUBWBINIAL] JORIUOD UON 98820.d piemy
€0 SUng U ssauppy s0oMes Buyes ISINI0L] Jo odAY
19a4g Ad 56 Leufy ssalppy val| funog ey3 SWEBN Jopuep ‘T
wnowy ey uvyy
"uogeo|ignd uopdpaseq $807 8| oN[RA J0XBN
sseu|sng Apjeem [eao] uj weiBoud uro| Joj sjsEIq [[BWE 1068} pue Bupexiepy Juswieindsolyg Jjed o Aym umidxg
160, 1938]4
s6J81S pejjun Aqunop 00°008'01$ 404 papuedx3 Junowy
uojBeyseaujacig junowy
b snid SN[BA Jo)IRW JjBd
€02yt 8po) [vjsod ojeQ pu3
AN aNns ju( piemy
ovidng LR 48PIQ ESEYAINGAUSLLGINIOIH JOBAUOD UON 938901d piemy
Touf ssauppy 8Y10 neweInd0a Jo edAy
1904S UB S8P LoulT ssauppy 1814 sseu|sng ojeyng QUIRN JopueAp 'L

VIN - aleq payyie)
Q3LLINGNSNN snieglg
ajeq uny

L(AVATAWIY

€202/LE/T) (Bupul e |eosty

uogelodio Jualwdojanag jeuoifey Aunoy au3 pue ojeyng o Joday Juswainaold

LLASREASS LRCMLALL LRI L)y chE > § &5 SRR ] K3 TN e T

= I ed N ol a5

-141-



L4

jo ¢ abey

unowy ey) uvy)

uopdposeq $807 8] 6N[BA )R

*880|AJ6S Jipne Juepusdepuj JuswaInoold djed ey Aym upejdxgy
TN ET]

SOJEIS pejiun Ayunop 00°000'91$ 404 pepuedxz junoury
:o_nom_ou:?o._u 00°000'9L$ junowy

¥ $hid ON[BA jo)JBl Jjed

202yl 8po) [nisod S202/0¢/9 8j8q pugz

AN aung 220e/8e/6 9eQq pemy

oTvidng TR Pig eApnedwiod - PRAUOD AjuoLny 850904 pIRMY

Zouf] sseuppy S80jAJOS [BUOISSEJ0I JBHIO WOWeINI0I Jo edA

jeans upiueld 69¢ oup] ssappy d77 “HOJULODOW uepswin QWBN JOpUeA K}
junowy ey uel

uopdposeq $807 8| anRA JBN

"Ayapoe Bujpus) o) pejejed seopues (8o UBUIGINI0Id 4184 o Aym ujeidxg
dee/ [eds)y

SOJEIS pajun Anunog £9'621°82% o pepuedx3 Junowy
uojBeyyesujaoig £9'6.1'848 Junowy

¥ shid QN|RA JONIBN J04

20cvL 9pa [usod £Z0T/LIS ejeq pu3

AN aRs 6102/L/S 8jRQ premy

OTvddng ) P18 eApgaduio) - joequo) Auoyny $8630.d piemy

Zeu|T sseuppy saojAleg |Bbon) jusweInaold Jo edA

Bujpying Aueqi] 00gL LeU sseappy ‘D'd ‘euld 9 MmN OWEN JOPUBA €

-142-

VIN | 9jeq payiad €202/ /21 :Buipul Jea, [easiy

a3LLnansNnN ‘snjelg
Bjeq uny

L{ATATA Y] uogesodio juswidopasq |euciBay Auno sug pue oleyng 40y Loday Juawiainooiy

e PR T -

LAISIAEATS LB ALILL LS ) LSRR W s s B SLE R LA e Y SR P

SN NS e e



¥ Jo p abey

SUSWUWo) [FUSHPPY
V/N : 3jeq payluag
Q3LLINENSNN smels

LAVATAYIN] Seq uny

€202/1E/Z) ‘Buipuz JeaA [eosiy
uopelodio) Juswdajeraq (eucibay Kuno) su3 pue ojeyng 1oy Hoday Juswainooid

LGS MRS LU A AL 3aa CRa R 3 5000 Ly 3 4 g Pl

D LN

* e S
SN ol w3

-143-



8 Jo | abey

LME 60URUd €)= o JO (6)FGE
UOfRSS Lim 8oUBPIOOE. U] ‘PALINID0 BABY SUOHE(OIA BI6YM SEIURISU) U} SUOROUES esodw) o} pue quswelnoosd
SOA & Bupnp peu0o ejqissjuusdu jo suopeBejje ejebjseau) pue mejaas o) sseacud B ARY Aluoyiny ey) seoq ‘6
I0EjU0D ejqissiutadiu) 8jy) J0 BPBW RI0ISS @ SBM ‘SBA JI ‘eg
ne
- edueu}4 elels e o (01)-6E L uoRoes LM eouBpIcooR ul ‘poyed Bugtodes ey Bupnp Jusweinsoid ey eousnuy
ON 0} pejduieqe Jo Jueweunsasd e Bupnp U0 ejqissjuueduw] pey JOpusA B Jeu eujuLeiep ALowny el Pa ‘8
¢V 407 JusLIeINOL UL, "MBT 83uBULS 8)BIS ey} JO (B)(g | UO[RBS LIM GOUBPIOIOE
894 | U} ‘jusieunooud oyjseds B Lo 108100 PeZUOYING aU SB BAI0S 0} suosied Jo UosJed e ejeuisep Auoyny ey) piq ‘2
4§1084U0D Juswe.noold o) suofedydeds J0 's)UeLINSOp piq ‘s|Esodold
SOA 40 uonEyalios sy u) suoniqiyosd pus sepljod Jueweinoosd ) jo AiBwwns B ejriodioou] Auoyiny el seoq 9
8OA Queweaibe uojsnjjoo-uou & ubis o) sieppiq eAfvedsoud esjnbes Huoyiny el seoq S
ON ¢seseyound sseu|sng Jo/pue jeaes Joj seekojdwe 0} spieo ypeso ubjsse Huoyny e seocq k4
ON Zseujiepint yeweunooud ey o} suopdeoxe 10} mojje Aoy ey} seoq e
SOA Zpaeog i Aq peaoudde pue ‘pepesu # papuewse ‘Ajjenuue pameireu seulepinb Juswainaaid oY) ary Z
»o_o__on.ﬂﬂoeg?«:onmg.»:wu_oo.;\“u&: SO ¢souliepinG jueweunooud ey Auoyiny ey seoq b
(e1qeanddy i) Tun | esucdsey uopsend

V/N : 3leq payied

€202/1€/Z) ‘Buipu3 JeaA [eosiy
a3LLINGNSNN smels
vZ0Z/ZLIED  Bequny

uogelodiod Juswdoieaag pue [ELSNpu| AUN0D auT Pue ojeyng 104 Hoday juawaInooid

LLISAS ASS LECRILZLLI A 0] CILLPBACICRTL > S0 JAL R E ] b SRAILN U P Ry

SN CL e

88 ANIWHOVLLV|

-144-



8 1o Z abed

junowy ey ueyy

“Hed ea1eWwo) uopduaseq $307 8] onjEA JORH

Sduessjeuay j8 (.8 Peoy.) Aempeos meu JO 166} 055" JO UORINLSULS juswenaoig 4184 o1 Aym uppidxa
Jeo) [easid

S0)elS payun Agunogy £6°255'501°L$ 404 pepuedx3 junowy

uojBey/eaujroig 09'6L2'885°)$ unowy

¥ snig NjBA YR Jju

444} 6poY [Bis0d ejeq pu3z

AN s zzozLelYy oRQ pIemy

VOINIS L1SIM ) P18 eagRedwio) - JprguUOD Auopny $8630.d plemy

Tou[ ssaippy S3UBUIUIBN/UORINGSUOY PUB Ubjseq JusiLIeINI0Ld Jo edA),

©ANQ SPIAB( WIS BE joui sseippy "3U| UORONASLOY (BISUSD M 9 T GWEN JOpUuoA 'z

unowy el usyy

uopdposeq $807 8] 8N[eA 10BN

¥800 UORBIO|3I pJEA pBOUjes 0} pejejal sisAlRuR Woueg uewaINd0Lg e o Aym ujeidxg
PN TITF]

Selels peyun Anunop 00'005'6$ 404 pepuedx3 junowy

uojBey/eaujacsg 00'005'6$ unowy

¥ snig 00°005'6$ ON[BA JONIBW 4184

zieel 9poY |sjsod z20z/8e/LL ojeq pug

AN e 1) 220ZiLL)L ojeq piemy

ISNOVAUAS Ao P8 eARedwon-uoN - eguog Auoyiny $8030.d pIemy

Zeu[ ssauppy $80iA1e8 Bupinsuon JuslIeInaoud Jo edA)

PJeAs|nog sujjog useliy "o 66¥ Lou] sseuppy ‘ou) ‘siesujbug s9o SWEN Jopuep ‘b

VIN : 3jeg psyisy

£202/1€/2Z1 ‘Buipus Jea [eosiy

-145-

Q3LLINGNSNN snejg
vZ0Z/ZLIED Bleq uny

uopesodiod juswdoieraq pue [eljsnpul Aunog sug pue ojeyng Jo} yoday Juswanaold

.tr._-n.a‘.rl.m_..r..,..._E_L._.,r....Lr:?.r:—.:un:u.ﬁm..k.-:._..lar..__.-.ﬂw J:E:ﬂ.l'

=N c e




8 Jo ¢ abeyd

nowy e usy
JjEd edlewwo) souessieuey 1¢ (,g peoy,) pecs mau jo uopdusseqg $867 8] ONjRA JoXIBH
uogoNnAasuod el Joj s8djaies Bupesulue Juepjses pue ‘ubjsep .u:_._coc_mcm. juetueindoid djog o Aym =_M_|nxm
IR, [8S)4
SOJBIS peun Anunogy £8'¢82'66$ 104 popuedxzy junowy
uojBey/esujaoig Z1'ss6'2ee8 unowy
¥ snid BNBA JO)IRN Jje
€02ri 9poD [#isod aEQ pug
AN a|ns y20¢/8eiL 9eQq piemy
Ovddng Ao Pig eApedwio) - pejuo) Auoyiny 858304 pIemy
002 aing Zouj sseuppy SJuBuauB/UOgINASUOD pue ubisea juswiainaold jo edAy
joe4s Ul SeT Leuj sseuppy $0)B00SSY Haqly 30 QUWIRN Jopuep ‘v
Junowny ey} uewy
‘JuswesINquas uopdusseq $807 $| n[RA JoxBK
asuedxe ‘seapues Bules Jo vq) Awunoo ey3 o) 09 jusweBeuesyy Jueweina0lg Je4 ey Aym upejdxg
4BOA [838)4
s818S peyun Aunog 09'8¥9'9LL$ 404 pepuedxz yunoury
:o_uwm\oo:_s.._ wnowy
¥ shid ONBA O3B a8 |
£02¥L 8p0J [ejs0d ejeq puz
AN aeg 8jeq piemy
Ov44ing 3] depug 9SBUANJAUBWIAINIOL J9BALOYD UON 98020.d piemy
£0F elng Zou| ssauppy sagines Buyme jueweunaold jo edA|
Jeexg Auad 66 LoU[ sseppy foueby Juewdojeaeq [esnpu) Aunos L F] SWRN JOpusp 't

V/N | 81eQ payis)
a3LLingnsNn smejs
LAV ¥isia) [jeg uny

€202/1 €/} Buipu3 tea  jeosiy

LLLES SES LEcs el UL bt ) L ENEp e TS TR e R Y N e 11 1 P g,

SIal T e

uoge.odio) Juswidopaag pue [esnpu) AUnon aug pue ojeyng 104 Hoday JuaaINoolq

-146-



810 p abey

junowry el ueyy

uopdusseq £807 8| 6N|BA JouEN

“sejes Aunoy uo peseq (|esunog (eieuss) HTI) sediles [eBer jueweinaolg e ey Aym upejdhy
T S

s9je)S psjun Agunop £0'6v8'62$ Jog pepusdxy w..ﬂs_u

uojBeyeoujrold £0'6¥8'6Z% unowy

¥ snid ON[BA JO)IBN Jjed

olzyl 8poY [eisod £202/L/S ejeq pu3

AN L) 800Z/2L1L ejeQ piemy

ov4ng T Pig eAnnedwo) - Jornuos Ayony $80204d pIRMY

0001 elins “eens ebuByox3 9z zour] ssaippy seolneg [8Be JuOWeINI0 Jo edhy

eBueyoxg je uppe ey ssauppy JT1d "yoreq spuey SwieN Jopusp 9

‘Jeeqs |1epQ Jo/pue peoy ebppy Bupsixe . Junowy ey uewy

61 Woyj yjied 8IBILIOY) BIUBSSIBUGY O] BulpUdIXe SABMPBOI MOU uopdpaseq £807 8| ON[EA JO3RY

10 UoINNSUO ey 10} S8djAIes Jepu|Bue Juapises pue ‘uBisep ‘Buuseujbug jJusweInaold 4184 oy Aym ujeidxg

Ive, (R8sl

$91|IS payun Anunog 06'665'49¢ 404 pepuedx3 junourty

uojBeyeaujroid SL'71S'62E$ junowy

¥ shid ONIEA y9IRI 4Ry

X4 4" 98p0) |ejsod ejeq pugz

AN aels 2202/92/1 8jeq piemy

OTvddng A Pig eagpedwog - peque) Auoyiny $8630.d piemy

002 sung 28Ul sseuppy @ouBUBjUBNMIORINISUOCYD PUE uBiseq JUSWBINI0L Jo edA)

1eeqs ulei G62 Leur sseuppy S80Sy Jeqgy 04 QWRN JOPUSA G

VIN . 8leq payiyag
A3LLINGNSNN snes
d)eq uny

$202/Z1iE

€20Z/LERL ‘Buipu] Jea [easiy

uonesodiod uawdoieasq puen [BLISNPU| AUNoD su3 pue ojeyng Joj podey JUBLLBIND0Ig

LA T LN R LU B A LR EVGas ) ESHENL O VA LT e

ST oINS o) K

-147-



810 g abeyq

"Hode Mijd |enuue puB uogedyRied 4og (Bnuuy *Aunog eu3 uj seys Junowy e uey
Auedoud snopea pue Plsyjumouq jo Juswidojerepes pus eseyoind ey yum uopdpaseq 807 8] ON[BA J0)JBN
UOfd8UU0D U] s3i0ue esuel)p enp ' UiM 151888 0} S60JA10S [BIUSWILIOIAUT JuswiaInIoNg 48] oy Aym ujejdig
J80A [B3s]]

$e)8)S payun Anunoy 00°05¢'L$ 404 pepuedxy Junowy

uojBeyjesujrcig 00°054'L$ junowy

¥ snid ON{BA Jo el Jjed

145014 9po) |B3sod 8@ puz

AN a|ns 6L0¢/8d/8 QeQ piemy

HIISIHOOH L) Pig oAppedwio) - pRAUCY Auoiny 802044 piemy

102 syng Zoup ssauppy saojeg Bupinsuon jusleundald jo edA)

joang a\ys 00E Louj ssaippy Od sejepossy ejjage QWBN J0puUep 8

Junowy e\ uey)

uopduaseq 897 8| onjeA YRl

s[esjeidde Auedoud |BUOISSEY0IY jueweinsoig Jje4 oy Aym upeidxg

ITOYNTZOF]

sejels pejun Ajunop 00°00¢'8$ o4 pepuedxz junowry

uojBey/eaujroay junowy

¥ shid ONBA o) Rl Jje4

SZevl 8po) [B3sod ajeq pug

‘AN agnsg e)eQq piMyY

VOVMO.INIIHD 5] 48R0 6SBUINGAUSIEGINIAL JOBIUOY UON 88600.d piemy

zeuj] sseuppy seoteg Bupinsuog Wewieind0.d jo edAt

peoy ebnfen syz Lou} ssauppy ‘ouj ‘dnous) |Bsieaddy MM wepN Jopuea y A

-148-

VIN : 3jeq paype
Q3aLLINGNSNN snelg
djeq uny

€ZOZ/LEMTI ‘Bupu] seap jeosiy

L AVATAN ) uoijelodi0) Juswdojaasq pueT jeussnpu) Aunog au3 pue oleyng o) Hoday JUAWSIND0IY

LIRS AS LA ELIS L LI ik a) LU R ACH S d S5 e KL I g 1 T o e T

ST ol e




8 jo 9 abey

JnowWY ey} uey)

}ed edewwo) uopdpaseq $8@7 8] ONEA Jorep
SJuBsS|BUSY |8 SUOISUBIXS BU|| JOJBM DUB JBMES JO UORINLSUOD jueleInsoig Jje4 oy Aym upejdg |

180, [eas|d

$OlEIS payun Agunog S9'650'916'¥S 404 pepuedxg junouwry

uo|Bey/esujacig £0°100'980°9% junowy

¥ snid an[eA JOCW JB4

802h1 9poD [ejsod aeqg pugz

AN ans 2202/82/6 sjeq premy

oTviing 0 P18 eAnRedwod - Penuog Apouny $58201d pIemy

Zoul ssuppy duBUSIIBIN/UOINISUCD pue ubjseq uSWIRIN30Ad Jo odAL

2848 susbuiqg zg} Lour] ssauppy "3U} 'S30JABS UOROINASUCD ojid OWEBN Jopusp ‘0

unowy ey uey

“Apedoud uopduoseq $507 8] aNjRA JorRH

HEd SBLILIOY 2IUBSSIBUBY BY) SO} XB) 1OMES BUUBMENOET O A7) jusweinaoud Jjed a3 Aym upejdxg
1ee, [898)d |

sejels payun Anunoy 92°629'693 dog pepuedx3 Junowy

uojBey/eaujaouy Junowry

¥ snid ON{BA 1o)UY Jjod

gievi 8poY |esod aeQ pug

AN ojmg 9BQq piemy

VYNNVMWIOV A0 49pI0 8SEBUIINGAUBWIAIN0IL JDBIUOD UON $80204d pIeMy

oy ssauppy g0 uewenaoud jo edAy

peoy 8bppy pLL leur] ssauppy Jeunseas) Ao BuuemeNOE] QBN Jopusp ‘6

VIN - 3jeq payian
A3LLINGNSNN snes
@jeq uny

LAV AT i ]

€202/L€/Z1 Bulpuz Jed A [€0SIY

uope.odio) uawdojaasq puen [elysnpul AUNoD 2ug pue ojeyng Joy Hoday Juswanosolg

TADINS TN e T

1217 A we™™35

-149-



810 2 afeg

unowy ey ueyy
uopdposeq 9807 5] ON|RA Jedien
SIFO/ueld 1618BW Hied seeujsnquby Hunod ey juewiesnoold 4184 oy} Aym upejdxg
TONTLF]
£9181S poalun Agunog 0€'199'v98 404 pepuedxg juncury
uojBeyyesujnoid 00'€26'GhPS junoury
¥ snid ON[BA JOOUBI JjB |
[ ¥44 43 9poY |eisod ejeq puz
AN a4ss 0Z02/9L721 NeQq piemy
ITUASHVITIIM TR P!g eAppedwo) - pequog Auoyiny 98a20.d piemy
002Z ejing Zouj sseuppy seomies Buginsuon USWBINI0L Jo adAy
uaoEw—wmm SlE jeuj ssaippy [9PUspy SUWBN JOpuep T
junoury el ueyy
“Hed 9UBWIWOY BouBSS|BUSY uopdusseq $597 S| onjeA YLLK
40 soueque ujew je ebeubis Anue Jo uoje||Bjsul pue uogoONRSUOD JUSWSINIVIY Jjed oy Aym ujejdxg
TN F]
$0164S pajun Anunogp 00'098°6¥1L$ 104 pepuedxz Junowry
uojBeysesujaoig 00°09€'181$ junowy
¥ snid ON|BA Jo)IBW Jjed
90zl 8pay |B}sod ejeq pu3
AN b it Leozreere) 8j8Q psemy
01vddng i Th] pig eangedwo) - peguo) Auoyny 958201 paemy
Zour sseippy aduBusjuBN/UORONISUOY pue ubisaq ueweinsosd jo edA)
184g susbuiq zel LeU|] sseuppy *Ou] ‘sedjAles USHINISUCY Ojuid OWRN Jopusp ‘I

V/N : 8jeq payned
a3LLINGNSNN smeis
:8jeq uny

[ ZAVATATIN]

£202/1€/2) :Bulpuz Jea [edsi4

uojeiodio Juawdojsaag pueT [BUSNpUl AUNoD U3 PUE ojeyng 105 LOdoY JUBLIBINDOIY

SRR At S L N ERSEE TS L §RE SN ST = FS = SN S S e i e

SIS L Re

-150-



8 Jo g ebey

VIN : 8jeq paynian
Q3 LLIINGNSNN ‘sneig
ajeq uny

LAV A¥IS)

HUSWGY [SUSTHPPY

€202/1€/T) Buipul Jes |eosiy

uofelod.og juswdojaaaq pueT {eugsnpu funog su3 pue ojeyng Jo Joday JUBWSIN00I]

LECRULT LR ) 0 LB CRER Dy =18 il s £ g0 0 G e o

=11 CLWe—

-151-



Erie County Industrial Development Agency
Buffalo & Erie County Regional Development Corporation
Buffalo & Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation

Investment Reports
For the year ended December 31, 2023

-152-




Erie County Industrial Development Agency
Buffalo & Erie County Regional Development Corp. (RDC)
Buffalo & Erie County Industrial Land Development Corp. (ILDC)

2023 Annual Investment Report

Purpose of Report:

Under Section 2925(6) of the Public Authorities Law, the ECIDA and its affiliates (RDC
& ILDC) are required to prepare and approve an annual Investment Report. The
investment report is to include: ECIDA’s Investment Guidelines (see below), the results of
the annual independent investment audit (see below), a list of the total investment income
received by the corporation and a list of the fees, commissions or other charges paid to
each investment banker, broker, agent, dealer and advisor rendering investment associated
services to the corporation since the last Investment Report.

The attached schedule details the corporation’s investment income and related fees for the
year ended December 31, 2023 and were approved by the Board of each corporation on
March 27, 2024.

Investment Guidelines:

In accordance with Section 2925 of the Public Authorities Law, the ECIDA and its
affiliates are required to adopt Investment Guidelines which detail its operative policy and
instructions to staff regarding the investing, monitoring and reporting of funds of the
corporation. In addition, the ECIDA is subject to the deposit and investment restrictions
contained in Sections 10 and 11 of the General Municipal Law. The ECIDA’s affiliates
have elected to follow the deposit and investment restrictions contained in Sections 10 and
11 of the General Municipal Law as a “best practice.”

The Investment Guidelines were approved by the Board of each corporation on March 27,
2024 and are posted on the ECIDA website at https://www.ecidany.com/about-us-
corporate-policies. The Investment Guidelines for the ECIDA and its affiliates are
consistent with the prior Guidelines adopted on March 22, 2023.

Investment Audit:

The auditors for the ECIDA and its affiliates have audited the corporations’ compliance
with the Investment Guidelines for Public Authorities. In their report dated March XX,
2024, Lumsden McCormick LLP indicated that the Agency complied, in all material
respects, with these Investment Guidelines.

-153-



JOUISIQ JaMO | SUQ BIBUSS BU) Ul SJUSISACIALU BINJONASELU 1O JUNOOE PajouISey

12LSI JOPLUIDY 19341S BOBUSS B} Ul SJUSWSACIAW) SINJONISELU| 1O} JUNOIIE PSIOUISOY
1OUISIQ 193G UKW BY} UL SJUSWIBA0IALYY SiNJOTUISBIU| 0] JUNOJJ. PRJOUISSY

sjoafoud AunoD ap3 paleubisap g 18)juaD B2IBWILLIOY UUBWBUROA YHON JOj JUNOIJE PajoLISoY
JUBWdO|2ARP PUBIYUON PUE PURGIBALY ‘dDq 10} JUNoSIE PajouIsay

SONIAROE PaJE|D) PEOJ|IRI SUIRIOYS AJUNDY) U3 o) JUNOJ2e PIJOMISY

junodoe JuawssAulsBunes pund Syan vaiod

JUNOD2E JUBLLIS3AUYBUNOaYD pund Ovan valn3

junooge sbunes yqID3 |eseussy

junooge Buiyoay) yain3 lelsuss

e g e e iy

asoding pajousay

1
-

"$89} Aue J0 uoRoNpep 8y 0} Joud S| puE £Z0Z JOqLIBISQ JO YIUOW AU} IO} Slel PAZIENUUE By} SI Bjey Jsaselui eyl , WA

- $ Loz'ies_§

- £0Z'81

- 20L'v9
- 108'68
N 9ES 1P

- 867'8

- 09Z°)

- Lv0'661
- 59

- Zri'soL
- ez

soa4 awosuy
WwBUNSIAU|

€202 |

%S2'¢
%G2'e
%S2'E
%SZ'¢E
%Se'e
%050
%S2'e
%050
%ST'E
%05°0

£20Z 990
S’y
1saI9)u|

c6r'IBr'ccd 1/6'¥E6'/C 8

909'76L
zr0'980'c
LLB'VLL'E
20p'¥29'L
055'1€2
£88'092
95v'022'9
60L'11
259'718'9
512299

€zoz/1erL

ove'Ley
6.8'18€'2
994°622't
£9°'028'L
901'26¥
665'902
167'EL6'0L
'Ll

808'92S

€202/

aoueeg o edueleg Yo

Aueg 13N
Aueg L3N
Hueg L3N
Aueg L3
Hueg 18\
Aueg 18\
Aueg 18N
Aueg 18N
Aueg L8N
Aueg 18N

uopmpisu|
[ejoueuly

saoy

sbuines o1
sbuines 6
sbuineg g
sBuiaeg 2
sBuineg 9
Bupjoayd g
sBulAeg p
Bunjoay) €
sbuineg z
Bupjaayd |

adA] junosoy

£20Z ‘1€ 19quadag papua Jeak ay) 104

Hoday Jusw)saay)] fenuuy

(va@193) Aauaby juawdojaaa [elysnpuj Ajuno) aug



-155-

*s98} Aue Jo uononpap ay) 0} Joud Si PUB £Z0Z JAGUIF0S( JO YIUOLI BU} JO} S}Es PAZIIENULE SU} SI 8)Ey 1SSIa)U| ay) B

IS9ION
- $ e6sel $ €2.'700'Y  $ 08'95Z'¢ ¢
unoooe Bupjoayd pung ueo Y SIUYO va3 p - SLL'T %080 276956 288°SHE yueg 18N Buppsyo ¢
juncooe JusuyssAuysBuiaeg pung ueo Aoefs M - 6vZ'L9 %00 296'652'C 829'86¢'¥ yueg LN sbuieg g
unoooe Juaulsaauybuppay) pund ueo Aoeban p - GE9'C %0S'0  6€8'28L 06415 Aueg L3N Buppay) |
€202 %2Q €20Z/LE2L €20Z/LL
asoding pajosay $894 awoou| <9ey aouejeg /o  douejeg /o uoyninsu| adAj junodoy
juauyseAu) 1sasau| fepueuly
[ €202 |

£20Z ‘1§ Joquiada pepud Jeak ay) Jo4
Hoday JuswsaAu) jenuuy

(Day) uonesodio) yuswdojanaq jeuoibay fjunos aug @ ojeyng



g uesb jusldopasq slelg audw3 10} JUnoooe Jsasdw| M
unoooe Buyosyo DAL leJsuss
qJUN0o2e Ueo asudialualoLIN 4ad Aunod aug M

asodind payouIsey

"sjusLwsaibe y)m 9OUEPIOOOE UY J0JURID 0) PSYILUBI S| PBUIES SWODUI JUSWISIAY] ,

"s$89} Aue Jo uononpap ayj 0} Jolid SI pue g0z JoquIada( JO LUOW By} Joj S)eJ PIZI|enuue ay) Si 3jey JSae| syl e

- $ tBE'9 $ Sve'l0y  $ Sop'ssel §
- ov6'l %050 0 8/8'02S

B S69'c %050 6¥9'0C¢ §Z5'st9

- % 8w %0S°0 969'08 £00°'98

€202 98Q [ XA TAIRA A €202/1/}
S84 auIooUu} ey aouejeg /o aouejeg /o
JuUSWIsaAU| Jsalaju
| £202 |

:sajoN
jueg LN Buosyd ¢
sueg 19N Bupoayd z
yueg L8N Bunioayd |
uonnysug adA] junoooy

feoueury

£202 ‘1€ Jaqwanaq papus Jeak ay) Jo4
Hoday Juswiisaau) fenuuy

(2@1) uonesodios yuswdojaraq pue jelysnpuj fjunon alig g ojeyng



Erie County Industrial Development Agency (“ECIDA”), Buffalo
and Erie County Regional Development Corporation (“RDC”) and
Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation
(“ILDC”)

INVESTMENT AND DEPOSIT POLICY

ARTICLE 1
S_coge

Section 2925 of the Public Authorities Law requires the Erie County Industrial
Development Agency (the “Agency™) and its affiliates to"adopt by fesolition comprehensive
investment guidelines which detail its operative policy and instructions to officers and staff
regarding the investing, monitoring and reporting of funds of the Agency.

In addition to the requirements set forth in Section 2925 of the Public Authorities Law,
the Agency is subject to the deposit and investment restrictions contained in Sections 10 and 11
of the General Municipal Law, which govern the deposit and investment of funds for the
Agency’s own use and account.

This investment and deposit policy (“Investment Policy”) is adopted by the Agency
pursuant to the foregoing provisions of the Public Authorities Law and General Municipal Law
and shall apply to all moneys and other financial resources available for investment on the
Agency’s own behalf or, where applicable, on behalf of any other entity or individual.

This Investment Policy shall be applicable to the Erie County Industrial Development
Agency and all of its affiliates, including: Buffalo and Erie County Regional Development
Corporation (“RDC”); Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation
(“ILDC”) and such other affiliates as may hereafter be established by the Agency and which are
determined to be subject to the requirements of Section 2925 of the Public Authorities Law (an
“ECIDA Affiliate”) (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Agency”) upon approval by the
respective Boards of each corporation. Unless otherwise indicated, all references to the
“Agency” herein shall also include the ECIDA Affiliates.

This Investment Policy is not intended to restrict the normal business activities of the

Agency, which include the making of loans to, equity investments in, and/or project expenditures
in private companies in furtherance of the corporate purposes of the forgoing entities.

-157-



ARTICLE 11
Governing Principles

A. Investment Objectives.

The primary objectives of the Agency’s investment policy are, in order of priority,
as follows: (i) to conform with all applicable federal, state and local laws and legal requirements;
(i) to adequately safeguard principal; (iii) to provide sufficient liquidity to meet all operating
requirements of the Agency; and (iv) to obtain a reasonable rate of return.

B. Diversification.

As the Agency is subject to the deposit and investment restrictions set forth in
Sections 10 and 11 of the General Municipal Law, the opportunity to diversify among types of
investments is limited. Subject to these legal restraints, however, the policy of the Agency is to
diversify by investment instrument, by maturity and where practicable by financial institution.

C. Internal Controls.

1. All funds received by an officer or employee of the Agency shall be
promptly deposited with the depositories designated by the Agency (pursuant to Article ITL.A of
this Investment Policy) for the receipt of such funds.

2, Pursuant to Section 11(7) of the General Municipal Law, the Treasurer,
Assistant Treasurer, Chief Financial Officer or Controller of the Agency shall maintain or cause
to be maintained a proper record of all books, notes, securities or other evidence of indebtedness
held by the Agency for investment and deposit purposes. Such record shall identify the security,
the fund for which it is held, the place where kept, the date of sale or other disposition, and the
amount received from such sale or other disposition.

3. The Agency is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal
control structure to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that deposits and investments
are safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposition, that transactions are executed
in accordance with management’s authorization and recorded properly, and are managed in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

D. Authorized Financial Institutions and Dealers.

The Agency shall maintain a list of financial institutions and dealers approved for
investment purposes and establish appropriate limits to the amount of investments that may be
outstanding with each financial institution or dealer. All financial institutions with which the
Agency conducts business must be creditworthy as determined by criteria established by the
Treasurer, Assistant Treasurer, Chief Financial Officer or Controller of the Agency. All banks
with which the Agency does business shall provide their most recent Consolidated Report of
Condition (Call Report) at the request of the Agency. Security dealers not affiliated with a bank

-158-



shall be required to be classified as reporting dealers affiliated with the New York Federal
Reserve Bank, as primary dealers.

E, Purchase of Investments.

The Agency may contract for the purchase of investments directly, including
through a repurchase agreement, from an authorized trading partner. All purchased obligations,
unless registered or inscribed in the name of the Agency, shall be purchased through, delivered
to, and held in the custody of a bank or trust company. Such obligations shall be purchased, sold
or presented for redemption or payment by such bank or trust company only in accordance with
prior written authorization from the officer authorized to make the investment. All such
transactions shall be confirmed in writing to the Agency by the bank or trust company shall be
held pursuant to a written custodial agreement as described in Article IV.C.2 of this Policy.

F. Repurchase Agreements.

restrictions:

1. All repurchase agreements must be entered into subject to a Master
Repurchase Agreement. -

2. Trading partners are limited to commercial banks or trust companies

authorized to do business in New York State and primary reporting dealers.

3. Obligations shall be limited to obligations of the United States of America
and obligations guaranteed by agencies of the United States of America.

4, No substitution of securities will be allowed.

5. Obligations purchased pursuant to a repurchase agreement shall be held by
a custodian other than the trading partner, pursuant to a written custodial agreement that
complies the terms of Article IV.C.2 of this Policy.

ARTICLE III
Investments

A. General Policy.

It is the general policy of the Agency that funds not required for immediate
expenditure shall be invested as described in Article IILB below. Investments shall be made
with judgment and care, under circumstances then prevailing, which persons of prudence,
discretion and intelligence exercise in the management of their own affairs, not for speculation,
but for investment, considering the safety of the principal as well as the probable income, net of

fees, to be derived.

-159-



B. Permitted Investments.

The Treasurer, Assistant Treasurer, Chief Financial Officer and/or Controller are
authorized to invest funds not required for immediate expenditure in the following investments
permitted under Section 11 of the General Municipal Law:

1. Special time deposit accounts in, or certificates of deposit issued by any
commercial bank or trust company that is located in and authorized to do business in New York
State, provided that such deposit account or certificate of deposit is secured in the same manner
as provided in Article IV.B of this Investment Policy and is payable within such time as the
proceeds shall be needed to meet expenditures for which the funds were obtained;

2. Obligations of the United States of America;

3. Obligations guaranteed by agencies of the United States of America where

the payment of pnn01pal and interest are guaranteed by the United States of / America;
4, Obligations of the State of New York; and

5. Such other obligations as may be permitted under Section 11 of the
General Municipal Law.

All investments as provided in Sections B(2) through B(5) of this Article shall be
payable or redeemable at the option of the Agency within such times as the proceeds will be
needed to meet expenditures for purposes for which the moneys were provided and, in the case
of obligations purchased with the proceeds of bonds or notes, shall be payable or redeemable at
the option of the Agency within two years of the date of purchase, and comply with such other
requirements as set forth in Section 11 of the General Municipal Law.

ARTICLE IV
Deposits

A. Designation of Depositories.

The Agency shall, by resolution, designate one or more commercial banks or trust
companies for the deposit of Agency funds received by the Agency. Such resolution shall
specify the maximum amount that may be kept on deposit at any time with each bank or trust
company. Such designations and amounts may be changed at any time by further resolution of

the Agency.

B. Collateralization of Deposits.

In accordance with Section 10 of the General Municipal Law, all deposits of the
Agency (including certificates of deposit and special time deposits) in excess of the amount

-160-



insured under the provisions of the Federal Deposit Insurance Act shall be secured as follows:

1. By a pledge of “eligible securities” with an aggregate “market value” as
defined by Section 10 of the General Municipal Law, at least equal to the aggregate amount of
deposits. A list of eligible securities is attached hereto as Schedule A.

2. By an itrevocable letter of credit issued by a qualified bank (other than the
bank with which the money is being deposited or invested) in favor of the Agency for a term not
to exceed ninety (90) days with an aggregate value equal to 140% of the aggregate amount of
deposits and the agreed upon interest, if any. A qualified bank is one whose commercial paper
and other unsecured short-term debt obligations are rated in one of the three highest rating
categories by at least one nationally recognized statistical rating organization or by a bank that is
in compliance with applicable minimum risk-based capital requirements.

3. By an eligible surety bond payable to the Agency for an amount at least
equal to 100% of the aggregate amount of deposits and the agreed upon interest, if any, executed
by an insurance company authorized to do business in New York State, whose claims-paying
ability is rated in the highest rating category by at least two nationally recognized statistical
rating organizations. The terms and conditions of any eligible surety bond shall be subject to

Agency Board approval.

4. By a pledge of a pro rata portion of a pool of eligible securities, having in
the aggregate a market value at least equal to the amount of deposits from all such officers within
the State at such bank or trust company, together with a security agreement from the bank or

trust company.

5. By an irrevocable letter of credit issued in favor of the Agency by a
federal home loan bank whose commercial paper and other unsecured short-term debt
obligations are rated in the highest rating category by at least one nationally recognized statistical
rating organization, as security for the payment of 100% of the aggregate amount of the deposits
and the agreed upon interest, if any.

C. Safekeeping and Collateralization.

Eligible securities used for collateralizing deposits shall be held by the depository
and/or third party bank or trust company subject to security and custodial agreements as
described below.

1. Security Agreement Requirements. The security agreement shall provide
that eligible securities are being pledged to secure Agency deposits together with agreed upon
interest, if any, and any costs or expenses arising out of the collection of such deposits upon
default. It shall also provide the conditions under which the securities may be sold, presented
for payment, substituted or released and the events which will enable the Agency to exercise its
rights against the pledged securities. In the event that the securities are not registered or
inscribed in the name of the Agency, such securities shall be delivered in a form suitable for

-161-



transfer or with an assignment in blank to the depository or its custodial bank.

2. Custodial Agreement Requirements. The custodial agreement shall
provide that securities held by the bank or trust company, as agent of and custodian for the
Agency, will be kept separate and apart from the general assets of the custodial bank or trust
company and will not, in any circumstances, be commingled with or become part of the backing
for any other deposit or other liabilities. The custodial agreement should also describe that the
custodian shall confirm the receipt, substitution or release of the securities. The custodial
agreement shall provide for the frequency of revaluation of eligible securities and for the
substitution of securities when a change in the rating of a security may cause ineligibility. Such
agreement shall include all provisions necessary to provide the Agency a perfected interest in the
securities and may include such other terms as the Agency Board deems necessary.

ARTICLE V
Monitoring and Reporting Obligations

The following monitoring and reporting procedures shall be applicable in connection
with the deposit and investment of funds subject to this Investment Policy:

A. Monthly Monitoring.

Each cash and investment account statement will be reviewed and reconciled on a
monthly basis. The Treasurer, Assistant Treasurer, Chief Financial Officer or Controller will
review each account reconciliation for accuracy and will investigate any unusual items noted.

B. Monitoring and Reporting.

Pursuant to Section 2925(5) of the Public Authorities Law, the Treasurer,
Assistant Treasurer, Chief Financial Officer or Controller of the Agency shall present a report at
each meeting of the Agency Board of Directors which will include the following information: ()
the cash and investment balances of the Agency; (ii) identification of any new investments since
the last report; (iii) information concerning the selection of investment bankers, brokers, agents
dealers or auditors since the last report; and (iv) the names of the financial institutions holding

Agency deposits;.

C. Annual Monitoring and Reporting.

1. On an annual basis, the Agency will obtain an independent audit of its
financial statements, which shall include an audit of its cash and investments and the Agency’s
compliance with this Investment Policy. The results of the independent audit shall be made
available to the Agency Board at the time of its annual review of this Investment Policy.

2. Pursuant to Section 2925(6) of the Public Authorities Law, Agency staff

shall, on an annual basis, prepare and submit for Agency Board approval an investment report
which shall include this Investment Policy, amendments to the Investment Policy since the last

-162-



investment report, an explanation of the Investment Policy and any amendments, the results of
the annual independent audit, the investment income record of the Agency and a list of the total
fees, commissions or other charges paid to each investment banker, broker, agent, dealer and
advisor rendering investment associated services to the Agency since the last investment report.
The investment report will be distributed to those individuals identified in Section 2925(7)(b) of
the Public Authorities Law. The Agency shall make available to the public copies of its
investment report upon reasonable request therefor.

ARTICLE VI
Annual Review

This Investment Policy shall be reviewed and approved by the Agency Board of Directors
on an annual basis.

ARTICLE VIII
Savings Clause

Nothing contained in Section 2925 of the Public Authorities Law shall be deemed to
alter, affect the validity of, modify the terms of or impair any contract, agreement or investment
of funds made or entered into by the Agency in violation of, or without compliance with the
provisions of Section 2925 of the Public Authorities Law.

Re-adopted this 27th day of March 2024 by the respective Boards of each corporation referenced above.

-163-



SCHEDULE A
ELIGIBLE SECURITIES

Obligations issued by the United States of America, an agency thereof or a United States
government sponsored corporation or obligations fully insured or guaranteed as to the payment
of principal and interest by the United States of America, an agency thereof or a United States
government sponsored corporation.

Obligations issued or fully guaranteed by the International Bank for Reconstruction and
Development, the Inter-American Development Bank, the Asian Development Bank and the

African Development Bank.

Obligations partially insured or guaranteed by any agency of the United States of America, at a
proportion of the Market Value of the obligation that represents the amount of the insurance or

guaranty.
Obligations issued or fully insured or guaranteed by the State of New York, obligations issued by
a municipal corporation, school district or district corporation or such State or obligations of any

public benefit corporation which under a specific State statute may be accepted as security for
deposit of public moneys.

Obligations issued by states (other than the State of New York) of the United States rated in one
of the three highest rating categories by at least one nationally recognized statistical rating
organization,

Obligations of Puerto Rico rated in one of the three highest rating categories by at least one
nationally recognized statistical rating organization.

Obligations of counties, cities and other governmental entities of another state having the power
to levy taxes that are backed by the full faith and credit of such governmental entity and rated in
one of the three highest categories by at least one nationally recognized statistical rating
organization.

Obligations of domestic corporations rated one of the two highest rating categories by at least
one nationally recognized statistical rating organization.

Any mortgage related securities, as defined in the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended,
which may be purchased by banks under the limitations established by bank regulatory agencies.

Commercial paper and bankers’ acceptances issued by a bank (other than the bank with which

the money is being deposited or invested), rated in the highest short term category by at least one
nationally recognized statistical rating organization and having maturities of not longer than sixty

days from the date they are pledged.

Zero Coupon obligations of the United States government marketed as “Treasury STRIPS”.

-164-



Erie County Industrial Development Agency (“ECIDA”), Buffalo and
Erie County Regional Development Corporation (“RDC”), Buffalo
and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation
(“ILDC”)

FINANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE CHARTER

In addition to the Erie County Industrial Development Agency, this Charter shall also serve
as the charter for the Finance & Audit Committees of the Buffalo and Erie County Regional
Development Corporation (“RDC”) and Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development
Corporation (“ILDC”) (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Agency’) upon approval by the

respective Boards of each corporation.

ARTICLE1
Core Functions

The core functions of the Finance & Audit Committee are set forth in the Bylaws and
include: (i) providing assistance to members of the Agency in fulfilling their fiduciary
responsibilities relating to accounting, reporting and regulatory compliance practices; (i1)
maintaining, by way of regularly scheduled meetings, a direct line of communication between the
members of the Agency and the Agency’s independent accountants and auditors to provide for
exchanges of views and information; (iii) maintaining, as appropriate, a direct line of
communication between the members of the Agency and the governmental authorities having audit
authority or fiscal oversight of the Agency; (iv) approving the budget of the Agency for submission
to the Board; (v) approving and/or directing the transfers of moneys under the budget; and (vi)
recommending to the Board the level of cash reserves and the level of fund balances of the Agency.

ARTICLE T
Composition

Members of the Finance & Audit Committee shall be appointed in accordance with the
Bylaws and, to the extent practicable, members of the Finance & Audit Committee should be
familiar with corporate financial and accounting practices. The Board shall designate one member
of the Finance & Audit Committee to serve as chair of the Finance & Audit Committee. Each
member of the Finance & Audit Committee shall serve for a term of one (1) year and until his or

her successor shall be appointed and qualified.

At least three members of the Finance & Audit Committee must be an “independent
member” within the meaning of, and to the extent required by, Section 2825 of the New York
Public Authorities Law, as amended from time to time. Finance & Audit Committee members
shall be prohibited from being an employee of the Agency or an immediate family member of an

-165-



employee of the Agency. Members of the Finance & Audit Committee shall not engage in any
private business transactions with the Agency or receive compensation from any private entity that
has material business relatlonshlps with the Agency, or be an immediate family member of an
individual that engages in private business transactions with the Agency or receives compensation
from an entity that has material business relationships with the Agency. In addition, Finance &
Audit Committee members who are members of the Agency shall comply with the conflict of
interest provisions applicable to public officers under Article 18 of the New York General

Municipal Law.

ARTICLE 111
Committee Meetings

The Finance & Audit Committee will meet a minimum of twice each calendar year (at least
once prior to the commencement of the annual audit process and once after completion of the
annual audit process). Additional meetings may be necessary or appropnate to adequately fulfill
the obli gations and duties outlined in this Charter. All committee members are ¢ expected to attend
each meeting, in person or via videoconference. The Finance & Audit Committee may invite other
individuals, such as members of management, auditors or other technical experts to attend meetings

and provide pertinent information, as necessary.

Meeting notices and agendas will be prepared for each meeting and provided to Finance &
Audit Committee members by electronic or regular mail at least five (5) days in advance of the
scheduled meeting. A quorum of the Finance & Audit Committee shall consist of a majority of the
members then serving on the Finance & Audit Committee. The affirmative vote of a majority of
the members then serving on the Finance & Audit Committee shall constitute an act of the Finance
& Audit Committee. Minutes of all meetings shall be recorded by the Secretary or any Assistant
Secretary of the Agency. All meetings shall comply with the requirements of the Open Meetings

Law.

ARTICLE IV
Committee Responsibilities

The Finance & Audit Committee shall have responsibilities related to: (a) the independent
auditor and annual financial statements; (b) oversight of management's internal controls,
compliance and risk assessment practices; (c) special investigations and whistleblower policies; (d)
miscellaneous issues related to the financial practices of the Agency; and (e) shall review proposals
for the issuance of debt by the Agency and make recommendations regarding such proposed debt

issuance.

A. Independent Auditors and Financial Statements

The Finance & Audit Committee shall:

-166-



@) Recommend to the Board the hiring of independent auditors, establish the
compensation to be paid to the auditors retained by the Agency and provide oversight of the audit
services provided by the independent auditor.

(i)  Establish procedures for the engagement of the independent auditor to
provide permitted audit services. The Agency’s independent auditor shall be prohibited from
providing non-audit services unless having received previous written approval from the Finance &
Audit Committee. Non-audit services include tasks that directly support the Agency’s operations,
such as (a) bookkeeping or other services related to the accounting records or financial statements
of the Agency; (b) financial information systems design and implementation; (c) appraisal or
valuation services, fairness opinions, or contribution-in-kind reports; (d) actuarial services; (€)
internal audit outsourcing services; (f) management functions or human resource services; (g)
broker or dealer, investment advisor, or investment banking services; and (h) legal services and
expert services unrelated to the audit function.

(i) Review and approve the Agency’s audited financial statements, associated
management letter and all other auditor communications. ~

(iv)  Review significant accounting and reporting issues, including complex or
unusual transactions and management decisions, and recent professional and regulatory
pronouncements, and understand their impact on the financial statements of the Agency. -

v) Meet with the Agency’s independent auditor at least annually to discuss the
financial statements of the Agency, and on an as-needed basis to discuss any significant issues that
may have surfaced during the course of the audit.

(vi)  Review and discuss any significant risks reported in the independent audit
findings and recommendations and assess the responsiveness and timeliness of management's
follow-up activities pertaining to the same.

B. Internal Controls, Compliance and Risk Assessment

The Finance & Audit Committee shall review management's assessment of the
effectiveness of the Agency’s internal controls and review the actions taken by management on the
independent accountants’ and auditors’ suggestions for correcting weaknesses, if any, in the
Agency’s internal controls, regulatory compliance, organizational structure and operations, and if
applicable, any weaknesses noted.

C. Special Investigations

The Finance & Audit Committee shall:

) Ensure that the Agency has an appropriate confidential mechanism for
individuals to report suspected fraudulent activities, allegations of corruption, fraud, criminal
activity, conflicts of interest or abuse by the directors, officers or employees of the Agency or any
persons having business dealings with the Agency or breaches of internal control.

-167-



(1)  Develop procedures for the receipt, retention, investigation and/or referral of
complaints concerning accounting, internal controls and auditing.

(iii)  Request and oversee special investigations as needed and/or refer specific
issues to the Board or appropriate committee of the Board for further investigation.

D. Other Responsibilities

The Finance & Audit Committee shall obtain information and training needed to
enhance the committee members’ understanding of the role of the independent auditor, the risk
management process, internal controls and a certain level of familiarity in financial reporting

standards and processes.

E. Debt Issuance
The Finance & Audit Commiittee shall review proposals for the issuarice of debt and
make recommendations regarding such proposed debt issuance.

ARTICLE V
Committee Reports

The Finance & Audit Committee shall:

A. report its actions and recommendations to the Board at each regular meeting of the
Board following a meeting of the Finance & Audit Committee and when otherwise requested by

the Board;

B. report to the Board, at least annually, regarding any proposed changes to this
Charter;

C. provide a self-evaluation of the Finance & Audit Committee’s functions to the
Board on an annual basis; and ’

D. report to the Board on a periodic basis, at least annually, the findings of its
independent auditors. These reports shall include careful consideration of the actions taken by
management on the independent auditors” suggestions for correcting weaknesses, if any, in the
Agency's internal controls, regulatory compliance, organizational structure and operations. These
reports may include the adequacy of the audit effort by the Agency's independent auditors, the
financial and regulatory compliance reporting decisions of management, the adequacy of disclosure
of information essential to a fair presentation of the financial affairs and regulatory compliance
efforts of the Agency, and the organization and quality of the Agency's system of management and
internal accounting controls.

-168-



ARTICLE V1
Amendments

This Charter may be amended upon affirmative vote of a majority of the Board of the
Agency.

Re-adopted this 27th day of March 2024 by the respective Boards of each corporation referenced above.

-169-



Erie County Industrial Development Agency

Credit Card Policy
Effective June 15, 2015

Purpose: To establish the Policy and Procedures for the use of ECIDA corporate credit cards.

1. Introduction:

It is commonplace for organizations to use credit cards for the convenience of making purchases on
behalf of the organization. In some instances, purchases can only be made via a credit card as manual
checks are not accepted (i.e. hotel reservations, internet purchases). In order to simplify the process for
purchasing certain items on behalf of the Erie County Industrial Development. Agency (“ECIDA”), the
following policy outlines the use of credit cards.

II Authorization
A resolution will be presented to the board prior to the issuance of the credit card that authorizes

e The aiaproval of the issuance of a credit card and the number and type(s) of credit cards to be
used such as general purpose cards or vendor specific cards

e Identify all authorized users

e  Set appropriate credit limits

e [Establish custody of the cards when not in use

e The uses of the card

o The appropriate internal control structure for monitoring the use of the card

o The approval process for payment of the charges.

o Establish a means to recoup any unauthorized expenditures.

The use of an ECIDA credit card(s) shall be in accordance with, and is not intended to circumvent, the
ECIDA’s Procurement Policy and/or the ECIDA’s Travel, Conference, Meals and Entertainment Policy.

The ECIDA shall be permitted to obtain and utilize a credit card(s) as so authorized by the resolution and
preferably with the ECIDA’s primary bank. In addition to the ECIDA itself, the individuals authorized to
be issued a card are listed on Schedule A, along with the credit limit authorized. Schedule A shall be
updated as the individuals authorized and credit limits change. The credit cards will be issued to the
specific individuals listed on Schedule A in order to help maintain accountability. Once issued, all cards
are to be locked in the Treasurer’s lockbox when not in use. If an individual is no longer designated as a
cardholder, and/or leaves ECIDA employment, the card issued to this individual will be cancelled. As
determined by the resolution of the ECIDA, only authorized personnel of the ECIDA may be assigned

and use the ECIDA Credit Card.

The audit and finance committee will evaluate the use of the cards on a yearly basis to determine the
continued need for the card and the nature and type of purchases being made.

-170-



1. Use of Cards

All purchases made on the ECIDA’s credit card must comply with the ECIDA’s Procurement Policy and
Travel, Conferences; Meals and Entertainment Policy. The ECIDA credit card may be used only for
official business of the ECIDA to pay for actual and necessary expenses incurred in the performance of
work-related duties for the ECIDA. The card may be used only for the following purchases:

e Hotel reservations

e Rental car reservations

* Training, conference, luncheons and seminar registrations

* Meals for meetings in which the vendor will not accept a check
¢ Internet purchases where a vendor will not accept a check

Personal expenses on the ECIDA’s credit card are strictly prohibited. A credit card that allows cash
advances or cash back from purchases is also prohibited. The card will be issued in the name and liability
of the Erie County Industrial Development Agency with the name of the individual authorized on the
card.

The employee issued the credit card is responsible for its protection and custody and shall immediately
notify the Treasurer or Bookkeeper if the card is lost or stolen.

Employees must immediately surrender the ECIDA credit card upon termination of employment. The
ECIDA reserves the right to withhold the final payroll check and payout of accrued leave until the card is

surrendered.
Iv. Recordkeeping

The use of the ECIDA credit card may be substantiated with a purchase order, receipts and documentation
detailing the goods or services purchased, cost, date of the purchase and the official business explanation,
Receipts and documentation must be submitted to the Bookkeeper following the purchase to reconcile

against the monthly credit cards statement.

At the end of the each month, the Bookkeeper is to review the monthly card statement and reconcile it
with the receipts and documentation received for that month. The bookkeeper should determine that all
purchases are supported by documentation. Any variances are to be investigated. Any purchase/charge
without appropriate supporting documentation requires a detailed explanation and description and the
written approval of the Chief Executive Officer (or Board Chair in the case of CEO changes).
Unauthorized or improper purchases will result in credit card revocation and discipline of the employee.
The ECIDA shall also take appropriate action to recoup unauthorized or improper expenditures. Once the
reconciliation is complete, the bookkeeper will initial the reconciliation to show it has been completed.

Once the credit card has been reconciled, payment via check will be made. All purchases made with the
endeavor to do so credit cards shall be paid for within the grace period so that no interest charges or

penalties will accrue.

-171-



Schedule A

Name Title Credit Limit Authorized
Mollie Profic CFO $10,000

Re-adopted this 27th day of March 2024 by the respective Boards of each corporation referenced above.

-172-



Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA), Buffalo and Erie County
Regional Development Corporation (RDC), and Buffalo and Erie County
Industrial Land Development Corporation (ILDC)

2023 Finance & Audit Committee Self-Evaluation
Responsibilities of the Finance & Audit Committee:

The core responsibilities of the Finance & Audit Committee, as mandated under Section 2825 of the
New York Public Authorities Law, are set forth in the Bylaws and include: (i) providing assistance
to members of the Agency in fulfilling their fiduciary responsibilities relating to accounting,
reporting, and regulatory compliance practices; (ii) maintaining, through regular meetings, direct
communication between the members of the Agency and the Agency’s independent accountants and
auditors; (iii) maintaining direct communication between members of the Agency and the
governmental authorities having audit authority or fiscal oversight of the Agency; (iv) approving the
budget of the Agency for submission to the Board; (v) approving and/or directing the transfers of
moneys under the budget; (vi) recommending to the Board the level of cash reserves and the level
of fund balances of the Agency.

Pen

Finance & Audit Committee Self-Evaluation Yes No ding Comments

1.

Are the members of the Finance & Audit X
Committee appointed in accordance with
the Bylaws and do individuals appointed to
the Finance & Audit Committee possess
the necessary skills to understand the
duties and functions of the Finance & Audit
Committee and are familiar with corporate
financial and accounting practices?

2. Is each member of the Finance & Audit X | O | O
Committee an “independent member”
within the meaning of, and to the extent
required by, Section 2825 of the New York
Public Authorities Law, as amended from
time to time? Did Finance & Audit
Committee members, who are members of
the Agency, comply with the conflict of
interest provisions applicable to public
officers under Article 18 of the New York
General Municipal Law?

3. Did the Finance & Audit Committee meeta | [X [0 | [ | The Finance & Audit

minimum of twice each calendar year? Committee met on
1/10/23, 3/16/23,
8/17/23, 9/21/23,
10/19/23 (no quorum),
and 10/25/23.

-173-



Finance & Audit Committee Self-Evaluation

Yes

Comments

4, Were meeting notices and agendas
prepared for each meeting and provided to
Finance & Audit Committee members by
electronic or regular mail at least five (5)
days in advance of the scheduled
meeting? Were minutes of all meetings
recorded by the Secretary or any Assistant
Secretary of the Agency? Did all meetings
comply with the requirements of the Open
Meetings Law?

5. Did the Finance & Audit Committee
develop the Agency’s audit practices,
which should address independent
auditors and financial statements; internal
controls, compliance, and risk assessment;
special investigations; and other
responsibilities?

See Questions #6-#10
below.

6. Did the Finance & Audit Committee;

(a) Recommend to the Board the appointment
of independent auditors, establish the
compensation to be paid to the auditors,
and provide oversight of the audit services
provided by the independent auditor?

(b) Establish procedures for the engagement of
the independent auditors to provide
permitted audited services?

(c) Review and approve the Agency’s audited
financial statements, associated
management letter, and all other auditor
communications?

(d) Review significant accounting and reporting
issues and understand their impact on the
financial statements of the Agency?

(e) Meet with the Agency’s independent auditor
at least annually to discuss the financial
statements of the Agency and any issues
that may have arisen during the audit?

(f) Review and discuss any significant risks
reported in the independent audit and
assess the responsiveness of
management’s follow-up activities regarding
same?

In March 2023, Lumsden
McCormick completed
audits of the ECIDA,
RDC, and ILDC for the
year ended 12/31/22.
The auditors issued
unmodified (clean)
opinions that the
statements fairly
presented the financial
position of the above
referenced corporations.
The auditors also
indicated that the audits
did not uncover any
material weaknesses in
internal control and there
were no instances of
non-compliance in
accordance with
government auditing
standards.

-174-




Pen

Finance & Audit Committee Self-Evaluation Yes No ding Comments

7. Did the Finance & Audit Committee review = ] [ | Management's

management’s assessment of the assessment of the
effectiveness of the Agency's internal effectiveness of internal
controls and review the actions taken by controls was reviewed
management on the independent with the Committee at
accountants’ and auditors’ suggestions for the 3/16/23 meeting.
correcting weaknesses in the Agency's The March 2023 audit
internal controls, regulatory compliance, reports did not identify
and organizational structure and any internal controls or
operations? material weaknesses.
8. Did the Finance & Audit Committee: DXJ | O | O | The ECIDA adopted a
(a) Ensure that the Agency has a confidential Whistleblower Policy in
mechanism for individuals to report March of 2012. The
suspected fraudulent activities, allegations Policy describes the
of corruption, fraud, criminal activity, process for reporting
conflicts of interest by directors, officers, or suspected fraudulent
employees of the Agency or anyone activities and describes
having business dealings with the Agency? the protections afforded

to individuals who report
suspected fraudulent
activities. The Policy

(b) Develop procedures for the receipt,
retention, investigation, or referral of
complaints concerning accounting, internal was re-adopted by the

controls, and auditing? Board of Directors on
(c) Request and oversee special 3/22/23.

investigations as needed or refer specific
issues to the Board or appropriate
committee for further investigation?

9. Did the Finance & Audit Committee obtain X ] [] | On3/16/23, the

information and training needed to Committee received an
enhance the committee members’ article entitled, “2023:
understanding of the role of the The year of the risk-
independent auditor, the risk management centric agenda’
process, internal controls, and appropriate published by the

level of familiarity in financial reporting Deloitte Center for
standards and processes? Board Effectiveness.

-175-



Finance & Audit Committee Self-Evaluation

Comments

10. Did the Finance & Audit Committee:
(@) Report its actions and recommendations to
the Board?

(b) Report to the Board at least annually
regarding any changes to the Finance &
Audit Committee Charter?

(c) Provide a self-evaluation to the Board on
an annual basis?

(d) Report to the Board at least annually on
the findings of its independent auditors?

The Committee
reported its actions and
recommendations to
the Board following
each meeting. On
3/22/23, the Audit &
Finance Committee
reported on its activities
to the ECIDA Board of
Directors. These
activities included the:
(1) Audit & Finance
Committee self-
evaluation; (2) Audit &
Finance Committee
Charter; (3) draft 2022
financial statements
audited by Lumsden
McCormick; (4)
Corporate Credit Card
Policy; (5) 2022 Public
Authorities Annual
Report; (6) Investment
& Deposit Policy; and
(7) 2022 Investment
Report.

-176-




Finance & Audit Committee Self-Evaluation

Other Self-Evaluation Notes
In addition to the above:

e During its 1/10/23 meeting, the Committee discussed the 2022 audit plan with
Lumsden McCormick and approved a recommendation to the Board for public sector
banking services.

e During its 3/16/23 meeting, the Committee reviewed drafts of the 2022 audited
financial statements for the ECIDA, RDC, and ILDC. The Committee also reviewed
the 2022 PAAA Annual Report, 2022 Investment Reports, Investment & Deposit
Policy, Finance & Audit Committee Charter, Corporate Credit Card Policy, the 2022
Finance & Audit Self-Evaluation, 2022 Management’s Assessment of Internal
Controls, and Corporate Credit Card Usage Report.

e During its 8/17/23 meeting, ECIDA staff discussed the ECIDA, RDC, and ILDC
budget review process and the timelines for obtaining approval for those budgets. The
Committee also reviewed drafts of the 2024 ECIDA, RDC, and ILDC operating and
capital budgets and three-year forecasts. The Committee also approved a
recommendation for actions related to the lease of office space at 95 Perry Street.

¢ During the 9/21/23 meeting, the Committee reviewed updated drafts of the 2024
ECIDA, RDC, and ILDC operating and capital budgets and three-year forecasts. The
Committee approved a motion to forward the respective budgets to the Boards of each
entity for approval.

* During the 10/25/23 meeting, the Committee recommended a tax-exempt bond
issuance for Westchester Park Preservation, LP and a refinancing of the City School
District of the City of Buffalo Series 2013A bonds be forwarded to the ECIDA board
for approval.

-177-



(3

THE $CONCMIC DEVELOPMENT CCAPDRATION FOR EXE COUNTY

Erie County Industrial Development Agency
Buffalo & Erie County Regional Development Corporation
Buffalo & Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation

2023 Assessment of the Effectiveness of Internal Controls

Management of the Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA), Buffalo & Erie County
Regional Development Corporation (RDC) and Buffalo & Erie County Industrial Land Development
Corporation (ILDC) is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal controls over
financial reporting. The accounting, financial reporting and cash management functions rely on a system
of controls outlined in the entities” Financial Policies & Procedures documentation. Internal controls are
reviewed continuously, and adjustments are made as needed. Examples of key internal controls are:

e Payroll: The ECIDA’s payroll is processed by a third-party processor, Bene-Care Payroll, LLC. The
CFO and Bookkeeper verify that payments are only made to employees that are entitled to be paid.
The RDC and ILDC have no direct employees, therefore there is no payroll. As a service organization
Bene-Care Payroll, LLC. undergoes a Service Organization Controls (SOC) audit each year. Their
most recent SOC 1 audit asserts that the internal controls in place at Bene-Care Payroll, LLC are
suitably designed and operating as intended to provide reasonable assurance that control objectives
were achieved.

o Risk=Low

e Cash Disbursements: Disbursements are made primarily by check and wire transfer. Invoices require
approval (physical or email) by the purchaser prior to payment. Invoices are reviewed by the
Accounting Manager prior to processing by the Bookkeeper. Two signatures are required on all checks
(CEO, VP, CFO or Assistant Treasurer). All wire transfers require dual approval. The CFO retrieves
and reviews all bank statements and approves all bank reconciliations. Reverse positive pay is used to
verify all check disbursements when presented for payment. Only Finance Department staff have
access to online banking sites.

o Risk=Low

o Cash Receipts: Checks received are logged by the Receptionist and forwarded to the Accounting
Manager. The Accounting Manager stamps checks “for deposit only”, codes the checks and prepares
deposits. The Bookkeeper deposits checks at the bank. The CFO reviews and initials deposit slips and
deposit receipts and verifies proper account coding. The Bookkeeper records deposits in the general
ledger software. Wire/ACH receipts are reviewed and coded by the CFO or Accounting Manager and
are recorded in the general ledger software by the Bookkeeper.

o Risk=Low

All computers are password protected and require multi-factor authentication to log in. General ledger
software is separately password protected. Access to the general ledger software is restricted to the CFO,
Accounting Manager and Bookkeeper.

95 Perry Street, Suite 403 » Buffalo, New York 14203 « ph. 716.856.6525 « fx. 716.856.6754 « www.ecidany.com

-178-



The ECIDA, RDC and ILDC undergo annual financial statement audits by an independent accounting
firm, in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. While auditors are not engaged to perform an
audit of internal controls, the auditors do review and test internal controls as part of their audit procedures.
There have been no material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal controls nor other
management letter recommendations noted by the independent auditors.

In summary, the present internal control structure appears to be sufficient to meet internal control
objectives in preventing and detecting errors and irregularities.

This statement certifies that the Erie County Industrial Development Agency, Buffalo & Erie County
Regional Development Corporation and Buffalo & Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation
followed a process that assessed and documented the adequacy of its internal control structure and policies
for the year ending December 31, 2023. To the extent that deficiencies were identified, the authority has
developed corrective action plans to reduce any corresponding risk.

-179-



Erie County Industrial Development Agency
Summary of Charges to Corporate Credit Card
For statement period 3/6/2023 to 2/6/2024

Training, Conferences, Seminars & Luncheons S 16,742
Dues, Subscriptions & Memberships 9,677
Charges on behalf of BUDC 6,954
Hotels 3,992
Marketing 3,744
Technology Costs 2,844
Misc. 1,432

$ 45,385
e

Technology Costs
6%

Training, Conferences, Seminars

— & Luncheons
38%

Charges on behalf of BUDC _/"
16%

Dues, Subscriptions &
Memberships
22%

-180-



2/7/24, 3:39 PM Audit Committees: So Much More Than Financial Statement Oversight - WSJ

This copy is for your personal, non-commercial use only. Distribution and use of this material are governed by our Subscriber Agreement and by copyright law. For
non-personal use or to order multiple copies, please contact Dow Jones Reprints at 1-800-843-0008 or visit www.djreprints.com.

https://deloitte.wsi.com/riskandcompliance/audit-committees-so—much-more-than-financial-statement-oversight-ba12fe20

LEADERSHIP | GOVERNANCE | INTERNAL AUDIT

Audit Committees: So Much
More Than Financial
Statement Oversight

As the complexity of organizations and the environment in which they
operate broadens and deepens, the purview of the audit committee is
evolving and expanding faster than ever

The audit committee is evolving.

The pace at which many businesses need to anticipate and adapt to change
continues to be unparalleled. As a result, the role of corporate governance and
oversight is continually expanding—and accordingly, so is what is expected of

audit committees.

Once primarily responsible for
overseeing financial reporting and
internal controls, ethics and
compliance programs, and external
and internal audit, audit committees
are now finding Artificial Intelligence
(AI), cybersecurity, and climate issues
hitting many of their agendas,
particularly when disclosures are
involved. The evolution and
expansion of the audit committee’s

t

purview generally means the

§
®
=,
e

responsibilities of the committee are

growing in strategic importance.

e
e

Dipti Gulati In fact, audit committee respondents

to Deloitte’s most recent Audit

https://deloitte.wsj.com/riskandcompliance/audit-committees-so-much-more 181_ancial-statement-oversight-ba12fe20 116



277124, 3:39 PM Audit Commitiees: So Much More Than Financial Statement Oversight - WSJ
Committee Practices Report anticipate that, outside of financial reporting and
controls, cybersecurity (63%), followed by enterprise risk management (45%), and
environmental, sustainability, and governance (ESG) disclosure and reporting

(39%) are their top three areas of focus this year.
Al — Where Does It Fit?

Issues related to technology are taking up a significant proportion of many audit
committees’ bandwidth these days, with some sharing anecdotally that up to half

of their time is spent on it.

“Emerging technology oversight and responsibility continues to reach new
heights,” my colleague Carey Oven, managing partner with Deloitte’s Center for
Board Effectiveness, Deloitte & Touche LLP, told a recent gathering of nearly 150
audit committee members and chairs.

Oven emphasized that, “Artificial intelligence seems to be advancing by the
nanosecond, leaving many practitioners grappling with what things like ‘GenAI’
and ‘large language models’ even mean. While it’s undeniable that technology can
enable opportunity, it can also bring threats that should not be ignored.”

An active conversation is already underway within many organizations regarding
where the oversight for various aspects of technology should sit. Should
cybersecurity fall under the remit of the audit committee? Or should it be coupled
with technology and Al under a specific finance and technology committee? And
what should the backgrounds and capabilities of members of those committees be
to promote effective and informed oversight?

Consider Al. As companies continue to explore and invest in this new capability,
they are tasked with considering numerous business implications, including both
operational and reputational risks and risk appetite, governance, and the role of
the board.

A recent Deloitte survey of in-house governance professionals representing 97
public companies of varying sizes and industries reveals a lack of consensus on
where primary oversight for Al currently lies. The most frequently cited response
(29%) is that neither the board nor a committee has express responsibility for AT,
16% indicate it was the responsibility of the audit committee. What’s more, 44% of

https://deloitte.wsj.com/riskandcompliance/audit-committees-so-much-mor: = __ " iancial-statement-oversight-ba12fe20 2/6



2/7/24, 3:39 PM Audit Committees: So Much More Than Financial Statement Oversight - WSJ
respondents report that, to date, Al-related topics have not been on their full

board or a committee meeting agenda.

This is not likely to be the case for long. The conversation related to Al has ramped
up significantly in the last nine months as organizations have begun to explore the
GenAl boom and its possible use cases, which range anywhere from marketing
content generation to summarizing large volumes of drone footage to iterating
semiconductor chip designs. For the first time, instead of seeking a technology
solution to a particular problem, organizations have this incredibly powerful
technological tool that, rather than being confined to back-office servers, can be
right at the fingertips of employees. We are just beginning to scratch the surface of
its capabilities—and, in turn, just starting to get our arms around the potential
risks.

ESG — No Longer a Voluntary Endeavor

At many companies, ESG and sustainability is top of mind for board members and
management teams alike. As just one indicator, climate-related information is
mentioned in more than 90% of S&P 500 companies’ 10-K filings." More and more
boards are responding to investors’ heightened expectations on climate and ESG
matters by focusing on and disclosing how their governance structure is evolving

to consider ESG more intentionally.

When we surveyed audit committees in 2022, just 10% said they had oversight
responsibility for ESG disclosure and reporting; this year, 34% say that
responsibility sits with the audit committee. It’s likely both increased regulatory
and investor focus are responsible for this jump.

Audit committees are increasingly engaging in the ESG agenda due to the growing
reliance by investors and other stakeholders on disclosures. Audit committees will
likely need to understand whether the same robust internal control over financial

reporting also underlie the ESG information and metrics that companies disclose,
especially if in SEC filings.

In October, California Gov. Gavin Newsom ratified two new laws that will require
comprehensive climate disclosures by large public and private U.S. companies
doing business in the state. The Climate Data Accountability Act (SB-253) requires
reporting practices on both direct and indirect greenhouse gas emissions, and

https://deloitte. wsj.com/riskandcompliance/audit-committees-so-much-more *- -~ “-ancial-statement-oversight-ba12fe20 3/6



2/7/24, 3:39 PM Audit Committees: So Much More Than Financial Statement Oversight - WSJ
Greenhouse gases; climate-related financial risk (SB-261) requires companies to
prepare and make publicly available on their websites biennial qualitative
reporting on climate-related financial risks as well as measures taken to reduce
and adapt to that risk.

While these laws go beyond the scope of climate regulation proposed at the federal
level by the SEC, the marketplace cannot rule out other states following
California’s lead. What’s more, U.S. companies operating in Europe are already
subject to robust reporting requirements.

In response to new rules, infrastructure is emerging to help companies better
equip themselves to navigate the increasingly complex global regulatory
environment. The International Sustainability Standards Board (ISSB) is
developing a set of internationally consistent, high-quality, and reliable baseline
standards for disclosure of sustainability-related information on enterprise value.
These voluntary standards will likely be highly valuable for companies because
they converge multiple sustainability reporting standards already in use by many
companies and are expected to be adopted in jurisdictions around the world.

Ever-Increasing Task List

These are just two of the fast-evolving areas audit committees now often find
themselves overseeing in some capacity. From a heightened regulatory landscape
to the emergence of new technology to new and expected requirements for climate
and cybersecurity, the list of expected audit committee responsibilities continues

to grow.

The expansion of the audit committee’s role has in turn raised questions about
committee composition. More experience might be needed in certain areas but
bringing on narrowly-focused subject matter resources could also be challenging.
After all, audit committees must still perform their core oversight duties as well as
understand the interrelationships among the various areas of risk. For these
reasons, boards often prefer to compose their committees with strategic thinkers,

who may or may not have deep experience in a particular area.

And let’s not forget just how few shoulders these responsibilities lay on: just 12%
of respondents to the Audit Committee Practices Report say their audit committee
is made up of more than five people; the plurality (36%) indicate their committees

https://deloitte.wsj.com/riskandcompliance/audit-committees-so-much-more '18 4 ancial-statement-oversight-ba12fe20 4/6



2/7/24, 3:39 PM Audit Committees: So Much More Than Financial Statement Oversight - WSJ
are made up of fewer than four. Not surprisingly a quarter of respondents
anticipate making changes to the composition of the audit committee, including
increasing its size, in the next 12 months.

With such momentous change affecting all aspects of an organization, there is
likely no greater time for both board and committee leadership to demonstrate
their influence and challenge conversations around future direction and how best
to prepare executives to manage risks for continued growth and success.

— by Dipti Gulati, Chief Executive Officer of Audit & Assurance, Deloitte & Touche
LLP

1. See the CAQ's S&P 500 10-K Analysis as of June 30, 2022, https://www.thecaq.org/sp-500-10k/

Published on Oct 27,2023, 3:00 PM

This publication contains general information only and Deloitte is not, by means of this publication, rendering
accounting, business, financial, investment, legal, tax, or other professional advice or services. This publication
is not a substitute for such professional advice or services, nor should it be used as a basis for any decision or
action that may affect your business. Before making any decision or taking any action that may affect your
business, you should consult a qualified professional advisor. Deloitte shall not be responsible for any loss
sustained by any person who relies on this publication.

About Deloitte

Deloitte refers to one or more of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited, a UK private company limited by
guarantee ("DTTL"), its network of member firms, and their related entities. DTTL and each of its member
firms are legally separate and independent entities. DTTL (also referred to as “Deloitte Global”) does not
provide services to clients. In the United States, Deloitte refers to one or more of the US member firms of
DTTL, their related entities that operate using the “Deloitte” name in the United States and their respective
affiliates. Certain services may not be available to attest clients under the rules and regulations of public
accounting. Please see www.deloitte.com/about to learn more about our global network of member firms.

Copyright © 2023 Deloitte Development LLC. All rights reserved

WHAT TO READ NEXT...

https://deloitte.wsj.com/riskandcompliance/audit-committees-so-much-more_ 185 _ncial-statement-oversight-ba12fe20 5/6



